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2012 Severn Trent group highlights

+ Leakage reduced by 7% year on year to a record low level,
and below Ofwat target.

+ Maintaining the lowest combined water and waste water bills
for our customers.

- No usage restnctions in the Severn Trent Water region forecast
for this year.

» Severn Trent Water operating expenditure below level allowed
in Ofwat’s Final Determination,

« Additional investment of £150 milkon in Severn Trent Water's
networks over the next 3 years to enhance secunty and resilience
for our customers, on top of £1 6 billion previously planned.

« Proposed capital return of £150 milion to shareholders maintains
an efficient and sustanable balonce sheet with a strong
investment grade credit rating.
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Cautionary statement

Thes document contans. certamn Torward looking stotements’ with
respect to Severn Trent's finonool condition, results of operations
and business ond certan of Severn Trent's plons and objectves
wath respect to these tems,

Forward lookang statements ore sometimes, but not ohways,
wentified by ther use of o dote n the future or such words s
Tntopotes’, oame', e, Wil ‘could’, 'may’, ‘shoukd, ‘expecty’,

ungrodictable,
becouse they refate to events ond depend
on crcumstonces that wil soou n the s,
There are o number of foctors that could couse octuol results
m:dachpnu-:stodﬂumerﬂyﬁunﬁmwnmda
wmplied by these forword Ioolong staterments. These factors
wchude, bat are not mstad t, changes in the econormees and
markats 1 whch the group oporates; changes n the regulotony
and competition frameworks 1 whech the group operates;
the mpact of legal o other proceedings aganst or whch
affect the groun; ong changes nnterest ond exchange rates.
Al wntten or verbal forward Ioolong staterments, Mode n ths
document or made subsequently, whch ore ottributoble to
Severn Trenz or ony cther member of the group or persons acting
on they beholf are expressly quoified in they entinety by the
foctors refermed 1o above Severn Trent does niot intend 10 update
these forword lockang stotemernts,
Nottwng in thes docurment should be regorded os a profds forecast.
Thes document i nolt an offer (o sell, exchonge or tronsfer any
securtes of Severn Trent Pie o ony of its subadiones and s
not soliotang on offer to purchose, exchonge or tronsfer such
sennsnmy;mdﬂmﬁecmmsnwrnbeu‘!ued,
SOW3 o tronsferred o the United States abysent, mgrsttion o

on gpplicable exernpbion from the requererments of
the US Secuntis Act of 1923 jas ormended)
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We treat and provide water and

treat waste water in the UK, and
internationally, through our two
complementary businesses - Severn
Trent Water and Severn Trent Services.

Severn Trent Water is one of the largest
of the 10 requlated water and sewerage
companies in England and Wales.

It provides high quality services to

more than 4.2 million households

and businesses in the Midlands and
mid-Wales. see pages 8 - 21

Severn Trent Services is one of the
world’s leading commercial suppliers
of water and waste water treatment
services and products, with customers

in the US, Europe, Middle East and Asia.
See pages 22 - 30

Find cur more on our corporate website: www.severntrent.com
Sevemn Trent Water website www.stwater co.uk
Sevemn Trent Servces website: www.sevemntrentservices.com
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Chairman’s statement

‘T'm delighted to report on S trmgod el

another good year for Severn  areusnaomnz wdgopmeene

rose by 3 5% to £1 77 bilion, while our

Trent. We delivered sound leistabad s
financial results and continued %?%Z?d&gﬁizg’gﬁm
to improve key aspects of our ~ sembiss " "
operational performance.’ rdexupta 20115 Teboads
Andrew Duff, Charman therefore proposing a final dvidend of

42 06 pence, to be paid on 27 July 2012
This will give o total dwidend for the
year of 70 10 pence, representing
growth of 7 7%

We are pleased to share the benefits
of our strong batance sheet with our
stakeholders, in an efficent and
sustainable way which maintains

our nvestment grode credit rating

We will increase by £150 million our
investment programyme in our water
and waste water networks, to improve
further our services to customers,

and propose to return an addstional
£150 milbion to our shareholders.

This speaial dmdend, subject to
shareholder approval, equates to

63 pence per share and will be payable
wath the final dvidend on 27 July 2012
These actions underpin our ability to
nvest in our networks in the future,

for the benefit of ol stakeholders.

Continuatly improving
our performance
I'm delighted that at Severn Trent
Water we improved our operctional
performance in 2011/12 Inparticulor,
removed we were able to reduce leakage, to a
Graphics record low level Severn Trent Water s
the only comparny targeting sigruficant
reductions i leakoge over ths five year
regutatory period
After the dnest 18 months on record,
it 15 pleasing that we are managing our
water resources so well Our customers
continued to recerve a high quality water
supply and we have avoided a hosepipe
ban to date Good water management
also helps us to mamntain our
environmentadl performance
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Chamnon's statement

At Severn Trent, we know that we

can atways do better The desire to
continuously tmprove runs nght through
our company We enjoyed our first fudl
year in our new operating centre in
Coventry whuch 1s helping our people

to work together more effectively as a
cohesive team. Our SAP-based systerms
allow us to respond to our customers
more quickly and flexibly and make us
rmore efficent. We're atso continuing to
rvest m the treming and development
of our people so they can give our
customers the best possible service

Delivenng a good service and

value for money

Severn Trent Water custormers aver the
last year have received high quality water,
good overadll service and value for money,
with the lowest average annual water
and sewerage bill in the UK. However,

we recogruse that we can do betterin
the way in which we deal with custormers
if they have reason to contact us

Whilst complomts have signsficantly
follen and our new processes and
systems mean that we handle customer
enqunes efficently, we do not always
make ¢t easy enough for custormners to
deal with us or resolve their problems at
the first tme of asking This 1s an area of
focus for us and at the end of the year
we were seeing positive signs that the
chonges we are putting in place are
making a difference

I am diso pleased to see the continued
mmprovernent n the level of senace we
provide to our custormers In other areas,
Severn Trent Water has met its leakage
targets and sigruficantly reduced

interruptions to supply

Health and safety

There s nothing more essential than
the hedlth and safety of our customers,
employees ond contractors. I'm therefore
particutarly pleased that, across the
company, we reduced the number of
employee lost time injunes for the third
successive year Our annual employee
survey shawed that 95% of our people
were dear about how to do ther jobs
safely and 89% believed that we gve
thern the nght support to do so

We're atways lookng for ways to help our
people work more safely and that s why
we are mtroducng the MindSafety™
behavioural trairing programme which
encourages our people to be aware of
what they're dong and to be
accountable for their own safety Toking
care over health and safety can also help
us to improve performance in a whole
range of other areas such as service
quality, envronmental complance and
productmty of our teams.

Changing Course

Over the last few years, Severn Trent has
sought to lead the debate on our
industry's future by publishing a senes of
papers called ‘Changing Course’ Dunng
the year, we published our latest paper
making the case for o new system of
‘water trading’ to ollow water to be
shared across water comparty
boundaries as an economuc and
environmental alternative to developing
new local resources

We were therefore delighted to see
strong UK Government support for
increasing interconnection and the
trading of butk supplies of treated woater
in its Water White Poper, ‘Water For Life’,
published dunng the year With last
year's drought conditions in parts of
England, mcduding the Midlands,
continuing into the new year, far sighted
ideas like this will becorne a necessity

as England and Wales addresses its
water balance

Boosting the economy

and employment

Severn Trent contnbutes sigruficantly to
the economy We build much needed
mfrastructure and finance it efficently,
so it's not a burden on the public sector.
Our business provides many job
opporturybies and boosts the econorry
I'm also delghted that we provide long
term coreers for the young people of our
region. Our apprenticeship programme 15
going from strength to strength, helping
young people tinto work and making sure
that we have the skills we'll need in the
future We currently have 81 apprentices
across customer serice, water and
waste water roles. One of our

apprentices, Michael Willlams, won the
national EEF Qutstanding Achievement
by o Find Year Apprentice Award, for
ntroducing process changes that
mproved efficency and relabilty and
sagved us money

Severn Trent Services

Severn Trent Services had a challenging
start to the year, whie the second half
saw an improved performance Full year
revenues were £332 3 million, an
increase of 0 6% year on year, after
adjusting for the impact of changes

in exchange rates, driven by good
performance in Europe offsetting a weak
US result, PBIT? (profit before interest
and tax) was £18 0 million, a decline of
26 5%, on a constant currency basis,
due to Investments i new bustness
opportunities, a change in product mix
in our water punfication divisen and
economic conditions Interest in our new
BALPURE® balflast water treatment
praducts was greater than expected,
with inal orders generating £5 milion

in recorded orders.

Summary

Thus has been ancther good year for
Severn Trent. We've mproved our
operational performance and the
efficiency of our investrment, otlowing us
to delwer sustainable returns to our
shareholders and the lowest cost of
water and waste water services to our
custorners I'm particutorly gratefl to all
of the staff at Severn Trent for thewr
contnbution to our success

Signature removed

Andrew Duff
Chaiman

1 Before exceptonal items
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Chief Executive’s review

‘Our long term success depends on balancing
the needs of all our stakeholders and our
ability to continually improve our services and
efficiency. We also aim to drive the industry
forwards, by leading the regulatory debate.

Tony Wray, Chief Executve

Strategy

Our strategy 1s focused on detvenng
sustainable growth. Thrs 1s crucol to us
because we have to plan far ahead -
often over decades To be truly
sustainable, we must mamtain the

appropnate balance across our
custormers, people, the ervironment
and investors,

Water i1s wital to life, so we look to offer
the highest quality at a pnce customers
can afford. We need to attract
investment, so we can fund the
infrastructure our service depends on
Our people must have the skills, support
and motvation to continually improve
our service We have to protect the
environment because our business and
our customers depend upon it to prowide
the resources we need

Achieving this balance leads directly to Graphics removed
good financial performance It allows us
to delver organic growth and reliable
retums over the long term, without
excessive nsk.

The timescales we work to are long, but
our industry doesn't stand still. Politics,
regulation, cimate and the availability of
finance all chonge over time, both i the
UK and intemationalty For this reason,
our board constders strategic topics
regulary and formally reviews our
strategy every year The expenence of
recent years supports our view that we're
following the nght strategy Whatever

happens to econcmues around the world,
the need for dean water and santtation
rermans
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Chief Executve’s review

Our strategy
Sustainable

Strategy arn

Delvering value for our customers
and investors,

Sustainable financing, ensunng we have _

a strong and flexible balance sheet.

Responsible leadership, protecting the
environment, thinking long term and
setting high standards in everything
wedo

Growth

Strategy aim

Growing Severn Trent i the UK through —
investment i our networks and services

Positioning Severn Trent to capitatise
on opportunities in a changing
regulatoty framework.

Deploying Severn Trent Services business
into new markets.

Developing new treatrent technologies )

Highlights 2012
- At Severn Trent Water we are focused
on delivenng key service improvements.
-we have met our leakage targets,
- interrupbons to supply have been reduced,
-we have mantained securty of
supply na dry year; ond
-we have mantained the lowest charges
inthe UK

» Severn Trent Services has retumed o
creditable performance in difficult markets

= We are well financed

= We have successfully refinanced part
of our debt.

+ We have maintained a strong credit rating
* We hove kept our dvidend prormuse

« We have improved our heaith and sofety

performance

+ We have generated record levels of
renewable energy

+ We have completed o senes of successful
catchment management pilots

= We hove influenced the regulatory
debate around the future of our industry

Highlights 2012

* We have mode good progress m
preparation for the next pnce review
n 2014 (PR14)

* We have successfulty transferred private
drains and sewers to our osset database

« We grew our Reguiated Capital Value
{RCV} by £275 O million

= Severn Trent Services 1s well placed
to compete in the emerging UK market
for non-domestic retart

* Severn Trent Water s well ploced
geographucally to benefit from future
water trading

» We have successfully mtroduced our
exsting water filtration products into
a number of key markets n Spain,
China and South Amenca

- Water Purfication {Products) - BALPURE®
1s making good progress with new
contracts with Greenway Shipping
{and others)

Key measures )
4.88 464 Ml/d
Custorner written Leakoge megalitres
complaints per per day

1,000 properties (STW) (2011 497}

(2011 572)

£729.4m

Cash generated
frorn operations
{2011 £7530rm)

56.0%

Net Debt/RCV Geanng
{2011 568%)

Support for water trading m the UK Government's.
Water White Poper, "Woter for Life’

Key measures

4.0%

RCV growth
(2011 62%)

« Granted both water and sewerage retail )
licences in Scotland

* Severn Trent Water 1s looking at
opportunibies to provide water to other
areqs of the country

58

Countnes with representative/
drstributor locations
(2011 53)

£5m

New commercial orders

amnaﬁog‘mmmm}mmo‘
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Chief Executive’s review

Business performance review

Severn Trent delivered good finanaal and
operational perforrmance In 2011/12,
desprte challenging UK and international
markets We mantaned our focus on
efficency and service mprovement, and
both Severn Trent Water and Sevem
Trent Services achieved high standards
for their customers

Whilst keeping pnces low, we delvered
articipated retums for mvestors,
maintainng our dmdend promuse to
grow our dvidend by 3% more than the
retail pnce index up to 2014/15 We also
took important steps to maintain our
financial strength We completed a
successful £250 million 30 year bond
issue at 4 875%. We bought back 75% of
our 2014 £200 milion bond, which was
due for repayment shortly before the
next price review, when raising finance
could be rmore difficult. We thus reduced
o future refinancing nsk.

Our performance I1s a credit to our
employees throughout the group We are
proud of their continuing cormrmitrment
whilst we've made major changes aver
the last few years, induding key change
projects introducing new systerns and
processes, and a sigruficant change n
benefits for our employees, being the
dosing of our defined benefit pensions
schemes to future accrual from 2015

Our employees have proved adaptable
and willing to embrace change which
1s important for our future prospects
of success

Severn Trent Water

Our household customners still have the
lowest bills, on average, In England and
Wales, and our pnces will increase by less
than the industry average m 2012/13
We've glso been able to keep bad debts
down, despite nsing unermployment,

by helping customers in need to pay
therr bilts

Durng the year, we remamed focused on
improving our service and efficency We
stepped up our network replacement,
which helped us in the aftermath of the
harsh December in 2010, which was

the coldest in 100 years Leakage was
reduced to a new low, ahead of our
target, and we dramatwcally reduced
interruptions to supply

Despite the dnest 18 months onrecord,
we managed our resources carefully
and kept our custorners supplied with
hugh quality water, without having o
hosepipe ban, As we enter the next
financial year, our water resources mean
that we do not presently expect any
usage restnctions

One of the year's key actuevernents was
our smooth adoption of 37,000 km of
private droms and sewers, Feedback from
custormers has been positive and the
extra work required to repair and
mamntain these assets has so far been

at the lower end of our expectations.

Any cornparty that wants long term,
sustainable success has to work in the
nght way We call our approach ‘Safer,
Better Faster’ It's a combination of
management disciplines and our belief
in pecple taking responsibility for the
way they work. We want our people to
do the nght thing the Severn Trent way,
to get things night first ime, to help cut
waste from our systerns and processes,
and to care about one another

We've built our ability to continuously
improve, developing our people ond
upgrading cur workplaces and
technology, so we have a better
working ervironment. All of these help
us to deliver great service efficently

Key areas for continued mprovement
mdude our environmental managerment,
further reducing water supply
mtemuptions and our customers’
expenence of our serices.

We're not content with what we've
achieved, so we're always locking for
new areas for success. For example,
we're increasingly using technology to
rake it easter for our customers to
contoct us and for us to stay in touch
with them. And we're introduang new
water and waste water treatrment
processes that will cut energy use and
rmake us more efficent.

Severn Trent Water olreody hos o sector
leading position in renewable energy
and we're on track to generate up to
30% of our electnaty by 2015 We have
no strong desire to be a big electnaty
generator - our motvation s to keep
pnces low for custorners and reduce our
carbon emissions. The next steps include
increasing our use of anaerobic digestion
and wind turbines

‘Despite the driest 18
months on record, we
managed our resources
carefully and kept our
custorners supplied
with high quality water,
without having a
hosepipe bar’
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Chuef Executve’s review

Severn Trent Services

Severn Trent Senvces performed
creditably cganst a challenging
economic backdrop Severmn Trent
Services faced tough trading conditions,
particularly in the first hatf of the year
Political unrest in the Middle East and
North Afnca (MENA) as well as sluggsh
economc growth m developed markets
made for o challenging emvaronment for
product soles and contract renewals
Refinancing of the recevables for part
of our busmess in Italy rernained difficult
for all partners amd the ongong
Eurozone cnsts.

Over the year as a whole, our revenues
were slightly ahead on a constant
currency basis (versus last year),
dlthough profits were down by around

a third, in part due to £2 milkion of
investrment m busimess development
opportunittes n both Products and
Operating Services. Our Operating
Services business continued to do well n
the UK and Irelond but US micrkets were
tougher and, as we reported at the half
year, we have ceased any further
development of our business actvities
n Italy

Water purfication products saw o slow
recovery, with challenging markets in
North Afnca and the US, but better
conditions in the Far East and the UK.

We made further progress with our new

treatment product BALPURE®, cur ballast
water treatment systern, which receved
Type Approval and we're pleased to have
sold the first units m what 1s a potentially
sizegble market.

Our UK Anatytical Senvices business has
reduced as two water utility dients hove
decded to trsource their work.

At the end of the year, for Severn Trent
Services, we apponted Martin Kane as
the new Chief Executive Officer olong
with a new Cheef Financiat Officer,
Stephane Bouwer

Looking forward

The UX econormy will rernan tough for
both consumers and businesses This
mearns we must continue to focus on
delvenng efficient, high quality and low
cost services, and be attentrve to our
customers’ needs The UK cimate wall
also be a challenge and we will have to
manage our water resources carefully
The coming year will see us continuing
with our preparations for the next price

review in 2014 (PR14) Engaging with our
customers and other stakeholders wil be
key, as we develop with them our plans
for nvestment in our water and waste
water networks to mamntamn the services
provided, deliver our emvironmental
obligattons and ensure secunty of supply

In Sevemn Trent Services our new
management team is focused on
operating efficency and poshionmg for
growth when the econormy mproves.
We also continue to target new
opportunities, For example, i addition to
our existing England and Wales licence,
we have been granted both water and
sewerage retaill hcences in Scotlond
Having the necessary operating licences
in bath markets prepares our business
for the creation of a market across all of
Gregt Bntain as mdicated i the UK
Government’s Water White Paper, ‘Water
for Life’ This will enable custormers wath
sites across Great Brtain to easty switch
to Severn Trent Services as their single
national water senvices supplier as the
rnarket opens up

For several years, Severn Trent Water has
been at the forefront of shaping the future
of the water sector in the UK through the
development of a senes of publications
known as ‘Changing Course” We're
encoureged that our ideas are reflected
m Ofwat's publications on reguiatory
complionce and future prce brrits, and
in the UK Government’s Water White
Paper These ideas will lead to optimal
use of water resources, better financal
and ervironmental outcornes for
customers and more certamty for
investors Looking to future opporturities
for growth, Sevemn Trent Water s ideally
ptoced to benefit from water tredng

and to help other water companies
meet theyr strategic shortfalls m supply

- something we first championed

m ‘Changing Course’ and that has

now been picked up by Ofwat and

the UK Government.

Signature removed

Tony Wray
Chief Executve

‘For several years,
Severn Trent Water
has been at the
forefront of shaping
the future of the water
sector in the UK’
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Severn Trent Water

Group at a glance

Severn Trent Water provides high qualty water and sewerage
services to over 4.2 million households and businesses i the
Midlands and mid-Wales. We want to be the best water and waste
water company in the UK, by providing the highest standards

and lowest possible charges, through our great people

Key strengths

* We are committed to long
term sustainability, keeping in
balance the needs of our
customers, the environment
and our Investors.

* Our high standards and
efficiencies keep our costs low
and generate progressive,
sustainable returns for our
shareholders.

+ Our bills for water and
sewerage combined are the
lowest on average in England
and Wales.

« We have one of the lowest per
capita consumption rates in
the UK.

* We continually work to
improve our performance and
deliver cost and operational
efficiencies against Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs),
each of which 15 aligned to our
long term strateqgy

* We have a clear business plan
and a strang management
team.

Where we operate

Qur region stretches across the heart of the )
UK, from the Bristol Channed to the Hurnber,
and from rrud-Wales to the East Midlonds.

Graphic removed

Key facts

1.8bn itres |

Dnnking water suppled per day

Graphuc
removed

1.4bnN iitres |

Graphic
removed

Waste water collected per day

Graphuc

5,294

Employees
asat 31 March 2012

Tumover

£1,457.5m

(2011 £1,389 8m)

Profit*

£500.0m
(2011. £503.7m)

*  Before migrest, tax ond exteptonal dems.

The industry

The water industry i Englond and Wales
invests rmore than £3 billon o year and
employs over 27,000 people There are
currently 10 woter and seweroge cormpanies
in Englond ond Wales. Our sector 15

facing significant long term challenges

The privatisation of the ndustry in 1959 led
to improvements i services to customers,
better quality drinking water and higher
environmental standards Our proposals for
changes in our Industry are helping us to play
arole in shaping the debate

Qur business

Severn Trent Water s o requiated business.
We work within five year planring cycles, with
the pnces we charge our customers set at the
beginning of each cyde by our economuc
regulotor, Ofwat. These five year cycles are
known as Asset Management Plan (AMP)
penods. We have just reached the end of the
second year of AMPS

How we measure success

Water companies are required to publish
performonce aganst o set of indicators,
These ndicstors provide Ofwet with an
overall picture of company performance
against the commitments made as part of
the AMPS price review

As well as being requiated by Ofwot, our
performance 1s also montored by

» the Dnnking Water Inspectorate, which s
responsible for making sure we cornply with
dnnksng water quality requlations, and

« the Environment Agency, which controls
water abstroction, nver pallution and
flooding

We alse work with the UK Government
(including the Department for Envimonment,
Food and Rural Affairs and the Welsh
Assembly Government) and other agences
such as the Consurmer Council for Water,
Naturat Englond and Countryside Council for
Wales to make sure we meet the highest
custormer service and ervironmental
standards, while offenng our customers the
lowest prces.
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Sevem Trent Water - Group at a glance

Key strategic intentions...

Our strategy is based on eight Key Strategic
Intentions (KSIs) which reflect what matters to
our customers and wider stakeholder groups. We
measure our performance within each KSI agamnst
our 20 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

1. Providing a continuous
supply of quality water

Dealing effectively with waste water
Responding to customers’ needs
Minimising our carbon footprint
Having the lowest possible charges
Having the right skills to deliver
Maintaining investor confidence

Promoting an effective
requlatory regime

® NO WU WN

-.delivered through our areas of focus

We focus on four key areas - customers, people,
process and finance - to deliver the highest
standards and lowest charges to our customers,
through a highly skilled and committed workforce:

Customers
Our household custormers have on average, the

Graphic [lowest bils m England and Wales But keeping
rermoved | customers satisfied 15 not just about low charges

and vatue for money We also need to detiver
reliabilsty, reflect their needs and pnonties in our
plans, commurucate dearly, keep our prormises
and put things nght f they go wrong

More on customers on page 12

People

Our people are the comerstone of our success

Graphuic |We strve to recruit, train and retain the best people,

rernoved |underpinned by great workplaces and a strong

culture of safety and personal responsibility
More on people on page 16

Process
QOur drnive to work safer, better and faster s the

foundation of our approach to continuous

remnoved [IMproverment. Making sure we have the nght

processes and systems in ploce s a fundamental
part of our drive for operational exceltence

More on pmcess onpage 17

Finance

The higher our standards the more effectvely and
Graphic | efficently we work. In turn this improves our abiltty

removed |to keep our costs low and generate progressive,

sustanable returns which eams the trust of our
ivestors and shareholders We always look to
finance the company n an efficient, sustamable way
and maintain gn investrment grade credit rating

More on finance on page 19
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Severn Trent Water

Our business model

10

Water is essential to life and to the communities in which we lve
and work. Severn Trent Water is intninsically linked to the life cycle
of water The custorner is at the heart of our continuous drive to
improve our operations and services across coltection, delivery

and cleaning of water

Severn Trent Water 15 a requlated business
We work within five year planning cydes,
with custorner prices set by our econormnic
requiator, Ofwat, to allow us to fund our
investment programme and cover an
efficient level of operating costs We are
also subject to regulation by two quality
regulators - the DWI and the EA {detaiis
of these reguiators are provided below)

Our prices and asset base are adjusted by
RPI inflation each year In certain
crcumstances we can ask for prices to be
reviewed within the five year period due to
costs associated with ‘notified stems’

or ‘relevant changes of arcumstance’
Custorner bad debt and the adoption of
private drains and sewers are included

i these categones for the current five
year period

The company earns a return on our asset
base We can generate additional retums if
we outperform Ofwat’s assumptions by
becorming more efficient i the detvery of
our capital programme, managing our
operationdl costs more effectively, and by
financing our business ot a lower cost.

Our operating performance is assessed and
benchrarked agamst the sector by Ofwat.
At the next price review there is scope to
earn additional ncorne, or suffer penalties,
based on our performance

Regulatory framework

Consumer Coundl for Water

Consurmer Council for Water (s on independent body
designed to protect the nghits of consurmers.

www cowater orguk

Drinking Water Inspectorate (DW])

The Dnnlung Water Inspectorote makes sure
companies supply water that s safe to dnnk and
complies with ait notional and European standards.
wivw diwn defro gov uk

Ervironment Agency {EA}

The Ermironment Agency s o public body set up to
protect and smprove the emaronment.

WwWw envircriment-agency gov uk

Health and Safety Executive

The Hedlth and Sofety Executive s the enforeng
outhority on health and safety law

www hse gov uk

Natural ervironment

Such as Countryside Council for Wales and
Natural England.

Ofwat

The economec regulotor for the water and seweroge
industry It makes sure thot water companses use
customers’ money efficiently and effectvely and
sets our price hrnits,

www ofwat.gov uk

The role of Severn Trent Water
Graphic
1

Water is collected

Graphic removed

2

Water is cleaned

(abstraction) Our 126 waterworks clean
We pay the Environment raw water to the highest
Agency for the water we standards making it safe
coltect from reservorrs, nvers  todrink
and underground aquifers
across our region

Graphic removed Graphic remnoved
Regulatory fromework

* Natural environment
» Environment Agency

» Dnnking Water Inspectorate

Risks (where these are currently considered Princtpal Risks,
further details provided on pages 37-40)

= We may be unable to collect ond
store sufficent water to meet
customer demand.

» Fafture of key assets rmay result
n darnage to property, npry to
people and/or dsruption to our
ability to supply our customers,
{Prancipal Risk Ref 4 and 6)

Graphic
7 removed

Networks invested
and maintained

+ Failure of key assets or processes
may resuit n a dectine n water

quality, disruption i our supply
to customers or failure to meet

’ may result n people being nured.
{Prnapal Risk Ref 4)

We are gn mvestment led
industry, and our capital
programme this year was

£474 millon, or £112 per
conpected property reflecting
ncrecsed mvestrment year on
year in our water ond sewerage
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Sevemn Trent Water - Qur business modetl

Graphuc rernoved

3

Clean water

is distributed

A 46,000 km network of pipes
and enclosed storage
reservolrs bnng a continuous

Graphuc removed

4

Customers

enjoy our services
We bilt 4 2 million businesses
and households a year
Inreturn, we provide a sofe,

11

Resks

We operate within ¢ complex legal and regulatory emaroniment as a water
and sewerage service provder n Englond ond Wales. As a result we foce @
number of nsks nctuding those associoted with possible non-compliance
wath our legal end regulatory framework and failure to meet the terms of
our requiatory contract as set out i our agreed busmess plan for 2010-
2015 We also face nsks assoaated with possible future changes n
legrstabon whach rmay result n our business plans becorming unsustaincble
{Prncipat Risk Ref 1, 7 and 8 on poges 38-40)

Graphic remaoved

5

Waste water

is collected

Our ¢ 92,000 km of sewers
collect waste water from
homes and businesses, and

Graphic removed

6

Waste water
is treated

Woste weter s carefully screened,
filtered and treated in our
1,026 works to meet stningent

supply of clean water nght to reliable supply of water and surface water from outside envircnmental standards
our custorners’ taps. the coltection of waste water properties and drains We pay the Environment
24 hours a day, 365 days Agency an annual consent
a year fee to return the now treated
water to the water system
Graphic removed Graphic removed Graphic remaoved Graphic removed
- Ofwat » Ofwat - Ofwat » Natural environment
« Heatth and Safety Executive  * Consumer Counail for Water < Environment Agency « Environment Agency

+ Dnnking Water Inspectorate

leakage
network, (Pancpal Resk Ref 5)
+ Falure of one of our key assets
coutd resedt in disrupbon to
supply to customers.
(Panopal Resk Ref 6)

networks, including finding and
fixing mere leaks and reducing the
number of supply interruptions,
Improvernents 1o our woter

ond sewage treatment plants

ond upgrades to our sewer

* Drinking Water Inspectorate

* We moay be unable to sufficently
wmprove our performance m
relation to customer senvice
n order to deliver what our
custormerns tell us they want.
{Principal Resk Ref 2}

network to reduce incidents of
sewer flooding We fund this
nvestment programme from
the profits we genercte, but also
by borowing money from the
capitat morkets

* We may be unable effectively to
ntegrate t of new
assets taken on 0s @ result of

This capatal investment 1s added
onto our asset base, called the
regulated caprtal value {or RCV)
Qur osset base also nses intine
with inflation each year

+ We may suffer operational
failure m our woste water
operotions which results m
domnoge to the local envirenment.
{Prncipal Risk Ref 3)

The returns that we generate

for shareholders on that asset
base are set by our reguiator,

Ofwat, over five year planning
cycles We canincreose these
retums by outperformance

gmmxgmlmlmm‘m‘
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Severn Trent Water

Performance

As we explain on page 9, Severn
Trent Water strives for high
standards and focuses on four key
areas - customers, people, process
and finance Having the nght people
with the night skils, using the nght
processes, enables us to offer high
quality, low cost services to our
customers This in turn drnives our
financial results

The following pages descrbe what
we delivered for our customers
duning the year, along with the
development of our peopte and
processes Severn Trent Water's
financial performance 1s explained
in the financial review, on page 33

Customers

We want to detiver the highest standards
and lowest possible prices for our
custormers Our water and sewerage bills
are the lowest on average in England
and Wales, at £311 We're also increasing
prices slower than most other
companies In2012/13, the industry
average price increase will be 5 7%,
compared to 5 0% for our customers

12

A continuous supply of quality water
We aim to delver water that’s good to
dnnk, meaning that it's safe, tastes and
looks good, and 1s always available

Although the last 18 months were the
dnest ever recorded, we avoided any
hasepipe bans or other limits on our
custorners’ water use We did this by
reacting quickly to conditions and by
effective, forward and proactive planrung
We draw our water from reservorrs, nvers
and underground equifers By making
sure we atways used the most
appropnate source, even If it was not
always the most cost effective, we
preserved water n areas where levels
were lower We improved our networks,
50 we could move water around more
effectvely, and invested in additional
equipment at our water treatment
works, so we could get water to the nght
place at the nght trme

Our water quality rernained highand
once again we achieved 99 97%
compliance with the Drinking Water
Inspectorate’s standards We continued
to delver water at the nght pressure and
significantly reduced supply interruptions
However, nterruptions are still higher
than we would ke and we expect to
reduce thern further in the corning year
To do this, we're investing in tranng,
better incident management and
further improving our network.

We continue to invest to ensure we
provide the best water quality

This includes improvements to our
biggest water treatment works at
Frankley, West Brmingham and a
major investment programme at
Bamford, Derbyshure

We're also progressing with our
catchment manogement programme,
as a key part of our water suppty
strategy We're encouraging farmers and
other large land users to change the way
they work, so they reduce therr mpact
on water resources For example, we've
developed an online nutnent budget
calculator for farmers, which allows
them to make quick and easy savings
through efficent fertitiser use If we can
help fanmers to apply fertiliser more
efficently, it soves them money and
reduces the water treatment we need
todo

Customer complaints per 1,000 properbies

2012 2011
Graphic

wroed 4,88 5./2

Properties at nsk of low pressure per 1,000 properties

2012 2011
Graphic

“10.06 0.07

First time call resolution (%)

93.8 975

Graphic
removed

Average water and sewage bill

o] £311

removed
Average customer cost per day

Graphic
removed
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Severn Trent Water - customers

Customer expenence

We recogruse that most of our
customers don't have a choce about
who supplies themn. That doesn't mean
they are not our first pnonty We
recogruse that we will not be In business
if they are not satisfied with the senace
we provide

Ofwat’s Senace Incentrve Mecharsm
(SIM) measures our customers’
expenence of dealing with us and helps
us to track our performance Our SIM
score 1s based on the number of times
customers have to contact us and

the quality of service we deliver when
they do

While we're much better than average
for the number of contacts, the quality of
our service has not been as good as it
should be We've done alot of work over
the lost year to put this nght. Areas we've
focused on include

- fixing problemns before customers have
to contact us,

» resohing problerns first time, when
they do have to contact us, and

- providing more ways to keep in touch
wath custorners, for exarnple by
making better use of web channels
and using text messages to confirm
appontments

We've also improved our bills They're

now simpler to understand and we can

add targeted messages for custorners,

letting them know about different ways

to pay or tips for saving water

It's also important to get direct feedbock
about how we're dong We're now
surveying many custormers at the end of
ther calls, asking whether thetr problem
was satved, how helpful our agent was
and for their general views of our serice
Thus process will be fully rolled out by the
muddle of 2012 and will inform us how to
do better

We are starting to see the benefits of our
actions with a continuous Increase n
SIM qualitative scores through the first
haif of 2012 and an improvement in
performance retative to other water
comparses in the final quarter of

the year

We have reduced the number of wntten
complaints by 14%, which brings us to
a record low number of complaints

This was helped by the actions we've
taken and the milder winter

13

Managing debt

We am to keep bad debts down, white
helping people who want to pay but are
struggling to do so Despite the weak
economy and nsing unemployment,
we were able to imit bad debts to 2 2%
of sales, a simnitar level to last year

We have several tanffs and schernes to
help peaple pay Dunng the year we
piloted the Together Scheme for

people with debt problerns, whereby
we match the custormer’s payrnents.
The WoterSure torff caps bills for people
with low incomes, who use large
amounts of water because of a medical
condition or because they have a big
farndly We also have a scheme called
Water Direct, which allows customers
to make payments directly from their
benefits. Dunng the year, we helped
139 peopie through the Together
Scheme, 6,347 through WaterSure

and over 42,000 through Water Direct.

The Severn Trent Trust Fund distnbutes
money to people who are finding it
difficult to pay therr bitls. We donated

£3 5 million dunng the year We're

also lookmng at ways to help vuinerable
customers more broadly, by working
with the Ctizens Adwice Bureau to advise
people about managing their money and
gve them a sustonable solution to therr
debt issues.

Engaging with customers

As we approach the next pnce review in
2014 (PR14), we'll be worlang dlosely
with custorners and other stakeholders
to find out what they want from us ond
what they're willing to pay for Thesr mput
will be o key part of the ptan we put
forward to Ofwat.

As part of this, we've created the Severn
Trent Water Forum wath representatves
from o wide range of stokeholders.

The Forum will engoge with us to help
us develop our plan to ensure we toke
occount of their views. We will be holding
workshops on issues such as dimate
change and how we manage waste
water We've dso published a document
called ‘Makung the Right Choices’,

which explains our chaltenges, the
choices we have to make and asks

for our stakeholders’ input.

Graphic removed

Making the Right Choices

During 2012, Sevemn Trent Water
witl be consulting with customers
and stakeholders on our
nvestment plans for 2015-2020
We have published a consultation
docurment, ‘Mgking the Right
Choxces’ which can be
downloaded from our website
Stakeholder workshops will be
held throughout the summer,
supported by customer research
and a wider progromme of
customer awareness and
engagement.
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‘It’s nice to be able to speak

to someone who understands
your situation and will do
everything they can to help.
The services they offer, such
as the large print bills, are
gratefully received and

very much appreciated.”

Miss B Elwell, Stourbndge custormer

14

Graphuc removed

Graphic removed
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Keeping
customers
happy

Our customers continue to benefit
from high quality drinking water,
a good service and value for money.

Graphsc removed

15

Meeting leakage targets
We have actueved our lowest
levets of leakage ever, and hove
beaten our Ofwat target of

474 Ml/d by 10 MU (2%}

This was acheved through
Improvernents to torgeting oreas
for leak detection, increases n
efficency in leckoge find,
mproved work scheduling and
mprovernents to leak repars.

Maintaining secunty

We avorded the need for usage )

restrictions (hosepipe bans)
despite the dnest 18 months on
record n the Midlands. This was
ochieved using our strategic gnd
to move water from the wetter
areas m our North and West
regions to the drer areqs, by
nstallaton of addtional pipetines
and by operating our existing
assets even more flexibly

Reduang mterruptions

We have reduced mterruptions )

over 12 hours by over 10,000
properties 10 5,223 This was
echieved through o focused
‘Always On’ prograrnme which
has delvered people, process
and technical improvernents
dunng the yeor

Reduang complaints

We have shown significant
reductions this year nduding

a reduction m Water Senice
comgptamts of cround 34%

The overcll comploint reduction
of 14% s agamst the backdrop
of greatly increased sewerage
Jobs and contacts since the
transfer of prvate droms and
sewers ta us n October 2011

Graphic removed

Lowest
levels of leakoge
achieved.

18monﬁ'ts

of the dnest
weather didn't
affect water usage

Graphic removed

10,000
fewer properties
affected by
nterruptions

Graphue removed

34%
reduction m water
service complamnts

Graphic removed
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Severn Trent Water - people

Graphic removed

Support for WaterAid

Severn Trent Water hos
continued to support WoterAxd
as its partner chanty In March
2012, o teamn of nine from Severn
Trent Water trovelled to Tanzania
to cirmb Mount Kitmanaro
raising over £30,000 for
WoterA. The team also visited
projects run by WaterAid in rurai
areqas n the country The team
come back challenged and
nspired by the expenence

"The whole tnp was amazing.
Climbing Kilimanyaro was
fantastically rewarding. We were
fortunate to see first hand the
ways m which WoterAid spends
this money We wisited o village
that now has easy access to
safe dnnking waterand o
school that now benefits from
simple yet effective santation
The difference relatvely smalt
sums of money con make to
people’s lves is armazing ”

Andrew Farbum
UK Government & Stokeholder
Engagement Manager
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People

Qur airm s to have people with the nght
skiils and the nght approach to work,
personal development and customer
focus. To encourage the behaviours we
think are important, we launched o new
Code of Conduct in September 2011
across Sevem Trent, called ‘Dong the
Right Thing, the Sevem Trent Way'

This sets out our approach to corporote
responsibility 1ssues ranging from health
ond safety, to ethics and honesty, to
delivenng excellent customer service
‘Daing the Right Thing, the Sevemn Trent
Way 1s supported by 15 group policies
and therr supporting standards and
guidance notes.

A safe and healthy workforce
Pratecting the health and safety of our
people and contractors is our number
one prionty We were pleased to have
reduced the nurnber of lost trne njunes
and can report that Severn Trent Water's
overall performance remains in the
industry’s upper quartile

Our employee survey shows that we
haove a strong safety culture This year,
95% of our people saud they were dear
about therr role and thesr responsiblity
for doing their job safely, while 89% sad
that we provided the nght support for
thern to do thesr job sofety

One example of the actions we are
toking was the launch of the Waste
Water Sernices Safety Improvement
Strategy, with the aim of eimmating all
accdents in the workplace This rvolves
12 safety improvemnent workstreams,
which are being developed through
teams of employees, ond five safety
improvernent projects, By the end of

the financial year, we had completed
five of the workstrearns, mduding site
standards and leadership behaviour, and
two of the projects - occupational road
nsk and managing contractors

We focused on hedlth and safety training
and educotion dunng the year This
induded poting the MindSafety™
behavioural traming prograrmime It
teaches people about different states of
owareness, 50 they understand why we
want them to work in certain ways and
they can take responsibility for their own
safety Attendees found the programme
changed their behawviour and made them
think more positively about health

and safety

We've also worked dosely with our
supply chain partners to make sure

we both priortise health and sofety
performance This includes ensunng
we have the sarne vision and values
focused on hedlth and safety, the nght
systems and trairung, and share lessons
about safe working

While we are nghtly focused on safety,
we also want to suppert our employees’
heglth More than 600 people attended
our wellbeing days, which induded blood
pressure, cholesterol and diabetes
checks We dlso piloted a back pan diruc
and launched a physictherapy helpline

Engaging our people

Our annual employee survey once agam
showed that our people are positive
about working for us Our overall
Engagement Index reveoled 75% of our

employees remain positively engoged
Some notable results induded

- 92% saymng they took responsibility
for ‘Doing the Right Thing, the Severn
Trent Way’,

+ 87% being happy to go the extra
mile at work, and

+ 85% understanding how therr role
contrbutes to customers’ expenence

The survey also highlighted areas where
we need to improve For example, only
39% saud that the changes we have
made over the last 12 months were well
implemented Our people also wanted
visibility of the Severn Trent Executve
Commuttee and to see that it 1s leading
the business effectively

We know that our employees often
haven't hod the chance to discuss with
the Executive Committee face to face
what we're doing and why, and that
these conversations can really help
people to connect therr role to the ams
of the business As a result, we have set
up arolling 12 month prograrmme of
discussions. The aim 15 for members of
the Executive Comrrittee to meet
around 1,500 people from dll parts of the
business in small groups, in thewr
workploces. The conversations are open
ended, so employees con osk whatever
they want and share their view of the
chaltenges and opporturities we face As
we can't meet all of our people, we're
encouroging the mvitees to talk to ther
colleagues before and after the meetings
so everyone gains from the process
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Severn Trent Water - process

New Shrewsbury office
building improves
effectiveness

In January 2012, more than 200
of our employees moved inte our
new 29,000 sq ft office building
in Shrewsbury

The layout of the mnovatve
building wos designed in
conyunction with key managers
to enable the optimal use of
office areas and collaboratve
work spaces, the best mix of
purpose-buit facilties os well as
an effectve common space ot
the heart of the bullding to
encourage tearns to meet and
share deas. The result 5 an
engaging emaronment that has
dramaticatly emproved
employees’ working experience
and created an opportunity for
them to work ot ther best

every doy

Graphic removed
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Improving our organisation

We continue to review the structure ond
orgarusation of our teams to delver
mproved efficency and effectveness.
For example, n Novemnber 2011 we
changed our operating model in Waste
Water This mvolved maving around 750
people into new teams. Eoch team
covers a smaller geographic area but
now has more responsibility for customer
service and repainng assets. Inthe run
up to the change we trained our people
50 they could work on any of our assets
m thesr area The model gves us a
platform on which to build service
Improvements

Followng our successful move to
Coventry, we refurtished our Shrewsbury
and Derby offices and adopted the same
tools and ways of working, such as
collaborative workspaces This ongoing
programime s gving our people a
modem end effective working
environment.

Developing our people

We invest heavily in training and
developing our peaple This year mvolved
a sigruficant amount of technical training,
as well os leadership development.

We continued to encourage cur pecple
to use our ‘Safer Better Faster’ approach
to continuous improverment and we
refocused our line manager training to
help them manage and engage their
teams more effectively

The tolent review process ts ongoing and
we have assessed over 600 manogers
and potential leaders this year

We're ncreasingly creating mdmidual
development plans and moving people
on our talent hst around the company

to broaden therr expenence

Our apprenticeship progromme
continues to grow, hetping young people
mto work and gnvng us the skills we'l
need i the future We currently have

81 apprentices - in customer relations,
water and waste water One of our
apprentices - Michoel Willams - won the
national EEF Outstanding Adhvevernent
by a Final Year Apprentice Award, for
mtroducing process changes that saved
money for the company by improving
efficency and reliabidity We plan

to recrutt another 20 apprentices

duning 2012

Diversity

Having the nght people means having
a surtably dverse workforce Thus year,
we focused on understanding gender
issues and conducted gender diversity
research with wormen employed by
Severn Trent Water to understand rmore
about the perceptions and expenences
of women employees This focused
particularly on issues relating to job
progression and the achievement of
semor positions. The msights from the
research will help us to improve our
policies and practices m developing
women m our orgarusation We plan to
use the same methodology to explore
ethnuc diversity n the near future, so we
can gain meore nsights nto this aspect of

our workforce composition,

Process

To detver great service to our customers
we are continuously iImproving our
processes and technology, whether it's
for treating water, monitonng our
network, or scheduling our staff

At our Mnworth Sewage Treatment
Works m Birrmingham, we're using an
anaerohic armmonum oxidation
treatment process, which is new to the
UK It'sa more efficent biological
treatment process for waste woter,
which allows us to reduce the energy
and cherrucals we use

Another UK first 1s an activated sludge
process known as HYBACS, which we're
mnstalling ot Ashbourne, Derbyshire

This techruque 1s used extensively in

the Far East and allows us to process
hugher volurnes, with much lower energy
use and on a much smaller footpnnt.
We continued to add sensors to our
telernetry system, whuch monitors the
hedith and performance of our network,
checkmng, for example, the pressure and
flow of water, water quality and reservor
levels, This gives us an earty warming of
problems, so we can proactively fix them
with runimum distuption for customers.
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Severn Trent Water - process

We also invested to exploit new and
existing features n our SAP and
telemetry systerns to delver a better
servce to our customers. SAP now
supports all our key processes and
holds our operational date dlowing
us to make better operational and
investrment decrsions We have an
ongoing prograrnme of improvernent
to increasingly explort SAP's and other
systems’ functionality to drive
performance

We have invested m gnmng our custormers
access to data from our telermetry and
SAP systems through our website,
helping our customers find out f there s
work gomg on in their area and what the
latest status is

We've also introduced a shared support
orgarusation This brings together people
from operations and information
systems, who between them understand
how our employees, technology and
processes work. Therr goal is to
continucusly wnprove, optimise and
exploit SAP and other systermns We're
now seeing step changes N our use of
the systern. For example, we've re-
engineered our process for handbing
bursts on private properties, so we can
offer quicker service

New processes have also been added to
automate operationa! fieldwork crews
SAP holds data on the skills of alt our
operational emnployees. Whena job is
raised, the systern autoratically
schedules a nearby work crew with the
nght skills to go and fix the problemn. It
also prowides thern with the information
they need, such as plans and maps, and
records the time and matenals used

Environment

Detivenng our enmironmental obligations
i1s centrol to the way we work and has a
real impact en our customers and the
cormmunities in which they live and work.
The case studies on pages 20 and 21
provide details of our rvestrment in
renewable energy
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Managing waste water

The dnest 18 months on record
contnbuted to a detenoration n our
performance in the first six months last
year Pollution incidents rose and we
suffered a higher level of sewage
treatment works breaches of consent.
We responded by mcreasing our asset
maintenance activibes, inspection
regmes and installed more remote
monitonng on our assets to help
pre-empt potential fatlures. This has
improved our performance from the
summer onwards. We afso continued
our policy of self reporting to the
Emaronment Agency, to rase our
standards and highlight areas where we
need to do better Even so, for the year as
a whole our performance fell short of the
standards we aim for There were 445
reported pollution madents (2011 353),
14 senous pollution inctdents (2011 4)
and our sewage treatment works failing
consent limit was 2 54% (2011 169%)
Our maintenance and mspection
prograrmme should deliver further
improvermnents in the corming year

Successful detvery of our mvestment
programme 1s very impostant in
delvening good service to our customers
We've invested in major schemes,
particulorty in Gloucester and
Learrungton Spa, which have improved
our network relabiity and have removed
the nsk of sewer flooding - one of the
worst service fallures that can happen to
o customer - for around 150 properties,
gordens and other areas. We've dlso tned
to minimuse disruption to our custorners
while we camed out thrs work, for
example by working with other utility
companes to reduce rogd dosures.

In addition, we have a programme to
refurbish some of our largest sewage
treatment works, which will make them
more resiient and improve nver quality

The transfer of private drains and sewers
to us on 1 October 2011 went smoothly,
adding 37,000 km to our existing

55,000 krn network, So far, we've hod

to do less repair work than we expected
and customer feedback has been good
We've deared around 12,000 sewer
blockages on the transferred assets,
which was 41% of the total blockages
deared since the transfer on 1 October
2011 We're now seeing fewer blockages
and better management of pollution
maidents on these assets. To help the
transfer, we reorgamised our supply chain
so we have fewer contractor cormpanies
looking after our assets. Our remaming
contractors hove scaled up their
operations so they can handle the
greater woridoad

Deploying water resources wisely
Severn Trent Is the only company to
hove targeted a sigruficant reduction
inieakage dunng AMPS We were
plegsed to improve our performance
agan during the year We cut leakage to
464 megalitres per day (Ml/d), compared
to 497 MI/d tast year and our target of
474 Mid

The mvestrment we've made mn SAP and
in our ‘Safer Better Foster’ approach has
helped us to improve our repair
processes, so we can fix leaks more
quickly We're also benefiting from our
mvestment in a system to help us
improve detection of leaks

Custormers also have animportont part
to play and our water efficency
programme helps them to reduce ther
usage For example, custormers can use
our website to view ther water usage
and understand where they can make
savings. We dlso offer water saving
dewvices such as gerated taps and shower
timers In addition, we work with schools
and colteges to help thern view and
reduce therr water usage, and with
social housing providers to fit woter
efficent devices

Thes work ensures our customers
continue to have among the lowest
water usage in the UK, Dunng the vear,
our custormers used an average of

125 litres per person each day, compared
to the nattonal overage of 148 litres.
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Sevemn Trent Water - ervironment

The ‘energy crop’ angerobx
digestion plant ot Stoke Bardolph
Sewage Treatrment Works.

Graphic removed
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Cutting our carbon footpnnt

We've been investing in renewoble
energy for nearly a decode Renewables
provided 23 7% of the electnaty we
needed dunng the year and we're on
track to meet our target of

30% of our electnaty by 2014/15

The ‘energy crop’ anaerobic digestion
plant next to the Stoke Bardolph Sewage
Treatment Works m Nottinghamshure s
the UK’s first on on mdustnal scale [t
converts crops nto electncity, using crops
grown on land unsuttable for food
production, and has been so successfud
that it's recerved three owards It's also
gven us valuable expenence thot is
helping us to mprove the performance
of our sludge anaerobic digestion plants

In 2013, our first iarge wind turbine will
start generoting electnaty on land next
to our Wanlip Sewage Treatment Works
In Lescestershire, with another at
Newthorpe in Nottinghamshwre due to
come on stream soon after These, and
four others currently in planning, could
generate 6% of our etectncity needs.
We're also pursuing a gas-to-gnd project,
which will allow us to provide clegned up
sewage gas to the national gnd, and we
are locking at severo! hydroelectnc

profects.

Protecting biodiversity

Severn Trent has a role in protecting and
enhanang biodiversity ot our sites or sites
affected by our activities We own or
partly manage 37 sites of special
saentific interest and work in partnership
with our tenants and other partners to
safeqguard them. We have 21 rangers
who manage our 12 public access sites
working with volunteers and
organesations like the RSPB and Wildlife
Trusts The sites prowvide the opportunity
to engage with customers whilst
enhanang and protecting the sites for
nationally and internationally mportant
species such as butterflies, water voles
ond tree sparrows.

Finance

Our business s funded by receipts from
custorner bills, by rasing money (debt)
on the capital markets, ond by
shareholders retaning equity in the
business. We aim to finance the
company m an efficient and sustainable
way By keeping finanang costs low we
can keep custormer bills low We currently
have an investment grade credit rating,
with o stable outtook. In January we
successhuly ssued a £250 milkon,

30 year bond, with an mnterest rate of

4 875%, the lowest rate we have seen
todate

Outlook

We continue to deliver on our
programmes to raise standards and drive
efficiency improvernents. We are
committed to enhancng our capital
investment pregramme and delivenng
snproved custorner service and network
performance Whilst we are seeing signs
of improvement in our SIM performance,
ndustry benchmarks have moved
forward and so must we In terms of
prospects for regutatory and ndustry
change, Severn Trent rernans at the
forefront of ndustry thinking and we
were pleased to see some of our ideas
reflected n consuttations from both our
regulator and the UK Government.

We will continute to make a positive
contnbution to the debate Throughout
our opergtions, our goal continues to be
to detver long term sustamable growth
Thus strategy, underpmned by o dear
focus on customers, people,
emaronmental performance and
shareholder value will contmue

] mmum‘smm;mm’nmmmjm‘mmlmm‘mm‘
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Water efficiency

We are working dosely with the
Ervironment Agency, sociol
housing providers, Globet Action
Plan and South Staffordshire
Water on o joint progromme,
‘Plug-In’ The aim of this
progromime Is to encourage
water and energy efficency
Through it we are educating
consumers and instaling water
effinency measures induding top
and shower flow regulators, dual
flush systemns and shower heads
n 10,000 properties

Renewables

We've been investing in
renewacble energy for nearly

a decode This year, we have
continued the growth, generating
212 GWh of electnctty from
renewable sources. This equates
to 23 7% of the electnaty that
Severmn Trent Water needs to
provde its water and woste water
services and represents another
significant step towards our target
of 30% by 2014/15 In 2013, our
first large wind turbine will start
generating electncity on land
next to our Wanlip Sewoge
Treatment Works in Leicestershire,
with another at Newthorpe in
Nottingharnshire due to come on
stream soon after These, and
four others currently in planrung,
coudd produce 6% of our
electncty needs.

10,000

properties were
instolled with water
effinency measures
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212 GWh

of electncity wos
generated from
renewable sources

Graphic removed
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Always
iInnovating

Innovation is driving operational
performance across all of our operations.

Graphic removed

The Renewable Heat Incentive
scheme aims to stimulate investment
in the supply of renewable heat

and the injection of renewable gas
(bio-methane) into the gas grid.

We can benefit from this scheme by
diverting gas away from electricity
generation and into the gas grid. This is
an emerging field with no commercial
installations in operation yet which
means an inevitable variety of technical
and requlatory challenges that have to
be negotiated for the first time. But we
are making good progress and hope to
be injecting gas in 2013.
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Severn Trent Services

Group at a glance

Severn Trent Services 1s one of the world’s leading suppliers of
water and waste water treatment solutions. We are known for
innovation, reliability, quality services and leadership in

our chosen markets.

Key strengths

» Qur bustness has a clear
strategy for growth, which
focuses on the growing
global demand for clean water
and safe, efficient waste water
treatment.

* We provide operating services
to anincreasing number of
utilities, muricipalities and
cormmercial customers in
targeted countries.

+ We are a leader in the design,
production and sale of water
purification products in high
growth markets such as
disinfection, filtration,
adsorption and marne/
offshore waste water
treatments

Where we operate

Our actwvibies are focused in four regions -
the Amencas, Europe, Middle East and North
Afnca (MENA) and Asia Pacific. Operating
Services operates in the US, UK, Ireland and
Italy Water Punfication operates in all four
regions and Analytical Services operates In
the UK.

Graphic removed

Key facts

£56.5m

order book

Graphic

2,933

Employees

Graphic
removed

asat 31 March 2012

Turnover

£332.3m

(2011 £336.1m)

Profit*

£18.0m

The industry

The market for water and waste water
products and services s large with substontict
prospects for growth in the areqs we serve
That 1s because the dnvers of the water and
waste water business, water scarcity;
population growth; cimate change, and
more stningent regulatory requirerments
remain strong.

Our business

Sevem Trent Services prowides water and
waste water treatment products ond
operating services to utilies, municipolities
and commeraat custorners in selected key
markets around the world. We focus on the
hugh growth markets and geographies where
our speafic products and senaces meet the
sigruficant needs of our customers.

We hove three pnncipat business streams

+ Water Punfication (Products) s one of the
leading global provmders of advanced
technologres products and integrated
sohutions for water ond waste water
dismfection, filtration, odsorption and
monnefoffshore waste water treatment.

+ Operating Services provdes contract
operating services to manage and mantain
water and waste water plants and networks
m selected countnes worldwide We are g
teading prowvider m the United States and
Urited Kingdom, one of the few integrated
water operators in Italy and are building o
strong presence in Ireland.

« Analytical Services operates in the UK
envionmental water and contaninated
lond testing services.
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Severn Trent Services — Group at a glance

Key strategic intentions...

Eight Key Strategic Intentions define our
strategy and set out how we intend to achieve
our objectives

1.
2.

Deliver what customers value

Establish long term contracts and
strong sales channel relationships

. Expand our global technology

programme

. Continubusly improve quality,

health, safety and environmental
performance

. Invest in strategic partnerships to

supplement organic growth

. Optimise processes and

organisational capabilities

. Continue to build a strongj,

coherent and respected brand

. Increase employee engagement

23

..delivered through our areas of focus

Severn Trent Services is one of the leading water
and waste water businesses in the world.
To achieve our strategy we focus on:

Water Purification {Products)

Municipal, commeraal, industnal and
Graphic | marine applications require water

removed | tregtrnent technologies to meet therr
disinfection, filtration and process needs.
The Water Purfication group’s portfolio of
water products are used around the
world in support of these applications.

More on Water Punfication on page 26

Operating Services

Operating Services delvers safe

Graphic | dnnking water and waste water
removed; treatment services. It i1s responsible for
the operation of more than 900
treatment facilities in the United States,
United Kingdom, Ireland and Italy.

More on Operating Senvices on page 29
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Severn Trent Services
Our business model

Our core customers are municipal utiliies
looking to sustain hegh quality standards
and to find cost efficences through
public-private partnershups

The market for water and waste water
products and senaces is sigrificartt,

with good prospects for long term sales
and profit growth due to fundamental
dnivers. water scaraty, population
growth, cimate change and more
stangent requlatory requirements.

Our strategy s to introduce new
technologies into existing rmarkets,

such as our BALPURE® ballast water
treatrment technology, as well as
growing our Operating Services business
in the US and Europe where we operate
more than 900 fociliies and have

£205 milion revenue

We target a return on capital in excess of
the regulated water business, commonly
above 10%

Key to our services

® Fitration
Areas where ST offers filtrabion products/
services for all or part of the process cycle

® Disinfection
Areas where 575 offers disinfection
products/services for all or part of the
process cycle

®

Operating Services
Areos of the process cycle where STS offers
controct operations

Our websites

www severntrentsennces.com
www severntrentdenora.com
www stsoperatingservices.co uk
www stsanatybeal.com

Providing Operating Services
and Water Purfication Products to’

Graptuc removed
1

Municipal Water

Treatment

Severn Trent Services provides a multiple barner
treatment approach incorporating filtration,
disinfection and process solution technologies for
vanous municipat water treatment applications

In oddiron, we provide contract operations for
municipal water treatment faclitres i the US,
UK Ireland and Italy

Graphuc removed Graphc removed

Disinfection @ @

Product:
Advonce™, AQUAWARD®, Copital Controts®, Chioe-o-Vac®,
Chioromatic™, ClorTec®, MicroOynasmics®

Fltration Q0

Was Omrs-SORB™, SORB 07™/05™/338,
TETRA® DespBed™, rmApm@ UAT™

Seawater and Separation ® ©

Bayw.nde‘E!! Capital Cortrols® Clorfec® Higgins lnog""
MicroDynamics®: Omni-Fow™, Omni-SORB™, SORB SORBOT“‘
TETRA FurmeFlow®: 'I'EI'RAOLPBlOdiS"“

Assessment & Rectificotion, Water Regulations Complionce,
Woter Sompling & Anolysis

Risks

= We may be unable to collect and store sufficent water to
meet custormer dernond,

» Hozomous processes may result n our people beng myured.
{Prncapal Risk Ref 4)

* Requiatory or polibcal chonge may leod to decrecsed dermand

for our serices.
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Severn Trent Services - Qur business model

Graphic removed
2

Municipal Waste
Water Treatment

Severn Trent Serwices prowides a multiple bamer
treatment opproach incorporating fitration,
disinfection and process solution technologies
for vanous municipal waste water tregtment
applications

In addition, we provide contract operations for
munictpal waste water treatment focilities in the
US, UK, Treland ond Italy
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Graphuc removed
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Industrial

Sevem Trent Services offers a range
of disinfection, filtration and process
soluttons for a suite of industnal
water and waste water applications
In addition, we prowide design, build
and contract operations for water
and waoste water treatment facilities
for a vanety of industnal segments
in the US, UK, Ireland and Italy

4 Graphic removed

Marine

Severn Trent Services offers o range
of dsinfection, filtration and process
solutions for mame and offshore
water and woste water applications

Graphic removed Graphic rermnoved Graphic removed Graphuc removed

Primary Treatment ® Process Water© @ Electrochlorination @

Product: Product:
Secondary/Biological Treatment ® ® O o e e e erma® 0T » SANILECS., SEACLOR®
TETRA® SAF, Amphidrome, TETRA® Colx 97 Loop'™, UAT™, UttraDyriarmics Desalingtion ®

Product:
. Cooling Watereo e SANILEC®, SEACLOR®, UAT™, LitraDyncmics®
Tertiary/Advanced Treatment @ © ortec® Mari
Cl:ntr'r.iso Ta EST™,

m , TETRA® Denite®, TETRA® NSAF, TETRA® M \ SANILECS, SEACLORE, Mun‘tne Sewerage @

Shortat-NRT™, TETRA® SNART®

Final Treatment UV/Chlor Disinfection ® ®

Product:

Capitol Controts®, ClorTec®, MiroDynamics®

Services:

Woste Woter Fodlity & Maintenance (O&M), Woste Water

& Build, Industnol Network Repatr, Mantenance &
Renewdl, Project Finance Arrangements, Studge Treatrment & Disposal,
Wirste Water Sampling &

Risks

» Fatture of treatment processes may resuit n emvaronmenitol
darmage and reguiatory non-complbance.

= Reguiatory or poliboal change may lead to decreased demand
for our senaces.

= Hozardous processes may result in our people beng myured.
{Pnnaipal Risk Ref 4)

Services:
Severn Trent Services provides o full ronge of
expertrse from the individual aspects of water/

waste water utility monogement to the
of integroted woter/waste water

provson

services for o vanety of dients, indluding:
+ Litilithes

» Public Sector

« Estates ond Fodlibes Manogement

* UKMoD

« Devetopers

= Dormestx Customers

Risks

« Fature of products or treatrment processes
rmyresdmmnytopegplﬁ
mcurplhtemn:palﬁkefﬁ

Dmmmnﬂweglobal&mydumnny
npoctwtcbi!ltymmeetcustmwr

MARINER OMIPURE® Series M55, GMNIPURE™ &
OMNIPURE™ Senes 55, SAMLECO SEACLOR®,

UAT™, ur.rnwnmicsd’

Ballast Water Treatment @

Product:
BALFURE®

Risks

« The Intellectuat Property n our key
pndmtsrmybemedbygrgemm
decreasedderra'ndr}:ywpmdmts.
» Competitors may enter the market
leading to decreosed dernand for our
products and senaces.
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Severn Trent Services

Performance

As we explain on pages 22 and 23,
Severn Trent Services focuses on
Water Punfication (Products) and
Operating Services to provide water
and waste water treatment
products as well as providing
contract operations such as
managing water treatment plants
on behalf of our customers and
environmental testing services

We look to enhance our products
and contract operations to improve
our effectiveness and efficiency,
develop end lounch new
technologies; move new and
existing products into new
terntones, ond expand the scope
of our Operating Services

The following pages describe how
we performed during the year,
along with detaits of our approach
to continuous iImproverment.

1 Before excepiionol dems,

Severn Trent Services had a challenging
start to the year, with econormic and
operating conditions in many of our
markets rnpacting negatively onboth
turnover and profit. The second half saw
animproved performance and while
markets reman challenging, the
business is well positicned to take
advantage of longer term growth drivers
In2011/12 revenue was £332 3 milion,
growth of 0 6%, on a constant curency
basis, driven by ncreased

Services sales in UK and Ireland markets
PBIT! (profit before interest and tax}

was £18 0 million, o decline of

25 6% on a constant curency basts,
due to investments in business
development, a change in product

mux in our Water Punfication dwision
and competitrve pressures

At the end of the year we made two
significant management changes with
the appointment of Martin Kane as
Chef Executive Officer, taking over from
Len Graziano who retwed, and he was
Joined by our new Chuef Financiol Officer,
Stephane Bouwvier

Water Purification
(Products)

Econoric conditions in our markets were
mixed dunng the year In Fiftration, which
accounts far 32% of Products turnover,
the US saw lirmited investrment by tocal
rmursctpalibies due to their weaker
finances The man driver of demand s
the ongomg regulotion of ervronmental
and quality standands. So, many
municipalibies struggling with financiod
pressures have chosen to delay making
upgrades and improvernents not antical
to achieving these standards Inthe
mdustnal market, sales grew year on
year due to higher dernand from the
steel industry

Emerging markets such as Asia Paafic
and the Middle East and North Afnca
(MENA) grew, and in the UK the second
year of the requlatory cycle saw water
comparues’ capital mvestrment
programmes ramp up, meaning dernand
for our fitrabion products was robust.

In Disinfection, which accounts for 68%
of Products turnover, actamty in the Guif
of Mexico increased due to the iftmg of
the drilling ban and strong ol pnces.
Ths tn turn increased demand for our
sewage treatrment and disinfection
products m that segrnent. In MENA

and Asia Pacific, investment i power
and water projects contributed to
growth in demand for our ClorTec®
electrochlonnation product.

Egypt remains a key target market

for mdustnal water treatment products,
but poliical uncertainties and avil
unrest have deloyed investment and
thus dampened demand

Savings In the supply chain helped
reduce costs and asststed tn combating
competitive prniang pressures.

In the manne market, we recewved Type
Approval for our full tine of BALPURE®
ballost water treatrment products n
October 2011 Interest n this product
line was greater than expected

with recorded orders of £5 million.

Orders were recerved from vanous
shipyards and ship owners, induding
Greenway Shipping ond Sasake
Shupbuilding We have a pipeline of
projects that supports our ambitious
growth targets To sustam this growth,
dunng the year we mvested in establishing
adedicated BALPURE® sales organssation.
We will contmue to develop our channels
to market, with additonal investment

anticipated for the coming year
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‘Greenway Shipping chose the
BALPURE® system because of its
technical features and Severn
Trent De Nora’s long history of
water treatment in the marine
industry. We strongly believe
Severn Trent De Nora will support
us throughout the barge’s
expected lifespan of 30 years.’

Trym Gade Lintoft Greenway Shipping

sW%mm;@a'mmlmm,mm|

Expanding
our markets

We are successfully introducing our
products into a number of key markets
in Asia, China and Europe.

SIUSUIIIONS JoouDLY AUDGLIO)
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BALPURE®

The BALPURE® systern has gained
headway globally armonyg larger

vessels requinng a reliable ballast Gra remaoved
water tregtrment solution, phuc Graphuc removed
Smce its nitial Type Approval
in July 2011, BALPURE® was .
selected for use across different 50,000+ ships

vessel types, attesting to its requinng ballast
flexibility ond sutobilrty for the water tregtment
diverse and dernanding marnne systems
market. The BALPURE® system s

chosen over competing vendors smoved
due to its robust and proven Graphuc
electrotytic dsinfection

technology perfected by £21.3 billion

ggvem Tr;n;f:e nf_\'n"rﬁ :‘::d estmated moarket
years Industnes. BALPURE® volue to 2020

has been chosen by ship

operators and yards for tts

treatment approach, low power
consurnpbion ond low
mamtenance requirements.
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Developing
relationships

Severn Trent Services’ business with
Costain, C2C (Coast to Coast Water and
C2C Services), is delivering operations
and maintenance for the UK MoD’s
water and waste water assets as part
of a 25 year, £1 billion contract.

To date, C2C has exceeded leakage reduction
targets, upheld environmental performance,

and invested in assets and crown fire standards.
Behind these headlines are hard working

teams managing the day to day operation and
maintenance of the MoD assets, providing @ 24-7
service They continually ensure that the contract
requirernents are met, and customers receve the
appropnate level of service.’

Defence Infrastructure Orgarusation (DIO), Aquatnne, UK MoD
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Project Aquatnne

Sevem Trent Services' business
with Costain, C2C, has been
worlking with the Minsstry of
Defence (MoD) under Project
Aquatnne since 2005, prowding o
fully managed sennce to operate,
maintan and improve nearly
5,000 water and waste water
assets across 1,300 stesin
England. C2C has built a strong
relationship with the MoD
establishing a safe, efficent, and
responsve semce ocross this
wide geogrophy (2C manages
over 7,100 megalitres of woter,
takes around 69,000 water
samples ond processes over
17,000 bills o year This year it
has reduced average monthly
leakege across the MoD estate
by over 250 megalitres, which 15
equnvaient to over 100 Olyrnpic
swimming pools, and with the
mstallaton of a highly accurate
meterng system with telemetry

to C2C headquorters, both parties

con check progress n an instant.
Thanks to the success of
Aquatnne, the MoD and s
contractors now appoint C2C to
carry out water and waste water
services work outside of the
controct, where MoD “Value for
Money’ tests have been proved.

Graphucs removed

1 1 years ahead
C2C actueved the UK
Government’s MoD
target to cut woter
consurmption by
25% by the year
2020n 2009,

11 years eardy

Graphic rermoved
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Sevemn Trent Services ~ Operating Services
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Operating Services

Operating Services {05) revenues were
£204 5 million, growth of 3% ona
constant currency basis, compared to
the previous year The colendar year
2011 waos challenging for our US region
whuch accounts for 51% of OS revenues
The lagging effects of the recession
resulted i constraned muricpal
budgets and the loss of sorme small
contracts taken back n house by
murapalhes, although the total
number of contracts remamed broadly
stable The US market waos flat overall,
aithough we mamtained our market
share We have focused our business
developrment efforts accordingly, but we
do not expect market conditions to
change significantly in 2012 All of the
basic market drvers for public-private
partnerships remain strong - regulatory
compliance, cost control necessitated by
shrnking murucipal budgets, human
resources managerment, nfrastructure
Investrment requirements, need for
technicat resources, transfer of nsk,

ond safety concems. Our investment in
business development began to pay

off in the second half of the year, as we
won several projects in new states

such as Georgia and improved our
opportunity pipeline

As noted in the half year results, politeal
and econormic uncertanty mpacted our
Italion business whuch represents 16%
of 0S revenues, White the business is
profitable and cash generative, the
mpact of the economic ensis m Italy

in the auturnn of 2011 hampered

the efforts of dll partners to agree a
refmancing package for part of ocur
business. Trus led us to toke o provision
against our econamic exposure tn this
assocate company The political
situation also stafled the move of any
further regional water comparues,
knawn as ATOs, from the public to the
private sector

However, project growth n the UK and
Irelond exceeded our expectations,
drrven by new contracts wans, nduding
a five year controct to design, build and
operate waste water treatment for a
mayor European food manufacturer
worth £2 0 milkon, and a four year water
hygiene contract worth £2 0 milion with
alarge London borough councl

Analytical Services

Thus has been a very challenging year for
Analytical Seraices. The Dnnking Water
Inspectorate publshed its report on the
results of tts investigation mto aspects of
the services provded at our Bndgend
Loboratory No financial penalty was
imposed and as a resutt of this report no
further labiity has ansen. Low levels of
actrty inthe UK economy led toa
lower level of soll analysis work for

the construction market, white the
Woter Fromework Directive contrbuted
to hugher volumes for analysis.

We improved our operational efficiency
dunng the year through mnvestment in
instrurnenits and an improved project
management process. Towards the end
of the year and earty in the new finanaal
year we have been informed that certan
contracts from utilities comparues will
not be renewed and will be taken backin
house This will significantly reduce the
size of this business in the future with a
greater balance of commeraal versus
utility work,

Continuous improvement
Ervironment

We understand the need to find
innovative ways to reduce our
ervironrmental impact and to help our
customers do the same We do this by
carefully managing our resources, waste
water discharges and treatment sites,
and by developing new technologies
Several of our businesses are certified
under 150 14001 2004, the mternational
standard for envronmental
management systems, which we

use to manage and mnirmse our
enviranmental impact. For the fourth
year in a row, our US Operating Serwices
business completed site energy
management plans for three major
plonts. These help us to determene

the most energy efficent treatment
Processes.

Many of our products and senices
help our customers to iImprove

their environmental performance
and to operate maore efficently

The Enwronmental Business Joumal
recognised us for the range of new
technologies we have introduced over
the past year, induding morgarics
removal systemns, BALPURE®, and a
systern to control chermical feed n
water and waste water applications
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Severn Trent Services - people

People, health and safety

Severn Trent Services ended the finanaal
year with a loss trme injury (LTI) acadent
frequency rate (LTI per 100,000 hours
worked) up 9% on the previous year,
although an improvement in
performance was seen dunng the
second half of the year

We need to recrut and develop o
talented and motvated workforce and
prowide thern with a safe and rewarding
place to work. We were therefore
delighted that our employee
engagement survey showed that the
majonty of our employees (69%)

are proud to work for us, and that we
outperformed many other industry

and country benchmarks

Grven our strategy to embed health,
wellbeing and sofety in all areas of our
busimess, we were pleased that our C2C
and Metenng Services businesses in the
LK once ogan receved Gold Awards
from the Royal Soceety for the Prevention
of Acadents. These awards recogrise
effectrve health and safety management
systems. The continuous mprovement
of our management systems is paying
off, with our UK, Ireland and Italan
Operating Services businesses working
through the year with no lost time
injures Overdall Severn Trent Services
ended the financial year with an LTI
acadent frequency rote of 0 36 We're
also shanng lessons and best practice
with Severn Trent Water For example,
we're introducing the MindSafety™
behavioural traiming prograrmme whuch
Severn Trent Water introduced this year
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Outlook

The medium term outlook for Severn
Trent Services & positive, driven by the
fundarmentals of population growth,
water scarcity, and regulation, although
there remain short term challenges.
Our Water Punfication business will
target growth in emerging markets,
although European and US markets

will remamn challenging In Operating
Senvices, dlthough the US utitity
outsourcng market remains flat we are
in o favourable postion on several new
projects, and we are investing to extend
our geogrephic reach and support our
longer term growth. In the UK and
Irelond we aimn to capture addrtional
opportunities in both controct operations
and the design, build and operate (DBO)
rmarkets. Overall we expect addtional
costs of around £2 mitlion in 2012/13
from ongoing mvestment in new
business opperturities across Severn
Trent Services to position ourselves for
future growth.

Graphuc removed

Get the World Moving

We were dlso pleased with the
resuts of our commutment to
improve heaith through the
Global Corporate Challenge,

@ 16 week virtual walling joumey
amund the world, We had

735 emptoyees toking port.
Afterwards, §9% sad t improved
thetr health and 82% thought

it mcreased office mordle

We also gave 735 children the
chance to particpate in the
Global Children's Challenge
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Looking forward

Severn Trent 1s committed to helping
shape the future of the woter
industry so it i1s better able to meet
future challenges.

In 2010 we publshed the first of our
‘Changing Course’ documents settng out
our contnbution to the debate on the
future of the industry We have been
encouraged by how many of these ideas
were reflected in recent UK Govenment
and Ofwat publications

InDecember 2011, the UK Government
published ‘Water for Life’, its Water White
Paper setting out its strategic viston for
the water industry We welcome the
objectives and strategic direction of

the White Paper We are particularty

encouraged by the White Paper’s support

for water trading, upstrearmn competition
and catchrnent management. We also
welcome the UK Government's strong
and exphicait acknowledgement of the
need to mantain the confidence of
mnvestors.

Earlier in May, Gfwat published ‘Future

price bimits - staterment of principles’

setting out how t proposes to regulate
the mdustry in the future We welcome
this document and look forward to
working with Ofwaot ond others to
achueve the best possible outcomes

for our stakeholders

In terms of general panciples set out

in ‘Future pnce limits’, we particutorly

support.

+ Ofwat’s overall objectrves of cregting
0 more targeted, proportionate and
appropnate regulatory framework
wiuch focuses on the most important
outcornes,

« the amm of reducing the requlatory
burden and a move to a more
targeted, nisk based approach for the
next price review; and

+ moaore mvolvement from custormer
groups in the pnce setting process

We were also pleased to see the strong

encouragement by Ofwat for water

trading, building on the policy direction
set by murusters in the White Poper

We will continue to work constructively

with the UK Government, our regulators

and others to help shape the water
industry so t can meet future challenges.
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The challenges for the next 20 years
The challenge of the last 20 years wos
ensunng higher qualty The challenges
for the next 20 will be no less dermonding,
with dimate change putting resdience
and secunty of supply at the top of

the agendo

‘Water for Life’ emphasises the need

for making the true soaal, economic
and ervronmentat cost of water wisible
We thmk that's nght. The UK has a
growing water scarcity problem,
particularly i the south and east,

whuch will affect everyone over the

next two decades. We alt have a part

to play m mantairung supplies and
delvenng high standards

We're particutarly pleased that the White
Paper supports more focus on network
mterconnection and water trading, with
the Ermronment Agency chollenging
comparues’ Water Resource Management
Plans where altemative water sources
are avaitable Apphied effectively, this wall
help to correct the UK's supply-demand
imbalance and increase water trading
Mowing water across areas should be
cheaper and have less environmental
mmpact than curent practices, which
ncrease carbon emssions and copital
mtensive local nvestment,

We're dlso pleased to see support for

the trading of abstroction licences.
Change in this sigruficont area needs

full consultation, so the UK Government’s
tmetable 1s sensible, with the new
regime expected to start in the rmud

to late 2020s.

The encouragement to reduce pollution
through catchment management,
mstead of expensive ‘end of pipe’
solutions, 1s also welcome We're keen
to share our expenenice of this over the
last few years

Taken together, these mitiatves should
impsove the UK's resiience to drought
and water scarcity, while reducing
carbon emissions. There are atso possible
incentves for water comparues to reduce
consumption and for the sustamnable
‘econormuc level’ of leakage calculation

to be revisited.

Grophics removed

Changing Course

In April 2010 we published
Changing Course, a report settng
out six proposals to secure a
sustanable future for the water
industry Since then, the report
has contributed to o wide-
ranging policy and regutatory
debate, and our proposals for
water trading were taken forward
in the UK Government’s Water
White Paper, ‘Water for Life’
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Looking forward

The customers' role

Custorners have o key role n reducing
water use The industry needs to change
the way that customers think about and
value water, and encourage them to
use less.

We're pleased that the White Paper rules
out unversal metenng Metermg must
make sense in the context of an area’s
supply and dernand balance, and our
expenence shows that it's more effectve
alongside behawvioural change

Affordobility s clso a key theme and
there's no doubt that customers want
value for money Bills could be lower if
the mdustry were to tackle bad debts
and follow the White Paper's principles,
which emphasise catchment
management and smarter
environmental solutions.

Still rmore work to do

There are aspects of “Water for Life’ that
we like but that need further wark, to
keep regulation clear and predictable

There's no doubt that the sector will
need to Invest significant sums and will
rely on the capital rmarkets for financing
The UK Government recognises the need
to reassure mvestors cnd has said that
reforrns will be evolutionary, rather than
revolutionary It has also avoided
fundamental structural change, such as
legolly separating comparues’ retail
operations Even so, there are areas
where we need to move cautiousty and
in full consultation with all stakeholders.

One of the key talking points s the shuft
towards more competition. While the
UK Government has ruled out retail
competition for domestic customers, it
will take long overdue steps to improve
retail competition for business
custorners. We have postioned Severn
Trent Senaces for new opportunities in
this market and expect that competrtion
will be largely around service nnovation
and not just pnce
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Scrapping the ‘cost prnaple” could
promote competiion but it needs to be
replaced with something more sensible
We would like to see Gfwat working with
the Office of Far Trading to design a
better access price systern, and not
rushing to a conclusion that risks
passing the cost to domestic custorners
This may mean waiting to abolish the
cost prinaiple from low and not leaving
the industry n lmbo Changes to the
Water Services icence to mtroduce
upstream competition should also be
tregted with caution, In case it's seen

as weakening the fundamentol
business model

The case for change has been made
In summary, the cose for change has
been made and the direction s set.
"Water for Life’ 1s the start of a process of
breaking down the sector's ngidity, by
creating space for competition and
allowing more flewbility, so we can meet
the challenges of dimate change,
offordability and corbon reduction As an
industry, we should get bebund tt and
work out the best outcomes

Sustainable financing

The water industry has been irnvesting
heavily to renew ageing infrastructure,
to meet growing demand and to delver
environmental improvements Much has
been actueved, but significant further
mnvestment 1s needed

At the same time, public sector finances
are stretched and there s growing
camnpetition for iruted private sector
funds that can be used to invest in
infrastructure

Against this backdrop it s essenbial
that the financial structure of the
comparues n the sectors enables
finance for the future mvestment
programme to be raised, when
required, and at reasonable cost

Up to now most of the addrtional finance
that has been needed to fund therr
growing asset base has been rased by
borrowing and many companies have
even reduced ther equity fimanang

We thunk that thus fmanang model
cannot be relied on indefinitely

There are nsks m highly geared finanoal
structures gnd there may be lirruts to the
capacity of the debt market to continue
ta provide low cost finance In oddition,
one company getting into finanaal
difficulties could hove long term impacts
on the fingncial market’s confidence in
the regulatory framework and its
assessment of sk m the utility sectors

The financial and banking cnsis in 2008,
the credit cqrunch that followed, and
more recently the sovereign debt cnsts
and assoaated turmod i financal
markets all underiine that there may be
benefits frorn a lower nsk approach to
financing in the sector, in which not all
future finonce 1s raised from borrowing

Sevem Trent has worked with Netional
Gnd to exarmine how to make the
finanang of the utility sector more
sustanable i the longer term. We think
that action needs to be taken to
encourage additional equity fmanang,
rather than waiting for problems to
develop We will shortly be publishing a
report proposing modest but mportant
evolutionary change
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Financial review

Group financial performance

We have sought, since the start of the financial crsis in 2008, to
retain a cautious wew on management of our cost base and
finanaing At Severn Trent Woter we were pleased to see that
the ablty of our customers to pay ther bills did not see any
senous detenoration, and indeed our level of bad debt charges
improved m the year as we continue our proactive efforts in
this area Costs rernan a key focus and while we saw increases
in environmentat taxes and other charges we do not control,
our performance on controlled costs was satsfactory

Access to long term secure financing in these economic
conditions has remained a key focus and our actions over the
last year reflect this We renewed our five year £500 million
revotving credit facility (RCF) with 11 banks and issued a 30 year
stering bond at 4 875%, the lowest rate we have seen to date
We called m early £150 million of our bonds due for redemption
in 2014, the year of the next pnce review for Severn Trent Water,
a tme whuch traditionally hos been difficult for requiated water
companies to refinance m public bond markets. This latter
action resulted in o one off finance charge of £16 5 mifllon m
the year but corsiderably reduces the nsk of not being able to
refinance our bonds that were due in 2014

PBIT 15 profit before interest and tax, underlymng PBIT s PBIT
exduding exceptional tems as set out n note 8

Group turnover was £1,770 6 milion (2011 £1,711 3 million),
an mcrease of 3 5% over last year

Undertying group PBIT decreased by 2 9% to £504 2 million
(2011 £519 1 millon} The primary factors affecting undertying
PBIT are descnbed n the commentary on Severn Trent Water
and Severn Trent Services below

There were net except:onal charges of £50 9 million
(2011 charges of £21 4 millon). Group PBIT decreased 5 6%
to £465 8 milkon (2011 £497 7 million)

Severn Trent Water

Turnover in Severn Trent Water increased by 4 9% in 2011/12,
to £1,457 5 millon Sales prices were increased by inflation

from 1 April 2011 whuch gave nse to an increase in turnover of
£73 1 million. Consumption from metered customers wos lower
year on year reducng turnover by £10 5 rrulion. New growth
and meter optants mcreosed turnover by £0 2 mullion ond

there were other increases amounting to £4 9 million

Undertying PBIT was down by 0 7% on the same penod last
year, to £500 0 millon Direct operating costs increosed by

£32 5 milion (see betow), there was an mcrease in infrastructure
renewals expenditure of £32 0 milllon and depreaation
mcreased by £7 5 millklon tincluding £3 7 million n respect

of the early retirernent of an expenmental studge dryer

Employment costs ncreased by 2 1% to £202 4 milbon. Hired
and contracted costs mcreased by £36 1 rmilbon to £155 6 milion
partly as a result of Inaeased leakage detection and reparr work
performed by sub-contractors and olso due to £2 9 milbon of
costs relating to private drains and sewers {PDaS) Raw matenals
and consurnables at £46 8 millon were 1 3% higher than the
same penod in the pnor year Bad debts were 9 8% lower

at £30 3 million, representing 2 2% of turnover {2011 2 3%)

An increase of only £1 3 million In power costs to £51 8 mifllon
reflected the success of our strategy of fixing these costs
through our supply contract and by using energy swaps.

Quas: taxes, which compnse rates, service charges and the
Carbon Reduction Cemmutrnent (‘CRC’) levy, iIncreased by

£13 5 midbion to £167 6 millon, mainly due to the introduction
of the CRC. Cther operating costs decreased by £2 9 milion

to £44 O milhon Labour and related overheads capitalised at
£76 8 million were £16 9 milion hugher than i 2010/11, mainty
due to the higher level of caprtal expenditure in 2011/12

Dunng the finonaal year, Severn Trent Water invested

£474 2 mithion (UK GAAP after deducting grants and
contnbutions) (2011 £405 3 million) in fixed assets and
maintconmg and improving its infrastructure network. Included
in this total was net infrastructure renewals expenditure of
£128 9 milllon (2011 £96 9 mitlion}, charged to the income
statement under IFRS

Severn Trent Services
Increcse/
2012 2011  (decrecse)
£m £m %
Tumover
Services as reported ) 3323 3361 (1 1%)
Impact of exchange rate
fluctuations i - (59
In constant currency 3323 330.2 06%
Increasef/
2012 2011 {decrease)
£m £ %
Underlying PBIT i
Servicesasreported 180 257 (300%)
Impact of exchange rate
fluctuations ) - (12) i
In constant currency 180 245 (26 5%)

In Severn Trent Serices, some actvities saw Improvements

in the second half of the year However, looking forward the
scale of our actmities n Analyhical Services will be reducing
significantly Also the macro econormic outlook has detenorated
in Spain and Italy We have therefore, os required by [AS 36,
reviewed the underlymg forward looking assumptions
supporting the camying value of the goodwill In these busmesses
and adjusted goodwill values to lower levels More details are
provided in the excepbional terns section overleaf

Reported turnover in Severn Trent Services was £332 3 rilion
in 2011/12, a decrease of 1 1% versus the pror year, and
reported underlying PBIT decreased by 30 0% to £18 0 million,

After adjusting for the impact of exchange rate fluctughions
tumover on a like for ke constant cumency basis was up

0 6% and undertying PBIT measured on the same basis was
down 26 5%.
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Finanaial review

Operating Services

Tumover for the year was £204 6 million, an increase of 3.2%
compared to the pnor year on a constant currency basis.

In the UK new contract wans and increased actmty on our
C2C contract delvered revenue growth but this was offset by
contract losses in the US and lower actvity in Italy

Water Purification

Tumover for the year was £97 3 million, a decrease of 5 4%
compared to the pnor year on a constant currency basis as

US market conditions remiained difficult and in Europe sales
rernomned flat.

Analytical Services

Tumover for the year was £30 4 million, an incregse of 4 1%
Towards the end of the year and early in the new finanaal year
we have been informed that certain contracts from utilities
companes will not be renewed and will be taken back m house
Management of this business s developing a plan to reduce the
scale of the business accordingly

Corporate and other

Corporate overheads amounted to £15 6 million (2011

£13 0 million) Our other businesses generated anundertying
profit of £0 2 mllion (2011 loss of £0 6 mullion) and there were
exchange gamns n Corporate of £0 1 mullion (2011 £1 1 miltion)

Exceptional items

There were net exceptional charges in the year to 31 March
2012 of £50 9 milkon (2011. £21 4 miton) including exceptionat
operating costs of £34 4 million (2011 £21 4 millon) which are
described in further detal below and exceptiona! finance costs
of £16 5 million ansing on the early redemption of debt.

Exceptional operating costs induded

« costs ansing from Severn Trent Water's programme to
restructure and realign the business which resulted nan
exceptional charge of £11 5 million (2011 £13 0 milkon),

+ exceptional provisions in Severn Trent Services of £23 1 million
including £21 5 milion against our econarmic nterests m SII,
an associate company in [taly, as previously reported,

» impairrments of £22 9 millon were recorded aganst the
carmying vatue of goodwill compnsing
- £12 0 million ogainst our UK Laboratones business to

recogruse the smaller scale of the business gong forward,
and

- £10 9 million aganst our businesses n Italy (£5 7 milon}
and Spain {(£5 2 millilon} egainst a more cautious backdrop
for growth of these Eurozone countries, and

« an exceptional credit ansing from the ogreement to close the
group’s defined benefit pension schemes to future occarual
with effect fromn 31 March 2015 Thes resulted in exceptional
credits of £21 8 million in Sevem Trent Water and £1 3 milhion
i Severmn Trent Services.
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Net finance costs

The group’s net finance costs before exceptional tems were
£229 0 milion, compared to £230 & million in the pror year

The refinancing exercise referred to under Treasury
maonagernent and liquidity resutted in exceptional finonce
costs of £16 5 milion on the early redernption of debt.

Total finance costs were £245 5 milion (2011 £230 6 million)

The effective interest rate, Inctuding index linked debt,
for 2011/12 was 6 4% (2011 5 6%) The cashinterest rate
was 4 9% (2011 5 0%)

Gains/(losses) on financial instruments

The group uses financial denvatives solely to hedge nisks
associated with its normat business actmities inctuding

= exchange rate exposure on borrowangs denorrinated in
foreign currenaes,

+ mterest rate exposures on floating rate borrowings, and
+ exposures to increases in electnaty prices.

Accounting rules generally require that these denvatives are
revalued at each balance sheet date and, unless the strict
critena for cash flow hedge accounting are met, the changes in
value are taken to the incorme statement. If the nsk that 1s being
hedged does not impact the income statement in the same
pencd then an accounting mismatch anses from the hedging
actrvities and there Is a net charge or credit to the income
statement.

Owver the lives of the denvatives, these mismatches are expected
to net out, Furthermore, the changes in value that are recorded
dunng the Ives of the denvatves do not represent cash flows

Therefore the group presents adjusted eamings figures that
exclude these non-cash iterms An analysss of the amounts
charged to the income statement in the penod s presented in
note 12 to the financial staterments.

Profit before tax

Undertying group profit before tax decreased by 4 6% to
£275 3 milion (2011 £288 6 mullion) Group profit before tax
was £156 7 million (2011 £253 0 mullion)

Taxation

The total tax charge for the full year was £17 7 million (2011
£21 S milion) Current tax represented a charge of £60 5 mullion
(2011 £32 1 milbion) mduding credits relatng to adjustments
to pnor year computations of £8 7 milkon (2011 £34 4 million)
Deferred tax (see note 26) was a aredit of £78 2 million (2011
credit of £53 & mullion} including an exceptional credit of

£69 1 milton (2011 £67 7 mulron) ansing from the reduction
i corporation tax rate from 26% to 24% with effect from

1 April 2012

The effective rate of current tax, excluding pnor year charges
and exceptional tems, catculated on profit before tox,
exceptiondl iterms and gans/{losses) on fmanaal nstruments
wos 25 7% (2011 24 4%)

Going forward, we expect the effective current tax rate for
2012/13 to be in the range of 24% to 26%.
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Financxal review

Profit for the penod and eamings per share

Profit for the penod was £174 4 mitlion (2011 £274 5 million)
Adjusted basic eamungs per share (before exceptional iterns,
gans/{losses) on finanaiat instruments and deferred tax) were
889 pence (2011 105 6 pence) {see note 15) Basic eamings
per share were 72 5 pence (2011 115 2 pence)

Cash flow
2012 2m
£m fm
Cash generated from operatiors 7259 7530
Net capitcd expenditure (3512) {399 5)
Net interest pad (2104) {1803)
Tax {pad)/receved (720) (324)
Other cash flows {10) (15)
Free cash flow 913 1393
Dradends (159 0) {169 4)
Net 1ssue of shares 24 27
Change in net debt from cash flows (653) {27 4)
Non cash movermnents (337} {800)
Change in net debt (990 {107 4)
Net debt 1 Aprl {3,8688) (3,7614)
Net debt ot 31 March (39678) (3,8688)
Net debt compnses.
Cash and cash equivalents 2951 3152
Bank overdrafts 04 -
Cross currency swaps hedging debt 1359 1604
Bark loans {852 5) {846 8)
Other loans (3.3269) (3,2309)
Finance legses {219 0) (266 7)
(3,9678) (3,868 8)

Cash generated from operations was £725 9 million
(2011 £753 Omilion) Capital expendrture net of grants
and proceeds of sales of fixed assets was £351 2 million
(2011 £399 5milion) Net interest paid increased to
£210 4 milkon (2011 £180 3 million)

Net debt at 31 March 2012 was £3,967 8 million

(2011 £3,868 8 millon) Balance sheet geanng {net debt/
net debt plus equity) at the year end was 80 2% (2011

77 8%) Net debt, expressed as a percentage of Regulatory
Capital Volue at 31 March 2012 was 56 0% (2011 56 B%)
The group's net interest charge, excluding gans/(losses) on
financial nstrurnents and net finance costs from pensions,
was covered 3 3 times (2011 3 4 trnes) by profit before
interest, tax, depreciation and exceptional terrs, and 2 2 times
(2011 2 3 tmes) by undertying PBIT

The fer value of the group’s net debt at 31 March 2012
estimated to be £4,579 3 mullion (2011 £4,196 2 million)
compared to the book value of £3,967 8 million (2011
£3,868 8 milhon) Discounted future cash flows are used

to determine fair values for debt. Discount rates are derved
from yield curves based on quoted interest rates and are
adjusted for the group’s credtt nisk.
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Treasury management and liquidity
The group’s principal treasury management objectives are:
« toaccess a broad range of sources of finance to obtan both

the quanturm required and lowest cost compatible with the
need for continued ovailabiity;

* to mamtain an nvestrment grode credit rating, and

« to maintain a flexible and sustanable balance sheet
structure

The group continues to carefully monitor iquidity
At 31 March 2012 the group had £295 1 million in cash
and cash equivdlents.

In Jonuary 2012 the group issued £250 milkon 4 875%
Guoronteed Notes under s Euro Medium Term Note
Programme The Notes have a 30 year term. Part of the
proceeds were used to redeem £150 6 million 5 25% Notes
which were due for repayment in 2014 The Notes were
redeemed at o premmum of 10 515%, which represents o

1 1% prermuurn to market value, resulting in an exceptionol
finance cost of £16 5 million

A new five year £500 milion revalving credit facilty was agreed
in October 2011 Thus reploced the exsting £500 million
revolving credit faclity A new 10 year £100 mitlion bilateral
facility was ogreed in March 2012 This facility was drown on
18 April 2012 Average debt matunty s around 16 years.

The group 1s funded for its investrment and cash flow needs
up to December 2013

Cash s invested in deposits with highly rated banks and iquidity
funds and the list of counterparbies is regularly reviewed and
reported to the board

Treasury policy and operations

Our treasury affairs are managed centrally and in accordance
with our Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy Statement.

The treasury operation’s role 1s to manage iquidity, funding,
investrment and our financal nsk, nduding nsk from volatiity in
interest and (to a lesser extent} currency rates and counterparty
credit nsk. The board determines matters of treasury policy and
its approvdl s required for certain treasury transactions.

Our strategy 1s to access a broad range of sources of finance to
obtam both the quantum required and towest cost cormpatible
with the need for continued availability Our principal operating
subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, s a long termn business
charactensed by mult year mvestment programmes

Qur strategic funding objectives reflect this and the biquidity
position and the availability of committed funding are essential
to meeting our objectves and obligattons We therefore aim for
a balence of long term funding or commitrrerit of funds across
a range of funding sources at the best possible econormic cost.

The group’s current policy for the managernent of interest rate
nsk requires that no less than 45% of the group’s borrowings
should be at fixed interest rates, or hedged through the

use of interest rate swaps or forward rate ogreements.

At 31 March 2012, interest rates for some 74% of the group's
net debt of £3,967 8 million were fixed in this way

We use financial denvatives solely to manage nsks associated
with our normal business actvties We do not hold or issue
denvative finanad instrurments for finanaal trading

Except for debt rarsed in foreign currency, which s fully hedged,
our business does not involve significant exposure to foreign
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exchange transactions We have investrments in vanous assets
denomunated in foreign currenaies, pancipally the US dollar and
the euro Our current policy Is to hedge an elerment of the
currency translation nsk associated with certain foreign currency
denominated assets

We have entered into energy swaps that fix the cost of
substantiatly all of Severn Trent Water's expected net electnaty
consumption for the next three years and part of 1ts anticipated
consumption for the following year The price fixed inthese
swaps 1s lower than the amount assumed in the Final
Deterrmunation for AMPS

The group 1ssues notes in foreign currency under its EMTN
programime and uses Cross curmency swaps to convert the
proceeds to sterling The effect of these swaps 1s that interest
and principal payments on the borrowings are denorminated in
sterling and hence the currency nsk 1s elirrunated The foreign
currency notes and the cross currency swaps are recorded in
the balance sheet at ther fair volues and the changes in far
values are taken to gans/(losses) on finanoal mstruments m the
profit and loss account. Since the terms of the swaps closely
rmatch those of the underying notes, such changes tend to be
broadly equal and opposite

The group holds interest rate swaps with a net notional prncipal
amount of £463 6 milion and cross currency swaps with a net
notional prinaipat amount of £536 6 millien whech economically
act to hedge the interest rate sk on floating rate debt or the
exchange rate nsk on certain foreign currency borrowings
However, the swaps do not meet the hedge accounting rules of
IAS 39 and therefore these swaps are carned in the balance
sheet at farr value The changes in fair value are taken to gans/
{losses) on finanaal instruments in the Incorme statement
Durmg the penod there has been o decrease of £80 3 million n
the far value of these instruments.

It 1Is important to note that we mtend to, and typically do hold
these swaps to matunty Further, this 1s not a cash movernent
and, over the Iife of the swaps, these changes in fair value will
net out

The group's long termn credit ratings are

Long term ratings Severn Trent Pic Severn Trert Water
Moody's _Baal A3

Standard and Poor’s BBB- BBB+
Pensions

The group operates two defined benefit pension schemes,

of which the Severn Trent Pension Scherne {STPS) s by far the
largest. Formal tnennial actuanal valuations and funding
agreements for the STPS have been renewed as at 31 March
2010 The key octuanal assumptrons from these valuations
have been updated for these accounts as at 31 March 2012
The valuations left the level of current service contnbutions
unchanged and agreed defiat reduction contnbutions of

£10 0 millton per annurm in cash and a further £8 0 milkon per
annum through an asset backed funding arangement.

0On 11 May 2011, Severn Trent announced that it was consutting
with its 6,000 plus UK employees on proposed changes to its
pension amangements, which would see all existing pensions
replaced by one new defined contnbution scheme Following
the penod of consuttation and ofter discussion with the
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schemes’ trustees, final proposals have been accepted by the
employees’ representatives and the trustees A new defined
contnibution scheme has been established and from 1 April 2012
new employees have been auto enrolled mto this scheme
The defined benefit schemes will close to future accrual on

31 March 2015 and members of the defined benefit schermes
will then becorme members of the new defined contnbution
scherme The existing defined contnbution scheme will also be
replaced by the new pension arrangements with effect from
1 April 2015 and t 1s proposed to cutomatically enrol those
employees who are not currently members of a Severn Trent
scheme from 2013

On an [AS 19 basts, the estimated net position {before deferred
tox) of the group's defined benefit pension schermes wos a
defict of £345 8 milion as at 31 March 2012 Thus compares to
adefiat of £292 1 milion as at 31 March 2011 The movernents
i the net defiat are summansed in note 27

On an [AS 19 basis, the funding level has reduced from around
83 5% at 31 March 2011 to around 81 8% at 31 March 2012

2012 2011
% %

Price inflation 31 35
Salary ncreases 36 40
Pension incregses In payment 31 35
Pension increases in deferment 31 35
Discount rate 49 56
Long term rate of return on equities 68 79
Age to which current pensioners cged
65 are expected to live
-men 875 874
—women 911 910
Age to which future pensioners aged
45 gt the balunce sheet dote are
expected to live
- men 880 880
—women 919 918

The following toble summanses the estimated impact on
schermne liobilries resulting from changes to key actuanal
assumphions whilst helding all other assumptions constant.

Impacton

Agsurnphion Chonge in assumption scheme labilities

Increase/decrease  Decreasefincrease

Discount rate by0 1% by £35 0 milion

Increase/decrease  Increase/decreqse

Price nflaion by01% by £30 0 millon
Increase i

Ife expectancy Increase

Mortolity by one year by £45 0 milkon

Accounting policies and presentation of the

financial statements

Our consolidated finanaal statements are prepared n
accordance with Intemnational Finanaal Reporting Standards
that have been endorsed by the European Union
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Risk management

Our approach to nisk

Overall we take a considered approach to
nsk. Across the group, indmdual rsks and
decsions are manoged in kine with cur
Group Authonsation Amangerments
which set out dear birvuts for delegated
cuthortty

Withun the largest part of ur group,
Severn Trent Water, our approach reflects
our status as ¢ regulated utility provding
essentiot services and operating as part
of the Criical National Infrastructure for
the UK. The nature of our Sevemn Trent
Water business 1s such that there are
some significant nherent nsks as
illustrated m the following paragraph on
Pnncipal Risks. We aim to have a strong
control framework i place to enable us
to understand our nsks and manage
them effectvely

Although the Sevem Trent Services
businesses are rot generally regulated,
we provide products and services for
custormers who operate in regulated
environments, and as o result we take

a simitarty considered approach to nsk.

Our Enterpnise Risk

Management Process

Our now established Enterpnise Risk
Management (ERM) process which is
used aaoss the group, entifies possible
nisks, their couses and ther potential
impacts Thus alows us to place focus on
having the nght controls in place to
manage our nsks by considenng both
how to mururruse the likelihood of nsks
occurnng and how to maximise our
resiience to nisks. In addrbion to assessing
finanaal impact, our assessrnent of nsks
ncludes explict consideration of the
possible effect on the reputation of

the group
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Key nsks are reported to the Audtt
Committee and to the board every six
months in the form of nsk maps

In addition, indmdual nsks or spectfic nsk
topics are also discussed by the board
dunng the year This year we have pad
particudar attention to low ikelihood, high
impact nsks, with the board requesting
additional assurance that controls
around such nsks are robust. We have
also introduced regular nsk ‘deep dives’
at our Severn Trent executive team
meetings. These take the form of
updates from indmdual business teams
within Severn Trent Water on thewr
progress with improwving controls and
providing effective mitigation for thesr
most significant nsks.

For the preparation of cur annual
business plan for Severn Trent Water we
have introduced an explicit ink between
the ERM and business planning processes
in crder that we can have greater
confidence that business plans
sufficently address areas of key nsk.

Principal nsks

There are a number of sigruficant nsks
whuch are mherent to afl water and
sewerage companies, as shown on our
business models on pages 10 and 11
and 24 and 25, ncluding

+ Severn Trent Water operatesina
heavily requiated environment and
15 subject to many vaned, comylex
and changing obligations. As a resut,
we face nsks assoaated with
non-compliance,

» Severn Trent Water has an extensive
network of assets and the falure of key
indmwiduad or collections of these assets
could resudt in a sigruficant mpact on
our core business actmvities,

» we face nsks to the hedlth, safety and
wellbeing of our people, custorners,
contractors and others as a result of
the nature of our operations, and

+ we share a concem with many other
businesses over our ability to fund long
term pension promises.

Where appropnate these are nduded

in the table of Prnapdl Risks overleaf

How does our ERM process work
in practice?

Our sewerage network conststs of
thousands of miles of sewers carmying
waste water to our treatment plants.
There 1s a nsk that these sewers could
collapse or become blocked resultmg
in flooding of our customers’ homes
or pollubon of the environment.

We recogrise that sewer flooding

of property ts very distressing for
customers affected and we aim

to minimuse the possibility of this
happening Simiarly, pollution of
watercourses has an adverse effect on
the emaronment and enjoyment of the
amenities In the communittes we serve
Both types of nadent incur additonal

costs to the company i rectifying
such inadents.

Qur nsk assessment was pnmarily set
around the Ofwat requirement to
supply assets capable of delvenng an
agreed level of service to our customers
and the environment. We further
analysed our nsks to introduce

more speafic nsks based around
infrastructure (below ground assets)
and non infrastructure (above ground
assets) within our ERM process to help
to generate clanty on causes and
controls of failure Fromn this we were
able to develop further improvernent
actions to ensure nsks are
constructively managed to deliver the
service prormises. In order to mutigate
the nsk we hove enhanced our
programme of investrnent to mamtan
our sewerage network to reduce sewer
blockoges, collapses and sewer
flooding naidents.

We have also embarked onan

holistic Emaronmental Improvermnent
Programme which considers all aspects
of our processes and how these canbe
improved to rmunimise our mpaoct on
the environment. Reduang these
inadents s good for custormers, good
for the emaronment and good for

the company
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Risk management

Ref  What is the nsk? Whichpartof  What does t mean for us? What are we doing to manage the nsk?
Severn Trent
is affected?

Business Model Risks )

1 Wemaynotbeable  SevernTrent  Current performance aganst plon We have robust business planning
toachievedllofthe  Water does not indicate partraudar causefor  processes Our business plans are
challenging targets concem However, fwe areunableto  updated and reviewed on an annual
agreed with Ofwat meet all of the targets and regulatory  basis. We monitor progress against
for our business plan outputs agreed m our business plon agreed targets each month and are
from 2010 to 2015 within the constraints assumed inthe  able to make edjustments to ptanned
resutting in reduction ptan, the following may occur actwvities if we identfy any concerns,
infunding - we may require additional funding

or expenence reduced profit dunng
this five year planning penad,

« financal penalties may be imposed
by Ofwat dunng the AMPE penod

Wemaybeunableto Severn Trent
sufficently mprove ~ Water

our performance in

relation to customer

service in order to

delver what our

customers tell us

they want

Severn Trent
Water

We may suffer
operational falure
m our waste water
operations which
results in damoge
to the local
ervironment.

2015-2020; or

- our share pnce may be affected f
we are unable to deliver the
finanoial and performance targets
we have shared with mvestors.

Qur current customer service
performance 1s disappointing, and we
have programmes of work underway
to oddress the root causes of the
1ssues highlighted We recognise,
however, that falure to address these
1ssues may result in customer
dissatisfaction ond as a result we
may faft to gan customer support for
our plans for the next price review
period (AMP6) between 2015-2020
At present, we believe we can
achieve the necessary improvements
in our performarnice

Fatture of certain key assets may
result m process failure, leading to
ervironrnental damoge Thissa
particular concemn in relation to our
woste water treatment processes
For exarmple, falure of our key assets
may render our treatment less
effectve resulting in pollution.

We have programmes of work underway
across Sevem Trent Water to make the
necessary Improvements in our
processes and technology to

enable Severn Trent Woter to deliver
outstanding customer service

We monitor the performance of our
treatment works and the effluent we
are producng to within stnct birnits.
Where we are unable to prevent
poliutions, we dean up polluted waters
as quickly as possible and put in place
measures to prevent recurrence

We have introduced an Environmental
Improverment Programme which
includes reqular audits of our sites

and we continue to work to improve
our environmentat performance
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Ref  What s the nsk? Which partof  What does t mean for us? What are we doing to manage the nsk?
Severn Trent
s affected?

Business Model Risks {continued) )

4 Our assets or Group wide The nature of our work requires our We have nsk and safety action tearns
processes may foil employees and contractors to at site level who dentify local hazards
resulting i njury undertake activities or to use and how these can be mitigated Safety
to an employee, equipment which have potential to performance 1s monitored and we are
contractor, customer cause senous harm. Whilst we seek delvering year on year improvernent.
or member of to toke precoutions to prevent Wherever hazardous work is to be
the public inyury, asset falure or foilure to undertaken or hazardous chermicals are

follow agreed processes may used, we undertake thorough traiming,
result m sorneone being hurt. which s kept up to date, to minimsse
Speafic examples include mjury to the nisk.
our employees using chermicals in
our processes. Addrtionally, failure Our assets are subject to regular
and ngorous monitonng mcludmng
of one of our key assets suchasa
reservorr could result m mpury to independent nspections of our reservoirs
customers o bers of the public. to ensure that they remain safe and
that mamntenance work 1s undertaken
where needed

5 Wemayfalltomeet  SevernTrent  Ifwe are unable to meet operational  We cantinue to monttor and nvest in
allof ourregulatory ~ Water performoance targets, we may be our assets and to improve our processes
targets, nduding subjected to sigruficant regutatory tn grder to maintom the performance
targets from Ofwat, pendlties, of our key assets. We have programmes
m relation to Regulatory targets apply to all of of work ongoing to review afl aspects of
ongoing operational our water treatment, distnbution, our operations, Inctuding the necessary
perforrmance of sewerage and sewoge treatment improvements to mantam continuous
our assets resulting In assets. Measures are in place In supplies, ensure water quality, reduce
reguiatory penalties. relation to water quality, continuowss  Sewer collapses and sewer flooding and

6 Falure of certamkey  Seven Trent
assetsmayresultin -~ Water
tnability to provide o
continuous supply of
quality water to large
populations within
our areq, or In
damage to third

party property

Legal and Reguiatory Risks )
7 Wemaybeunableto  SevernTrent

effectively antcpate Water

and/or nfluence

future developments

n the UK water

ndustry resulting

tn our business

plans becorming

unsustanable

supplies, sewer flooding, sewer
cotlapses and poltution events.
Some of our gssets are not
duplicated, and whilst every effort s
made to mamtain the assets, fodure
may occur which coutd result n
ternporary inability to contirnue to
serve our customners

The major part of our business,
Severn Trent Water, operates ina
hughly regutated ermvronment.

Our document ‘Changing Course' sets
out the key changes we believe are
necessary to ensure a sustamnable
future for the water industry in
England and Wales. Although some
of our points are reflected in the UK
Govemment Water White Paper
issued in December 2011, future
changes in legrslation could hove a
significant impact on Sevemn Trent.

improve environmental performance

We have asset ranagernent plans in
place which dnive investment in
mamtenance and improverment of our
assets in order to mamntan our service
to customers.

We also have secunty meosures to
protect our assets and contingency
plans to mantamn supplies m the event
of fadure

~We will continue to work with

+ peers atross the water ndustry;

+ UK Government departments,

+ Ofwat and other regulators, and
+ other agencies

to ensure we keep abreast of policy
developments and mfluence the
future direction of regulatory policy
where posstble

mmm;m’amlmm‘m‘
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Ref  What s the nsk? Whichpart of What does t mean for us? What cre we doing to manage the nsk?
Sevemn Trent
is affected?

Legal and Regulatory Risks {continued)

8 The regulatory Group wide Qur pobaes and processes must We have policies, standards, procedures
landscape s complex reflect the current legal and and relevant training for employees to
and subject to regulatary emvironment and all mitigate ths nsk.
ongomng change. relevant employees needtobekept  pyring this year, we have refreshed our
There s a nsk that oware of new requirements Due to Code of Conduct and group policies and
processes may fail or the spreod of our operations, and are carmying out an extensive programme
that our processes changes in actnity and organisational  to raise awareness of the updated Code
may not effectively structure this s not aiways of Conduct and poticies.
keep pace with strnghtforward The group os
changes in legistation o whole may face censure for
teading to the nisk of non-compliance in an indwadual
non-compliance group company or a specific region

m which we operate

Financial Risks

9 The current cnsis Group wide As a result of current market and We ensure we maintain access to funds
in the Eurczone economic conditions across the through cash held on short terrm deposit
ray increqse the Eurozone, there may be increased and through our commutted borrowing
difficulties associated difficulty for all businesses to obtan facilities. We constantty monstor the
with obtaning funds We may therefore be unable possible impacts of economic conditions
funding for the group to meet dll of our funding on the funding requirerments for the
{at similar rates to requirements at commercally group We have diversified sources
those assumed in our ottroctive rates. of funding and have a tmetable for
business plan) replacement of commutted lending

faclities which allows us more than one
opportunity to go to market i order to
mitigate agamst short term problems in
the marketplace

10 Changing Group wide We already provide significant We regularty revalue our schemes and
demographics and funding We may be called upon to monitor our investment performance
fluctuations n the pfoVide more money to reduce We are ‘ntrmjuclng New pensions
may affect our ability Although the sk 1s not considered fawrer for all our emnployees as well as
to fund pensions Iikely to occur, the mpact could be reducing the build up of further defictt
prormuses sustanably significant. i our schernes in future years, thus

dllowing us to continue to fund pensions
sustanably into the future i

11 Counterpartieswith ~ Group wide We may have cash which we have We have stnct policies whuch restnct the
whom we have not yet nvested in agreed capital counterparties we can invest with ond
wwvested money programmes, and we need Lrrut the amount which can be invested
may fall, putting our to manage thrs n the most with indmdual counterparties. We dosely
investment at nsk advantageous way for our customers  monitor the credit status of all our

and shareholders There is ansk that
we may deposit cash wath thrrd
parties who may defoult resuiting in
finanaal loss

counterparties to ensure we only deposit

with those who have good credit status.
Complance with our polices s montored
continuously to nutigate this nsk.
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Governance

Board of directors
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Graphuc removed Graphic removed Graphic removed
Dr Tony Ballance Dr Bernard Bulkin Richard Davey
BSc {Hons) MA (Econ) PhD (47) BS PhD FRSC FRSA FIE (70) BA(63)
Drrector, Strategy and Regulotian Independent non-executve director Seruor ndependent nor-executive director

Appomted to the board on 2 October 2007
Tony's extensive expenence in utility policy

and regulation leaves bim ideally ploced to lead
the company’s strategic and regulatory work.
He has held the posts of Chief
Econormust, for t, econormic consultant,
director of London Econormucs ond a director

of Stone and Webster Consultants

Appotnted to the board on 1 January 2006
Bernard has been nvolved m o range of scentific,
technology and engmeenng busmesses, snctuding
holding the posttion of Chief Scientist of BP Plc.

Hrs mvotvernent m both innovation ond policy on
clirmate change and renewable energy, together
with on understanding of how to guide mproved
performance on safety and environmental
operationat ssues, enables hem to contnbute
significantly to the board

Appomnted to the board on 1 Januory 2006

Rchard has an investrment banking boc

and was formerly Heod of Investment Banking ot
NM Rothschild ond Sons With extensive expenence
of the financial serices sector, having run
Rothschild's Financial Services Group and workang
with 0 number of hugh street banks and insurers,
Rechard bnngs volugble finoncal expertise to the
board, the Audit Commuttee ond as char of the

External appointments Rerruneration Comimittee he hetd
non-executive roles at Yorkshme Butdimg Society,
Member of Water UK Coundil
External appointments where he wos Vice Chairmon, Freeserve Pic and
Com Charman of Chermec AB {Sweden) Scottsh Widows Fund ond Life Assuronce Society
Executive Comeruttee Non-executive director of Ze-gen Corporation (USA} -
Nor-executive drector, Chairman of the Remuneration Externol appointments
Comrruttee and mermber of the Audit Corramuttee of Non-executve Charmnan of London Coprtal Group
Pursuit Dynarmics plc Holdings Plc
Char of the Office of Renewable Energy Deployment Non-executive Charman of Ambn Ple
at the UK Department of Energy and CBmate Ghange
- Committee membership
Commiittee membership Audit Committee
Audit Commutiee Nomnations Commttee
Corporote Responsiblity Cornmuttee {Chasmany) Rernuneration Comimuttee (Charmon)
Nomenations Comnmuttee
Rerrunergbion Cormattee
Graphi removed Graphuc removed Graphuc removed
Martin Lamb Michael McKeon Baroness Nookes
BSc MBA (52) MA CA (55) DBE LLB FCA (62)
Independent non-executive director Finonce Director Independent non-executive drector

Appomted to the board on 29 February 2008
Martin has extensive expenence of managing
and developing large engineenng businesses in
all parts of the world. Martin has worked for IMI
for over 25 years where he has held a number of
serwor mancgement roles. His strong commercal
acurnen, expenence of managing complex
projects, and fomdanty with curment market

as o serving Chief Executve leave im
well ptaced to odd vatue to the Severn Trent
bustness. Previousty Martn was o non-executve
director of Spectrs plc.

External appointments

Chwef Executive of M1 plc

Member of the Adwsory Board of AEA [nvestors
{UK) Lrruted

Committes membership
Norrenations Comimittee
Remuneration Commuittee

Appoirted to the board on 13 December 2005
Michael brings signuficont finanoal and commerntial
expertse to the board Prior to josning Sevem Trent
he wuas Finance Dwector of Novar Pic ond before
that held vanous servor roles with Rolls-Royce Ple,
including Finance Dector of Asrospace Group

He has extensie international busimess expenence
having worked overseos for CornoudMetalbox,

Elf Atachem and Price Waterhouse Michael s o
Chartered Accountant ond ¢ Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland

External appointments
Norr-executive director and Chairrhan of the
Audit Comwmttee of The Merchonts Trust Pic

Commmttee membership
Executive Comerattee

Appainted to the board on 29 February 2008
Shello 15 an expenenced drector on UK (sted
company boards and an expenenced cudit
commuttee chammman. A quotified chortered
occountant, she previously heoded KPMG's
European and Internabional Government practices
and has been President of the Institute of Chartered
Accourtants n England and Woles. Shedo wos
apponted to the House of Lords m 2000 and hos
served on the Conservotive front bench mvanous
roles ncludng os shadow rrunester
between 2003 and Moy 2010 Previousty she held
non-executve roles on the Court of the Bonk of
England, Horgon Pic, 1CT Ple, John Lang ond SThee
External appointments
Non-exetutve director, member of the Group Audit,
Group Normenations and Board Rrsk Corrwmsttees of
The Royal Bank of Scotland Group Plc

Deputy Chazrnan, semsor independent director and
Chaernan of the Audit and Nommabions Commitiees
of Carpetnght Plc

Trustee of the Thormson Reuters Founders Share Company
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Graphuc removed Graphuc rermoved Graphic removed
Andrew Duff Gordon Fryett Martin Kane
BSc FEI {53) (58) 85S¢ CEng CEnv MICE MIWEM FIW (59)
Non-executive Chammoen Independent non-executve drector Chuef Executve Officer, Sevem Trent Services

Appointed to the boord on 10 May 2010 and
Charman on 20 kly 2010

Andrew's extersive knowledge of mtermnationot
busmness, strotegic management, customer senice
ond reguicted business make him the nght Chasrnan
tc leod the group Andrew spent 16 years at BP in
marketing, strategy ond oil trading He joined
National Power in 1998 ond the boord of its doughter
comparny Innogy plc upon its dermerger from
Natonal Power m 2000 He led the

and subsequent sale of Innogy to RWE in 2003

He becarme CEQ of the successcr company,

Appointed to the board on 1 July 2009

Gordon’s extensive expenence workang in

and with international businesses, accountability
for mancging lorge areas of caprtal expenditure
and 6 broad range of executive and operational
expenence mn a hughly customer foaing
environment, enables hirm to bnng substantial
expenence and expertise to the board Hes
currently Tesco Group Property Director and CEOQ of
Central Europe, hoving previously hetd ¢ number of
serwor posrions within the Tesco Group mcluding
CEQ Republic of Iretond and Director of

npower, and 0 member of the RWE Group Executve  Intemationod Support.
Committee He wos non-executive Charman of
RWE npower until hes retirement in December 2010 Externol eppointments
CEO of Tesco Europe

Externol appointments Alurmnws of INSEAD
Senior mdependent director, Chairman of the
Rernuneration Comnmittee, member of the Audit Committee membe:
Comymsttee ond Normnabions Committee of Wolseley Pic mmam\sb;:pmnee
Member of the CBI President’s Comersttee Norminations Commattee
Trustee of Maorndlon Cancer Support and Eorth Trust
Fellow of the Energy Institute
Committee membership
Corporate Responsibiity Committee
Nommnations Cormmttee (Chamrman)
Rernunerotion Comimittee

Graphuc removed Graphic removed
Andy Smith Tony Wray
BTech (Hors) (51} BSc (Hons) {S0)
Dwector of Water Senaces Cheef Executive

Appointed to the board on 2 October 2007
Andy brings a broad range of executive and
operational expertise goned from differend sectors
to the board Andy has sigreficont expenence
having worked in the UK and overseas with BP,
Mars and Pepsi, in engmeenng and operational
roles. Previously he was Group HR
Dwector and @ member of the boord at Boots
Group Plc.
Committee membership
Executve Commuttee

Appointed to the board on 7 March 2005
Tory become Chief Executive on 2 October 2007
His extensnse expenence ma wide range of
operotonat and strategic leadership roles m the
Energy, Telecoms, Woter and Waste industnes
enables him to bnng a multy dsaplmed approach
to the board. Torty brmgs to hes postion an in-depth
operational knowledge of Severn Trent and
wvision for the group Previously he wos
drector of Networks at Eircom, the Republic of
Iretand’s telephone operaton and has hetd dwector
rotes within Transco and Nationa! Gnd Transco
External appointments
Nor-executive directar and member of the Audit
Commuttee of Gronger pic
Member of Business Adwiscry Board for ‘Lvang with

Emaronemental Chenge'
Member of Water UK Board

Committee membership
Corporate Responsibdity Committee
Executive Cormamattee (Charman)
Normenabions Corrursittee

Appomted to the board on 2 October 2007
Martn jomed Severn Trent \Woter n 1975 and has
held vanous seruor pasts gmng hum an extensve
understanding of the design, construction and
operation of water ond woste woter treatment
plarts, water dstnbution networks and sewerage
systermns Martin held the role of Director of
Customer Relations, Severn Trent Woter, from
May 2006 until January 2012, at which paint he
was appownted Chief Executive Officer of Severn
Trent Services

External eppointments
Member of the boards of Utitres and Servce
Industnes Trarung Limited ond Notional Assooation

of Woter Comporses (US)
Trustee of Internatonal Soaety for Trenchless
Technology

Committee membership
Executve Comimittee
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Executive Committee

The Chief Executive 1s supported i his role by the executive
management team and together they compnse the Executive
Committee Duning the year, the Executive Committee
compnsed the executive directors and senior executive
managers responsible for key operational and central functions
Photographs of the members of the committee, together with
therr biographies are set out below

The Executive Cormrmittee oversees the development and

by

Dunng the year, the Executive Committee met to consider
strategy, business management, policy and planning, and

operctional performance

Mernbers of the Executve Committee are delegated
responsibility to sit on steenng groups that oversee the
delvery of our strategy and business management. Dunng
the year, steenng groups were set up to oversee areas such
as the integrated delivery of our year end results and Ofwat

execution of the Sevem Trent strategy It also has accountabilty  Annual Retum
for achieving business results. The terms of reference of the
Executive Committee are available on the company’s website
(www severntrent.com} or from the Company Secretary
Graphc removed Graphic removed Graphic removed Graphic removed
1 2 3 4
Graphic removed Graphic removed Graphuc rermoved Graphic removed
5 6 7 8
Graphic removed Graphic removed Graphic removed
9 10 11
1 Dr Tony Ballance 3 Evelyn Dickey S Angela Hunter-Dabson 8 Michael McKeon
BS¢ (Hors) MA (Econ} PhD (47) B5¢ (Hons) {49) MA (Hons) (40} MA CA (55)
Director, Strategy and Regulation Director of Huran Resources Customer Relations Director Finance Drector
Please see fifl boographey on page 42 Jomed Sevem Trent in November mmw:dwmuwm Please see full boogrophy on poge 42
2006 Evetyn has wade HR expenence Angela comment coreer
2 Simon Cocks leading design ond delvery of major— 18M durning #s trarsformation from 9 Alec Richmond
BA {Hons) (46) thange pmgrcnv;es. mrsne‘ness faufe ré?: services business.  BSc (Econ) FCA FIIA (54)
Warste Water Services Dwector restructuring, employee relations, since held serwor operationdl  pyrector of Internal Audit
Jowed Severn Trent n July 2009 ol organsatonal capabity - eadership pasiars for Borctays, Jomed Severn Trent m June 2007
Simon s ;; e!ecm:?;s engmeernby tiot 'B' y “'ﬁ < o mng' ”gse ent " s m'a“ez’sl" 'gzc_ Pror to thut.ﬂl'g m ufo.; Cadbury
m: um 9 mb egar |mmcouem for Trent Evelyn worked m HR domestic, nternctional, mdirect and X !:nyc Essglobd nterna audit
o ary cornmune working consultancy and as HR Director (HR reguioted markets. In addition to compa
essey and then GEC. He previousty service from 2000-2005 Before
worked for London Electncd Operotions) for Boots the Cherrsts. teadmng her own oword winnng joining Severn Trent, he worked for
m vanous operational ond customney aperations, she has RSM Robson Rhodes as a director
management roles and, more 4 Myron Hrycyk coruﬁtedwddymm?fmid ond a member of the manogement
recently, for National Gnd where MBA (Issfzx off Customer senvice n wple sectors. board responsible for Risk Assurance
:mg gfnc%lnnrm'ng. then Jo:nednSe\.em Trent mt:;f:ri 2008 6 Martin Kane Institute ::‘eé'::e:ed Ac?wﬁcrﬁs n
Commercial Director for the gas ond Myron has held senior [T posts BSc CEng CEnv MICE MIWEMFIW (39)  Engignd and Wales and the Institute
etectnaty business n the UK and for major organsotons ocross o Cheef Executive Officer, of [nternat Audtors.
Eurape and more recently held the range of busmess sectors, Finanaial Severn Trent Sennces
positon of Chuef Procurement Officer  Senvices, Autornotve Plecse see full bogrophy onpoge 43 10 Andy Smuth
before jorung Severn Trent. Simon s and Logistics/Supply Chamn. He has BTech (Hons) {$1)
fng?;rdrammbemfmwmer delmﬁmdstmtegxﬂambusmess ZlSrom?a;ennedy Duoctor of Woter Sennces
" restructured corporate IT unds Generol Counsel and Company Please see fll bography on page 43
and deployed high performance IT Secretary 11 Tony Wray
practices. Myron also has executive Joned Severn Trent n June 2011 BS¢ (Hons) (50}
responsibility for Supply Chain &
Procurement and our Business Bronagh sgr;ldmcor: ' und: : MSE . Chuef Executve
Improverment Team of mmhmmm&um Please see full boography on poge 43

programime
manegers and ‘Safer, Better, Foster’
contnuous Improverment
practiioners

Butlers, where she worked for 15
yeors. Pror to that, she was a Servor
Assocate at Allen & Overy
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Chairman’s letter
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Andrew Duff
Charrnan

Governance in Severn Trent
The way we are structured

+ Our orgamisation 1s structured to cllow
for effective and efficent decision
making with dear accountabilibies

The way we choose to behave

+ Our Code of Conduct. ‘Doing the Right
Thing - the Severn Trent Way’ (which
was resssued dunng the year} sets out
our approach to responsible business
behaviours

» The Code of Conduct 1s supported by
15 group policies and our behaviours
model Further details of these
can be found on our website
{(www severntrent.com)

The way we assure cur performance

» Management assurance 1s provided
by a combination of effective
management processes and rsk
and compliance actvities,

« Independent assurance 1s provided
prnrmarily by Internal Audit, by our
external cuditors and other
externdl bodes.
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Dear Shareholder

Introduction
At Sevem Trent, we are committed to delivenng value and bullding a sustamable
bustness, supported by good governance. As a board we are responsible and

accountable to shareholders for ensunng effective governance processes are in place
and complied with

The board’s role s to
= understand and meet s obligations to the company’s stakeholders,

+ lead the group within a framework of prudent and effective controls which enable
nsk to be assessed and managed,

» approve the group’s strategic objectives, and
» ensure that sufficent resources are ovailable to enable it to meet those objectives

The Combined Code on Corporate Governance issued by the Financial Reporting
Council {FRC) in 2008 has been replaced by the UK Corporate Governance Code {the
‘Governance Cede’) There have been a number of substantive changes to both the
main principles and provisions designed pnmanly to place greater emnphasts on board
behaviours These are all changes which your board encouraged and supported

The foltowing sections of ths repart set out how good governance underpins our
activities in Severn Trent and describe how we apply the pnncaiples of the Governance
Code

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

For the whole of the financial year ended 31 March 2012, Severn Trent was fully
compliant in its application of the Governance Code, which 1s available on the FRC
website www frc org uk. This dermonstrates our cornrrutment to the highest standards
of governance and corporate behaviour

Board membership

Dunng the year under review the board has consisted of me, your non-executive
Chairman, five executive directors and five ndependent non-executive directors
Photographs of the members of the board, together with therr biographues and a
descnption of the complernentary skills ond wealth of expenence that they brng to
bear, con be found on poges 42 and 43

Together, as a unified board, I believe we bring an appropniate balance of mnovation,
expenence, ndependence and challenge to ensure effective deaision making

Details of our policy on diversity in the boardroom are provided in the Nominations
Commuttee report on pages 50 and 51

Role of the Chairman

The role of the Charman is to lead o unified board, focilitating the contribution of its
members at sts meetings, and to be responsible for ensuring that the panciples and
processes of the board are mantained in line with the Board Governance document.

Agendas for our meetings are agreed in consultation with the Cheef Executive and
Company Secretary, although any director may request that an tem be added to the
agenda [ have authonty to act and speak for the board between its meetings, induding
engaging with the Chuef Executive I report to the board and committee charmen as
appropnate on decsions ond actions taken between meetings of the board I also meet
with the non-executive directors without the executive directors present, to consider the
performance of the exeautive directors and to provide feedback.

Senior independent non-executive director

Richard Davey 1s the seruor independent non-executive director He chairs the
Rermuneration Commttee and s  member of the Audit and Nomenations
Comrmittees The board has agreed that Richard wall act as Chairman of the
board in the event that I am unable to do so for eny reason
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Group Authonsation Arangements

The Group Authonsation Arrangements
(GAA) are the framework through which
the Severn Trent Plc board authonses
the nght people, at the nght level,

to take important deasions as we
manage tegdd, financial and
odrnrsstrative 1ssues throughout

the group The GAA are designed to
faciltate good control, efficient deaision
making and demonstroble compliance

The flow of authonty is from the Sevem
Trent Plc board to the Chief Executive
and his Executive Commuttee (STEQ)

In respect of certan issues, the
delegated cuthonty 1s subject to an
obligation to work with specialsst
business services areas (such as Tax,
Treasury, Group Finance and Company
Secretaniat) that provide addhional
expertise and a group wide perspective

Governance of subsidiaries

The board of the listed cornpany,
Severn Trent Plc, 1s the same as that of
its reguiated subsidiary, Severn Trent
Water Limited This structure was
implemented in 2007 when it was
decided to ntegrote the management
of the comparues to gan greater focus,
transparency and effectiveness around
Sevemn Trent Water

Following his appointment as CEO of

Severn Trent Serwices in January 2012,
Martin Kane becarme a non-executive
director of Severn Trent Water Limited

The two companies operate as distinct
legal entibies The boards have regard to
the Severn Trent Pic Board Governance
document and the Severn Trent Water
Limited Matters Reserved to the Board.
They are assisted through the
managernent of separate agendas,
meetings and minutes by Company
Secretariat and adwised in their
meetings by the Comparny Secretary
where appropnate

Subsidiary company boards are
required to be managed scruputously
with respect to legal, fiscal and
administrative matters In particular,
the relationships between Sevemn Trent
Water Limited and our other businesses
such as Sevem Trent Services are
monitored and controlled to ensure
that we comply with our Ofwat

obligatiors on arm’s length
transactions
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Non-executive directors

Your non-executive directors are appointed to the board to contnbute their indnadual
extema! expertise and expenence in areas of importance to the group such as
corporate finance, general finance, corporate strategy, custormer care, property,
emaronmental and saentfic matters, general management and supply chan
management. They also provide ndependent challenge and ngour in the board's
deltberations ond are encouraged to make independent assessments of the group’s
competencies The non-executive directors, led by Richard as the seror ndependent
non-executive director, meet without me at least once a year, where there s an
opportunity for thern to apprarse iy performance

Your board has reviewed the status of the non-executive directors and considers them
all to be Independent in character and judgement as defined by the Governance Code

Chief Executive

Responsibility has been delegated to the Chief Executive, Tony Wray, to achieve the
company’s strategy He 1s empowered to take ofl deaisions and actions that further the
company’s strategy and which m his judgernent are reasonable, hoving regard to the
Chief Executive immits set out in the company’s Group Authonsation Arrangements
{GAA) The non-executive directors, led by me, apprase his performance annuiatly

Executive directors

The executve directors support Tony In drving the implementation of strategy forward
n Severn Trent. They are comimutted to implementing strateqy in a responsible way
that takes account of our cormrmitrment to long term responsible stewardship of the
business, the emaronment, cur custormers and the communities i which we live

and work.

Role of the Company Secretary

All directors have access to the adwvice and services of the Company Secretary, Bronagh
Kennedy, and the Company Secretenat team The Company Secretary 1s responsible
for ensunng that the board operates in accordance with the govermance framework it
hos adopted and that there are good nformation flows to the board and its
committees and between senior management and the non-executive directors.

The appointment and resignation of the Comparty Secretary s a motter for
cansideration by the board as awhole

Induction

On joining the board, a director's induction needs are evaluated and then they are
provided with a comprehenswve and indviduatsed induction pack which indudes
information an the group structure, the requtatory framework of the operating
businesses within the group, strategic plans, finanaal reports and business plans and
mforration on our governance framework.

Meetings are arranged with members of the executive management team and with
external adwvisers who provide support to the relevant board commuttees the directors
may serve on Visits to operational and office sites across the group are also arranged
for directors joining the board and subsequently throughout the year

Continuing professional development

The directors recerved updates throughout the year on matters such as the impacts of
the proposals on private drains and sewers, the UK Government’s Water White Paper,
“‘Water for Life’, PR14 and changes in Listing Rules requirernents

The directors also have access ta professiond developrment prowded by external
bodies and our adwisers
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Re[:'nomng obfigann:;ns

As a public bisted company, the
cornpany has o range of reporting
obligations to meet that are set cut by
law ond reguiation. The comparny s
committed to the promotion of mvestor
confidence by taking steps wathin its
power to ensure that trade in s
secunties takes place m an efficent

and informned market.

The company recogruses the
importance of effective communication
as ¢ key part of bullding shareholder
value and that, to prosper and achieve
growth, it must (amoeng other things)
earn the trust of secunity holders,
emplayees, customers, suppliers and
communities, by being open mits
communications and consistently
delvenng on s commitments.

The company announces its results on
a holf yearty basis and complies with
the requirernent to make intenm
manoagement statements

The Cruef Executive has establshed a
Disdosure Cornmittee, chared by the
Finance Director, with specfic
responsibiliies for the delivery of

the intenm and year end reporting
processes. The Committee oversees
the delvery of an integrated plan
incorporating all elements of the year
end reporting process, nomely the
group’s final results announcement and
report end accounts, the company’s
Annual General Meeting, the statutory
and regulatory accounts of Seven
Trent Water Limuted and the Ofwat
Annua Return,
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Performance and effectiveness reviews

In Novemnber 2011 I commussioned an independent externdl review of the
effectiveness of the board, which wos conducted between Decernber and March

The review was camed out by Boardroom Review and wos designed to encourage

the directors to step back from the normal business of the board, and provide

them with an opportunity to question the board's approach, assess its impact

and contrnbution and prepare for the challenges ahead

The reviewer conducted confidential interviews with all 11 directors and the Comnpany
Secretary and reviewed a selection of board papers. This enabled the reviewer to
consider the board's effectiveness and dentify any key themes ansing from the review,
wiuch were then presented to and discussed by the board at its meeting in March.
The strengths of the board identified included a good understanding of stakeholder
views including the company’s regulators and shareholders, good market information
to the non-executive directors, strong Audit, Corporate Responsibility and
Remuneration Committees, and open access to executives below board level.

Areas for further development which were discussed nduded priontisation of strategic
matters on board ogendas and mproving focus on leadership development and
succession planning In foct, dunng and after the review, progress has atready been
mode in these areas.

Board processes

We have processes in place regarding

+ our tasks and octraties (board membership and adnministration),

- the matters specifically reserved for our deaision making, the authonty defegoted to

the Chief Executve, the accountability of the Chuef Executrve for that authoty, and
guidance on managing the relattonship between us and the Chief Exeautive; and

= the boundanes on Chuef Executive action (Chief Executive lmits)

An approved Board Governance docurnent outtines those processes and s avoilable

on our website (www.sevemtrent.com)

The board has reserved the followtng for its own consideration,

» the appointment of the Chief Executive, directors, the Comparny Secretary and the
Director of Internal Audt,

+ the strategy and budgets of the compory;

» the GAA which set out the group’s delegated approval brmits,

= decsions regarding the cormpany and its subsidanes required to be made by the
company’s GAA, constitutional documents, statute or external regulation, and

+ the approvdl or adoption of documents (induding the publication of reports and

statements to shareholders), required to be rade by the board by the company’s
GAA, constitutional documents, statute or external regutation

Board meetings

We have requiar scheduled meetings throughout the year and commuttee meetings
are convened when required

Pupers, ncluding minutes of board commuttees held since the previous board meeting
and performance reports, are arculated m advance of each meeting.

There 15 an ogreed procedure In place which allows drectors to take independent
professional advice In the course of their duties and dll drectors have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary Where a director has a concem over
any unresolved matter he/she s entitled to require the Cormpany Secretary to mnute
that concemn Should the director loter resign over the issue, I, as Chairman, will bang #t
to the attention of the board

In addiion to formal board meetings, your board attended o full day strategy session
this year, where the board and executive management team together considered the
strategic change agendo and the strategic context for and overall approach to PR14
Dunng the finanaal year, six ad hoc meetings of the board were convened to consider
such matters as Severn Trent PIc’s preliminary and intenm results and ntenm
monagement stoternents

amlmmmalma\o

sxuauamzsmm.mnmm‘ SN ooy dnas

|



Severn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Governance - Chairman’s letter

Institutional shareholders
and analysts

The board recogruses the importance
of representing and promoting the
interests of its shareholders and that

it 1s accountable to shareholders for
the performance and actmties of

the company

Presentations are made to shereholders
and analysts following the release of
the interim and year end results The
Chuef Executve and Finance Director
regularly meet shareholders dunng the
year The Chairman and, f appropnate,
the senior ndependent nor-executive
director are avallable to meet
shareholders if required The boord
recerves wrtten feedboack following
meetings with mstitubonal
shareholders and monstors shareholder
activity on a quarterly basis ot

its meetings
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Board attendance in 2011/12

Andrew Duff 717 Martin Lamb 717
Tony Ballance 777 Michael McKeon 7
Dr Bernard Bulkin 7/7  Baroness Noakes 717
Richard Davey 6/7 AndySmith 77
Gordon Fryett 6/7  Tony Wray 77
Martin Kane 77

Board committees

We have established cornmuttees of the board to deal with specific issues or approvals,
as and when necessary

The four permanent commuttees of the board assist in the execution of s
responsibiliies and the board delegated some of its respornsibibies to those boord
committees. The comrmittees assist the board by fulfilling their roles and
responsibiliies, focusing on ther specific activities, reporting back to the board on
decisions and octions taken, and malkang any necessary recommendations

The terms of reference of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Committees
comply with the prowisions of the Governance Code and are avaitable for nspection,
together with the terns of reference of the Corporate Responsibility Commuttee, on the
company’s website (www severntrent com) or may be obtaned on written request
frorn the Company Secretary ot the address given on the back cover

The effectiveness of each of the comrrittees has been reviewed dunng the year as
part of the wider externally facilitated board review and the committees have dlso
constdered their terms of reference dunng the year

Reports from the Chairmnen of these commuttees are set out on pages 50 to 68 of

this report.

Terms and conditions of appointment

We have made the terms and conditions of appontment of the directors available for
nspection by any person at the company’s registered office dunng normal business
hours, They will also be available at the AGM The letters of appaintment of the
directors can also be seen on our website (www.severntrent.com)

Remuneration
The Directors’ remuneration report 1s set out on pages 55 to 68

Interests

No drrector had a matenal interest ot any tme dunng the year in any contract of
significance with the company or any of ts subsidiary undertakings.

Conflicts of interests
The board has a full process in place to authonse situational conflicts in eccordance
with the provisions of the Comparues Act 2006
For any actual or potential conflicts, the following procedure has been adopted by the
board to consider and, if it sees fit, to authonse situattons where a director has an
interest that conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the interests of the company-
+ the director wall notify the Charman and Cormparty Secretary of the actual
or potential conflict,
+ the Norrunations Committee will consider the notfication and determne whether it
needs to be proposed to a board meeting for authonsation, and
+ the conflict will be considered by the board at a scheduled boord meeting
Fult details of the conflict will be sent to directors n advance of the meeting If there
15 a major conflict or it 1s decided that cuthonsation should not wait untd the next

scheduled meeting, the board would be asked to authorse the conflict by way of
written resalution
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Retail shareholder

engagerment strategy

The board has an active shareholder
engagement strategy, the man
elements of which are set out below
The annud report and accounts s the
prnapal means of communicating with
shareholders. The group adopted
e-commurnications aftes they were
approved by shareholders as an
adltemative means of recenang company
information ot the 2007 Annuadl General
Meeting As ot 3 May 2012, 34,629
shareholders receve company
communications via electronic method
whilst 26,015 shareholders continue

to receve cormnmunications by post.

The company’s website

{(www severntrent.com) contains an
archive of annual reports together with
other information relevant to investors.
This indudes comprehensive share pnce
information, financial results, company
news and fmencal calendars

The company offers a Dadend
Reinvestrment Plon {DRIP) Details of the
DRIP are available on our website and
the website of Equinits, our registrar

Shareholder networking day

As part of our Shareholder Networking
Prograrmime, partiapants in October 2011
had o choxce to visit erther a waste water
or dean water site These were hosted by
Srmon Cocks, Waste Water Servces
Derector and Martin Kane, who was
Drector of Customer Relations at the
tme Twenty parbicipants were taken

to our Minworth Sewage Treatrment
Works (Brrmmgharn) for o tour and
presentation-on renewable energy
Twenty particpants were taken to
Campron Hills Water Treatrment Works
{Royal Leamington Spa) for o tour then
on to Severn Trent Water Finham for o
dermonstration of making a connection
to o live water rmam and a display of
matendls used in the distribubion network.
Ths was followed by both groups visiing
our operating centre in Coventry

Positve feedbock was given on the
organesation and contertt with strong
support for the cormpany continury the
programme, both from shareholders
and employees who enjoyed the
pasitive interest shown m ther work.
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In addition to revewing any conflicts notfied and proposing them for cuthonsation
by the board, the Norminations Committee monitors changes to previously notified
conflicts and ary conditions imposed Half yearly reports are made to the board of all
directors’ conflicts and directors are reminded from time to trme of their obligations.

An annud review of conflicts is carried out and this s Incorporated nte the year end
process of venfying directors’ interests This review has confirmed that there were no
conflicts of nterest requinng authonsation by the board

In oddticn, at every board meeting there 1s a stonding agenda tern at the beginring
of the meeting to consider and discuss whether any potentiol conflicts exst.

Annual general meeting
The AGM of the company will be held at the International Corvention Centre,
Broad Street, Brrmungham B1 2EA at 11am on Wednesday 18 July 2012

Presentations are made on the group’s actvities, performance dunng the year and
an operationally focused presentation pnor to the formal business of the meeting
The Chairmen of the Audtt, Corporate Responsibility, Remuneration and Nominations
Commuttees, together with all other directors, wili attend the AGM.

The AGM grves sharehotders an opportunity to feedback to the comparry on
performance, manogement and the way we work in a very direct fashion - through
the way they vote - ether in favour of the resolution, agamnst the resolution or by
withholding their vote so that it does not count erther for or against. Shareholders may
also meet mformally with directors and sentor manoagement before and after

the meeting and ask formial questions dunng the meeting

The board encourages shareholders to attend the company’s AGM and to exercise
ther nght to vote The notice of meeting and related papers are sent to shareholders
at least 20 working days befare the meeting Separate resolutions are proposad on
each substantially separate ssue

The company uses electronic voting at the AGM, allowing shareholders present at the
meeting to register one vote per share held Results of the poll on each resolution,
ncluding details of the votes for and aganst registered prior to and at the meeting,
proxy votes and the nurmber of abstentions will be displayed at the meeting

The poll results fronn the AGM will be rmade avallable on our website after the meeting

At the 2011 AGM, 54 shareholders registered to partiapate in the Severn Trent
Shareholder Networking Programme whuch took place on Tuesday 11 October 2011
The aim of the programme is to offer retall shareholders the opportunity to learmn more
about the company, through a combination of site wisits and talking to stoff Further
detais of the event are set out in the box on thes poge Your board encourages those
sharehalders attending the 2012 AGM to register for this year's event.

Reappointment

In occordance with the Governance Code, and as was the case at the AGM last year,
gll the directors will retire at this year's AGM and submit themselves for reoppontment
by the shareholders

Conclusions

Good governance 1s not simply an exercise n compliance. For Severn Trent it is o vital
aspect of the foundation for the sustainable growth of the business. I firmly believe
that we will continue to delver value and ochteve profitable and sustamnable growth
for our company through the successful mix of good governance, a dear strategy
with a supporting business plan and a strong management tearn

Andrew Duff
Charman
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Nominations Committee

Graphic removed

Andrew Duff
Charman of the Nominations Commuttee

The main purpose of the Committee
15 to assist the board by keeping the
compaosition of the board under review
and conducting a ngorous and
transparent process when making or
renewing appontments of directors to
the board It alse adwises the board on
issues of directors’ conflicts of interest
and independence The full termns of
reference for the Committee can be
found on the company's website
(www severntrent com) and are also
available from the Company Secretary

Thrs report prowides details of the role of the Nominations Commuttee and the work it
has undertaken dunng the yeor

The Cornrmuttee keeps under review the balance of skills on the board and the

knawledge, expenence, length of senvice and performonce of the directors It alsa

reviews therr external interests with o view to identifying any actual, perceved or

potential conflicts of interests, ncluding the time available to cormrrut to thew dutes to

the compary The Cormnmittee monitors the ndependence of each non-executive

drector and makes recommendations concerning such to the board The results of

these reviews are important when the board considers succession planning and the |
election and reappointrnent of directors Members of the Commuttee take no part in

any dscussions concerning their own arcumstances

The members of the Commuittee m 2011/12 were the non-executive directors of the
board and the Chief Executive, Tony Wray

Dunng the year the Committee reviewed the procedure for reporting and authonsing, |
as appropriate, any actual or potential conflicts of interests, in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Dunng the year the Committee reviewed succession planning below board level

The Cormmittee considered n detall the appointment of Martin Kane os the new
Chief Executeve Officer for Severn Trent Services, following the retirement of Len
Graziono The Commuttee has also considered the consequential appointment of
Angela Hunter-Dobson as the new Customer Relations Director to succeed Martin
Angela wili be a member of the Executive Commuttee and not a member of the board

In accordance with the requirements of the Governance Code, all members of the
board will seek re-election at the Annual General Meeting m Juty 2012 In March

this year the Committee formally reviewed the performance, contribution ard
commitrment of each of the directars retinng at this year's AGM and seeking
reappointrment and supported and recommended ther reappomtment to the board,
The Committee has confirmed that each director continues to perform well on

an indwidual and collectve basis, making a vatuable contnbution to the board’s
delberations and demonstrating comrrutment to the long term interests of

the company

Nominations Committee attendance in 2011/12

DrBernard Butkin 4/4  Martin Lamb 4f4
Richard Davey 3/4  Baroness Noakes 4/4
Andrew Duff 44 Tory Wray 4/4
Gordon Fryett 4f4

Each Committee meeting complied with the terms of reference in that a mirimum
of five members were n attendance, with the majonty being ndependent,
non-executive directors




Sevemn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Governance - Nominabons Committee

Succession planning

When considenng new appointments
to the board, the Commuttee oversees
the preparation of a role speafication
that s provided to an independent
recruitment orgarwsation retained to
conduct a global search. In eddition to
the specific skills, knowtedge and
expenence deemed necessary, the
speaficotion contans cnteno such as

* 6 proven track record of creating
shareholder value,

+ unquestioned integnty and a dversity
of psychological mindset,

« a commitment to the highest
standards of governance,

* having the required time avoilable
to devote to the job,

+ strategic mindset, an awareness of
market leadership, outstanding
rmonitonng skdls,

* a preparedness to question, challenge
and openly assess, and

» gn independent pont of view
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Diversit
Further to the publication of the Davies Report, ‘Wornen on Boards', in February 2011,
boards of FTSE 350s have been encouraged to promote greater female representation
on corporate boards. Guidance frem the Financial Reporting Coundll hos olso
highlighted the importance of greater diversity of psychological profile around

the board table

Severn Trent believes that a diverse and indusive culture 1s a key foctor mbemng a
successful business Severn Trent Ptc shares the aspirabion of the Davtes Report to
promote greater femoale representation on Iisted company boards.

As and when board appomntment opportunities anse, recognising the relatively short
tenure of current directors, we will make full use of the procedures recornmended by
the Davies Report and by the Governance Code to support thrs aspiration. All board
appointments will be based on ment and must be in the interests of all stokeholders.

As at 31 March 2012 we had one female member on our board of 11 (representing
9%) and two fernate members out of 11 on the Executive Commuttee (representing
18%) As at the date of this report, and following the recent appomtrment of Angela
Hunter-Dobsan, there are three female members of the Executive Committee
{representing 27%) The total workforce gender split s 30% female and 70% male
As reported on page 17, we have conducted gender diversity research with

women employees in Severn Trent Water to understand what 1s mportant to them
in developing careers at Severn Trent. We plan to use the sarme methodology to
explore ethric dversity in the near future, so we can gan more Insights into this
aspect of our workforce composition and the findings will be examined by our
Diversity Working Group

Graphs removed

Andrew Duff
Charrnan of the Nominabions Committee

ammoglmsswsnalmmo

’ uonmuwmo‘szmnamsmmmmm‘ SWALTDNS pououy dnag



Sevem Trent Plc  Annuol Report and Accounts 2012

Govermnance

Audit Committee

Graphic removed

Baroness Noakes DBE
Chairmman of the Audit Cormeruttee

The Committee assists the board In
discharging tts responsibilities for the
ntegnty of the cormpany’s financial
staterments, the assessment of the
effectiveness of the systems of
intemal controls and monitoning the
effectrveness and objectwvity of the
internat and external auditors The rote
and the responsibilitses of the Committee
are set out in wrtten terns of reference
These can be found on the company’s
website (www severntrent.com})

and are also available from the
Company Secretary
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This report provides details of the role of the Audit Committee and the work it has
undertaken dunng the year

The members of the Committee are Baroness Noakes DBE (Chairrman), Dr Bernard
Bulkin and Richard Davey whose expertence and background are set out on pages 42
and 43 The board s satisfied that Baroness Noakes and Richard Davey have recent
and relevant financial expenence and that all members of the Commuttee remain
independent,

The members of the Commuittee receve updates m finanaal reporting and the group’s
requlatory framework in vanous forms throughout the year The Chairman, the Chuef
Executive, the Finance Director, the Director of Internal Audit, the Group Finanaal
Controlter and the extemal auditors normally attend, by invitation, all meetings of the
Committee Other members of serwor management are also rmwited to cttend as
appropnate In performing its duties, the Committee has access to the services of the
Dwector of Internol Audt, the Company Secretary and external professional advisers
The Commttee reports to the subsequent meeting of the board on the

Commuttee's work.

The Committee met four tirmes n 2011/12 and our work focused on four key areas
« finanaol staterments and accounting policies,

- mternal controls,

+ oversight of internal and external audit, and

» the regulatory reporting abligations of our subsidiary Severn Trent Water Luvuted

Financial statements and accounting policies

Reviewing the financial statements and accounting policies requires on exarmination of
matenia! judgements rmade in prepanng the financial statements We set out below
some of the key ssues we discussed m respect of 2011/12

« aprovision of £21 5 millon m exceptional charges, for the potentsal non recovery of
our econormic nterest in an Operating Setvices business in Italy;

« the value of goodwill Induding imparrments of £22 9 mullon to the goodwill n
respect of three Severn Trent Services busmesses, and

» the group’s accounting policy for exceptional terns and the cntena to determine
when iterns would be dassified as exceptional

In reviewing the financial staterments, we receve mput from the Disdosure Committee
and Delortte LLP (Deloitte} The former 1s chaired by the Finance Director and considers
the content, accuracy and tone of the financial staterments, the Ofwat Annual Returmn
and other public disclosures prior to ther relegse

Deloitte reported to the Committee on their review of the half year ntenm resutts and
on their audit of the year end finanaial statements.

Intemnal controls

We recewve regular reports from [nternal Audit i respect of thesr work on ntemal
controls and we review manogement letters recerved from the extemnal audstors
We reviewed the processes for and outputs from our enterpnse nsk managerment
process, through which the panapal nsks and related controts are identified. In
addition, we monitared the ongoing developrent of our compliance ond assurance
processes In respect of the key nsks

The Committee in particular reviewed the systemns and processes designed to prevent
froud ond bribery The Commttee also receves a regular log of nadents of froud or
brbery which indudes the actions taken to iInvestigate and respond to the madents.
There were no matenal nadents dunng the year

Further details of our Internal Control Framework, nduding the main features of our
intermal control and nsk management systems in relation to the finoncial reporting
process, can be found in the Directors’ report on page 71
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Policy on the provision of
non-audit services

The company has approved a format
policy on the provision of non-audtt
services aimed ot safequarding and
supporting the ndependence and
objectmty of the external cuditors.
The policy sets out the approach to be
taken by the group when using the
services of the external auditors,
ndudmg requinng that certan services
provided by the external auditors are
pre-approved by the Audit Committee
or its Chaimnan

It distinguishes between those services
where an independent view 1s required
and that should be performed by the
extemal auditors (such as statutory
and non-statutory audit and assurance
work), prohubtted services where the
independence of the external qudrtors
could be threatened and they must
not be used, and other norr-audtt
services where the external ouditors
may be used

Non-audrt services where the externol
auditors may be used include
non-recumnyg internal controls and nsk
management reviews (excuding
outsourcing of intemal audit work),
adwvice on financial reporting ond
requiatory matters, due dil:igence on
acqursitons and disposals, project
assurance and adwvice, tax compliance
services, and employee tax seraices
The approvat of the Audit Committee or
#ts Chairmnan s always required if a
non-oudit sence provided by the
auditors 15 expected to cost more than
£100,000 or f non-audt fees for the

year would thereby exceed the amount
of the audit fee
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Oversight of Internal Audit and external qudit

We are responsible for averseeing the work of the Intemal Audit function and also
for managing the relattonship with the group’s externat auditors. We review the
performance of the intermnal and external guditors annually to ensure that they are
effective and recommend to the board whether the external audttors should be
reappointed

The Committee regularly holds discussions with both the intemal and external
auditors in the absence of management.

Intemal Audit

The Director of Internal Audit and his Intermal Audit tearn report on a day to day basis
to management cn the effectiveness of the group’s systemns of mternal controls and
the adequocy of these systerns to manage business nsk and to safeguard the group's
assets and resources, This work 1s summarsed and reported to the Committee ona
regular bosis ond 1s a key element of the assurance that the Comrmittee receves on
the nsks and controls In the group

The plans, the level of resources and the budget of the Internal Audit function are
reviewed at least annually by the Committee The Drrector of Internal Audit is free to
raise any ssues with the Committee or its Chaimman at any tme durnng the year

External auditors

Delotte wos appointed auditers of the company 1n 2005 The Commuttee reviews

the auditors’ effectiveness each year pror to recommending to the board that they
be proposed for reappaintrnent at the AGM Delortte audit all significant subsidianes
of the group

Annudlly, the Cornimuttee reviews information prowvided by the external auditors
confirnung thetr ndependence and objectmty within the context of applicable
requiatory requirements and professional standards. The company does not have a
policy of tendenng the external audit at specific ntervals but would intiote 6 tender
process If there were any concemns about the quality of the audit or the independence
and objectivity of the auditors There are no contractual abligations that act to restnct
the Cormmuttee's choice of external qudrtors.

Detais of the amounts paid to Belortte for audit and non-gudit serices are provided in
note 7 to the occounts page 91

Severn Trent Water Limited

The requiated actvities camed cut by Severn Trent Water Liruted result i two other
reporting requirements to Ofwat and these are also covered by the Commuttee an
annual return on Severn Trent Water Limited's regulatory obligations, known as the
Ofwat Annual Return, and a staterment that underpins the customer charges made by
Severn Trent Water Lirmited, known as the Pnnapal Staternent.

In March 2012 the Cormnmuittee discussed the assurance framework n place for the
new Ofwat Annual Retum process.

Delortte makes reports to Ofwat in respect of Severn Trent Water's regutatory
occounts The Ofwat Annual Retum covers many aspects which are not financal and
Sevem Trent Water Limited appoints engineenng consuttants, Atkans, to report on
those aspects. The Comrrittee recerves reports from Deloitte and Atkins on thew work
as part of its review of the retums

Audit Committee attendance in 2011/12
Bargness Nockes ) 4f4
Or Bemnard Bulkin 4f4

The performance of the Committee was induded in the external review of the board
referred to on poge 47 No matters requinng action by the Committee arose from
that review

Richard Davey 34

amuanng‘mmssmsng’mm

ﬂwmmpanj_;ﬁnch.m‘ SUALANBYS pouowy dnoxy

|



Sevem Trent Plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Governance

54

Corporate Responsibility Committee

Graphic removed

Dr Bernard Butkn
Chawman of the Corporate
Responsibdity Cornmittee

The Committee provides guidance and
direction to the group’s Carporate
Responsibility (CR) programme, reviews
the group’s key non-finanaal nsks and
opportunities and monrtors progress

The terms of reference for the
Commuittee can be found on the
company’s website (www.severntrent.
cam) and are also available from the
Company Secretary

The Commuttee reviews annually the
group’s formal whistleblowing policy
that deals with allegations from
emptoyees relating to breaches of the
Code of Conduct and reviews at each
of its meetings the whustleblowing
nadent log

The purpose of the Corporate Responsibility (CR) Commuttee 1s to prowide board
oversight of the mancgement of dll non-finanaio! nsks to the group The structure for
our CR policy and framework has been based around the four areas of Workplace,
Marketplace, Ervironment and Community This provides a common framework for
both our businesses - regutated and non-regulated We will continue to review the
framework as we Integrate corporate responsibility into our core business operations
for both Severn Trent Water and Sevem Trent Services

Within our CR framework, we have identified focus areas that are crtical to our
managernent of nsk and reputation These areas have been deterrnined through
stakeholder didlogue, nsk assessment and benchrarking withun the water industry
and the FTSE 100

The focus areas have provided the basis for the forwaord agenda of the Committee, ond
will continue to be aligned to the nine pnnciples set out In our Code of Conduct.

Keeping everyone hedlthy ond safe

Supporting employees’ nghts and dversity

Maintaining ethical end honest behaviour

Staying free from bribery and comuption

Keeping our commurications apen and responsible

Delivering excellent customer service

Workmng withuin the cormnmurty

Protecting our ermronment

Standing up for what's nght

The focus areas also deterrnine cur approach to working in collaboration with other

organisations who share mutud interests and objectives Further information s
available on our corporate website (www severntrent.com)

Within Severn Trent Water we have an effectrve performance managerment system
in place through 20 core business Key Performance Indicators (KPis) and erght Key
Strategic Intentions (KSIs} These are overseen by the Executsve Commuttee and the
booard Many of the business KPIs relate directly to our CR focus areas and therefore
contnbute sigruficantly to our CR performance

We report internally on our performance through both our Executive Committee
and the Cornmittee Externally, we report through a number of channels induding
our annual regulatory subrussion to Ofwat, our websites and our Annual Report
and Accounts

Dunng the year the Committee has received papers on key business programmes

and strategies linked to the tenms of reference of the Committee These induded
catchment management, cimate change adaptation, diversity and employee
motvation. The Committee also recerved reports from Intemal Audit with respect to
their work on non-financial nsk aigned with the CR framework and regular updates on
hedlth, safety and environmental perforrnance In addition, the Committee responds
to emerging issues and fluondation was tabled gs a resutt of questions posed at the
2011 AGM.

The members of the Commitiee are Dr Bernard Bulkin (Charmany), Andrew Duff,
Gordon Fryett and Tony Wray

Y 0~ WV W N =

Corporate Responsibility Committee attendance in 2011/12

Dr Bernard Bulkin 5/5  Gordon Fryett 5/5
Andrew Duff ) 55 TonyWray 4/5
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Remuneration Committee

Graphic remaved

Richard Davey
Charman of the Rermuneration Committee

The Rermuneration Committee
deterrmines, on behalf of the board, the
company’s policy on the rernuneration
of executsve directors, other members
of the Severn Trent Executive
Committee (STEC} and the Chairman of
the board The Committee detenmines
the total rernuneration packages and
contractual terms and conditions for
these ndviduals. The policy framework
for remunerating all senior executive
managers Is consistent with the
approach taken for executive drectors

The members of the Rermuneration
Commuttee dunng the year were

Dr Bernard Bulkin, Richard Davey
(Commuttee Chairman) and Martin
Lormb all of whormn are mdependent
nonexecutive directors Andrew Duff,
the cormpany Chairman, who was
mdependent on his appomntment

to the board, 1s also a member
Accordingly, the cormnposition of the
Committee 15 In accordance with the
Governance Code

Dear Shareholder

Thus report sets out the remuneration policy for the drectors of Severn Trent Plc and
disctoses the amounts paid to them m the year ended 31 March 2012

The report 1s subject to a shareholder vote and a resolutron to approve the Directors’
remuneration report will be proposad at the AGM. The report has been prepared m
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the pninciples of the
Govemnarxe Code and best practice gurdelines,

Key developments for 2012/13

Followirig a thorough review of the vanable arrangements for the executive directors
and other rernbers of the Sevem Trent Executive Committee (STEC) n 2010/11, the
Remuneration Committee has continued to monitor the policy to take occount of
evolving best and market practice, whilst also seeking to ensure that a stable
framework 1s maintaned and avarding makung unnecessary and frequent changes
to the structure of pay Accordingly, for 2012/13, there is irruted change to the
rernuneration policy Howevet, the following points ere of note

+ the annudl bonus ptan will continue to be based on a portfolio of KPIs linked to our
Balanced Scorecard and Ofwat’s measures of success The number of KPIs will be
reduced frorn 20 to 10 to align with Ofwat's revised sunte of published KPIs,

» the existing dawback provisions within the bonus ptan, Long Term Incentive Plon
{LTIP) and Share Matching Plan have been amended to include the nght to daw
back in the event of misconduct or misstaterent of results due to an emor m
calculatron in line with the Governance Code This reflects best practice since the
onginat provisions were adopted, and

+ the policy on pensions for new executive directors who are appointed to the board
will be an entittement to 25% of salary

The Commuttee will continue to take o pro-active approach to responding to

developments in legislation, best practice and the wider market, as well as the

corporate strategy, in order to ensure that our senior executive reward policy remains
fit for purpose

Richard Davey
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Remuneration Committee activity

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2012, the Commuttee met five
tmes to discuss key remuneration isstues ansing, the review and
operation of the company’s remuneration policy and market
updates by ts advisers

Remuneration Committee attendance in 2011/12

Richard Davey 5/5
Andrew Duff 5/5
Br Bermnard Bulkin 5/5
Mortin Lamb 5/5

With the exception of the company Chairman, the Commuttee
members have no personal finanoial interest, other than as
shareholders, in the matters to be decided As company
Chairman, Andrew Duff's fees are set by the Commuttee but
he 1s not party to thes discussion
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Adwvisers

To ensure that the compary’s remuneration practices are
market competitive, the Commuttee has access to detailed
externdal research on market data and trends from expenenced
specialist consultants

New Bndge Street (o tradng name of Aon Corporation) 1s the
mndependent adwiser to the Commuttee Neither New Bndge
Street nor any other part of the Aon Corporation provided other
services to the company dunng the year Dunng 2011/12, the
Committee carmed out a formal review of its adwisers, and
reappointed New Bridge Street, .

The Chief Executive (Teny Wray) and the Director of Human
Resources (Evelyn Dickey) also attended the Commuttee
meetings to provide adwvice and respond to specific questions
Such attendances specifically excluded any matter concerming
thetr own remuneration. The Company Secretary, Bronagh
Kennedy, acts as secretary to the Committee

How we reflect our core strategic pnorities i executive remuneration
The remuneration policy for senior executives 1s set with dose regord to the company’s four key focus areas and nsk ranagerment,

Key focus Remuneration policy

Customer—delverng  Annual bonus and LTIP potential just below the median when compared to the FTSE 51-150, supported by
quality services ot competitive base salary ot or below market median

prices customers RoRCV targets within the LTIP and finanaial based KPIs within the annual bonus are set with close regard to

can afford

Ofwat’s determination, ensunng that we dosely manage our performance within the regulatory imits.

Custormer focused KPIs form a substantial part of the annuol bonus scorecard
Employee -investing  The Cormmuttee aims to ensure that the executive salary movernent s aligned to the rest of the workforce

The corporate scorecard approach s used for the annual borus throughout the company
HMRC approved share plans (all-employee SIP and SAYE) are operated annuadlly for UK based executives

in the nght people
with the night skills
and emnployees
Ervironment - reducing KPEs withun the annual bonus for all employees ndude environmentdl factors,
pollution and our
carbon footprnt

Finanaiat - making our - A vanety of financial KPIs are used within the annuat bonus plan to help ensure our financol performance

busmess attractive 15 optirrused

to investors Cut-turn under the LTIP 1s wholly determined by the achievemnent of RoRCY against the Ofwat Final
Deterrmunation No LTIP payout will be rade if performance 1s below the RoRCV target set by Ofwat.

Relative TSR 1s used to measure perforrmance in the Share Matchung Plan to reward executives for Severn

Trent outperforrming the stock market.

Remuneration policy

Each year, the Comrruttee reviews the remuneration policy for
executive directors and other senior executive managers, taking
into eccount both the external market and the cormpany’s
strateqic objectives over the short and the medum term
Furthermore, there 1s a clear tink between all-employee
remuneration polices and those operated at serior

executrve level.

The Committee addresses the need to balance nsk and

reward The Comrittee continues to monitor the vanable pay
arrangements for the executive directors and other members
of the Executive Commuttee to take account of the nsk profile
of the compony ensunng sustamabiity and how thes s reflected
n vonable remuneration. The Committee believes thot the
schemes are appropnately managed and that the choice of
performance measures and targets does not encourage
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undue nsk taking by the executives so that the long term
performance of the business 1s not put at the nsk of short term
value The schemes incorporate a range of intemal and extemnal
performance metncs, reasunng both operational and financat
performance prowding a rounded assessment of overall
company perforrnance

Workforce remuneration policy and its inkage to senior
executive policy

The Commuttee addresses the need to ensure that changes n
senior executive remuneration is kept m bne with workforce

pay Whilst it has not set a speafic policy on the relationship
between executive directors’ pay and that of the rest of the
workforce, it aims to ensure that executve salary movernent

1s approprately aligned to the rest of the workforce and
speafically considers this aspect as part of its decsion

making process

Remunerabion arrangements for executive directors
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All-employee share plans (UK)

The cormpany also actvely encourages all-employee share

ownership, and aims to ensure that employees are given

the opportunsty to share in the success of the company

For examnple, two oll-employee share plans are operated

as follows

- anoll-employee Share Incentive Plan Awards are currently
made which indude a performance condition based on
achuevernent of the KPIs. Employees of Severn Trent Plc and
Severn Trent Water Lsmited partiaipate n the plan In respect
of 2011/12 performance, in the forthcoming year gwards
of shares to the value of £309 will be made to all eligble
employees, and

+ andll-employee HMRC approved SAYE plan onan
annual basis

The Cormimittee penodicatly reviews the use of other

all-employee incentive vehides

In addition, the ernployee bonus plans include a sigruficant
element of performance consistent with the KPIs measured
within the executve directors’ annual bonus plan

The remuneration arrangements for the executive directors compnse the following elernents

+ base salary and benefits,
» annual bonus scheme;
* LTIP and Share Matchung Plon (SMP), and

* pension.
Details of each of the above elements follow but the table below summanses the packages of each of the executive directors
Tony Ballance Mart:n Kane Andy Smeth
Torry Wray Michael McKeon Dwrector, Strategy  Chuef Executive Officer Drector of
Component Choef Executve Finance Director ond Regulotion - Severn Trent Senaces Water Senaces
Base salary from £561,000 £455,400 £206,100 £250,600 £267,500
1 July 2012
On target bonus 60% 60% 60% 60% 60%
{% of salary}
Maxernurm bonus 120% 120% 120% 120% 120%
{% of salary)
% of bonus eamed 50% 50% S50% 50% 50%
deferred nito shares
LYT1P award 70% 50% 50% 50% 50%
(% salary) i
SMP award - 051 051 051 051 05 1
maximum ratio of
matching shares to
deferred shares o
Pension amangement Final salary Cash dlowance Defined Cash supplement Final salary
occupational contrbution occupational
scherne to scheme scheme
31122011 ond
cash dllowance
effectve from
01012012 )
Benefits A car dllowance, prvate medical insurance, Iife assurance and an incapaaty benefits scheme
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Pay arrangements for Martin Kane

Martin Kane was promoted to the role of Chuef Executive Officer
(CEQ) - Severn Trent Services with effect from 1 January 2012
From that date, his salary was ncreased to £250,600 and a
disturbance allowance of £29,400 has been put n plece n
recagnition of the international nature of ths role and Martin's
continued board duttes His bonus, LTIP and Share Matching
Plan award levels remain unchanged

In order to carry out hus new rote, Martin was required to
relocate to the US Consequently, hs benefits figure for
2011/2012 nduded an amount of £28,628 relatng to tus
relocation and associated costs Of this total, £12,470 was ‘one
off In nature, being in respect of household goods The balance
of £16,158 relates to ongoing costs nctuding property lease
rental, US medical insurance and US lease car This relates toan
annualised amount of £54,091 The associated tax hability n
relation to these relocation costs will be borne by Severn Trent
when they fall due For 2011/2012 this s estimated to be
£21,458 Martin also recerves an allowance of £2,509 to cover
US Utilities cost associated wath hus relocation In setting hus
relocation package specialist external advice wos sought from
ECA who specialise in expatriate remuneration

58

Base salaries and benefits

Base salories for indmdual directors are reviewed annually by
the Cornmittee and take effect from 1 duly Salanes are set
with reference to indmdual performance, experience and
contnbution, together with developrments m the relevant
employment market (having regard to the market median for
similar roles in publicly quoted comparues of a comparable size
and prachce in other water compantes) and internal relatvities,

The Committee gives due consideration to the current
economic cimate and current market proctice regarding
executive salary reviews and the broader emnployee satary
review policy at the company

The Committee has reviewed salarnies for 2012/13 and has
determned that salanes for all executive directors except
Martin Kane {who wilt receve no further increase until July 2013),
wilt be mcreased by 2% from 1 July 2012 This 2% increase s in
tine with the average increase across the rest of the company

The core non-salary benefits for executive directors compnser
» o car dlowance,

» private medicol msurance;

= life assurance, and

* anmcapacity benefits schermne

Prvate medical insurance and some other benefits may be
flexed under the company’s flexible benefits scheme

Executive directors are eligible for annual bonuses to encourage
improved performance, with targets established by the
Committee to align executive directors’ interests with
shareholders The annual bonus opportunity for all the
executive directors 1s 120% of salary For the achievernent of
target perforrmance (which requires satssfaction of challenging
godals), 60% of salary could be eamed

Half of any bonus paud 1s deferred into shazes to be held for
three years following payment. If the executive 1Is summarily
dismussed without notice under his/her ernployment contract
then the deferred bonuses are forfeited In dll other cases of
cessation of employment the deferred bonus s not lost and the
shares are autormatically reteased on the dealng day after the
cessation of employment.

For severdl years, Severn Trent has operoted a dawback
provision which will conbinue for the forthcorming year Inlight
of the publication of the Governance Code, the Committee
considered the structure of the company’s dawback provision
reviewing best and evolving practice In the ght of ths it mode
some changes to the operation of the dawbock to allow for the
clawback to be tnggered on gross misconduct, an error m the
basis of calculation and musstatemnent of results. The dawback
would usually be satisfied by reduang future annual bonus
payments or the next release of share based awards Inthe
event that a cash dawback were necessary, it would normally
be only to the net of tax amounts

Annual bonus payments to executive directors are not
pensionable

Annual Bonus Scheme
|
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Bonus out-tumn for 2011/12

In 2012, the Chuef Executive and Finance Crector had 80% of
therr bonus out-turm based on the performance of Severn Trent
Water, 10% based on Severn Trent Senaces performance and
10% based on personal contrnbution to reflect the nsk profile of
the group and therr leved of accountability The remamning
executive directors had 90% of their borus cut-turn attnbuted
to Severn Trent Water perforrnance and 10% based on personat
performance

Sevemn Trent Water performance

The bonus outtum in respect of Severn Trent Water
performance was operated by reference to a balanced
scorecard of measures, based on the 20 KPIs set at the start of
the financial year The bonus entittement was deterrmined by
reference to the aggregate number of points awarded across dll
the KPls The targets taken together are considered by the
beard to have an impact on the tonger term financial
performance of the company and a number of them are
reported to Ofwat.

The total score achieved against the KPIs was 63 72% of the
maximum available The Committee applied discretion by
rnoving dowrnwvards two KPIs 10 35% relates to Customer
Metnics, 14 06% to Employee Metncs, 21 26% relates to
Ervironment Metncs and 18 01% to Financiat Metncs

Severn Trent Services performance

The Chief Executive and Finance Drector had 10% of therr
bonus linked to the performance of Severn Trent Senvices.
Perforrnance 1s measured agamst the profit before interest
and tax (before exceptional terns) retum on invested capital of
Severn Trent Services and speafic personal objectives relatng to
governance and control

Personal performance measures

In additon, each director has 10% of thetr bonus opportunity
measured against o set of personal perforrmance metrics,
The personal performnance scores for the executive directors
ranged from 8 5% to 9 4% out of a maximum 10% available

Bonws targets for 2012/13

The Cornrmittee has reviewed the operation of the plan and
concluded that it should operate on a simniar basis for 2012/13
However, under the Severn Trent Water element, a change 1s
bemg made to reduce the number of KPIs from 20 to 10 Thus
change reflects that Ofwat has published o revised surte of KPis
against which they have indicated that they will assess water
companes, and it is therefore appropnate to measure the
company’s performance consistently with those externally
published measures of success

As a result of bus promotion to CEQ - Severn Trent Services,
Martm Kane's bonus wall now compnse 70% linked to the
performance of Sevem Trent Senvices, 10% linked to the
performeance of Sevemn Trent Water and 20% to personal
performance For the other executive directors, therr bonus
weightings will remain unchanged
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The following chart surnmanses how the onnual bonus metrics
are weighted for the executive directors for 2012/13

Graph removed

Long term incentives

The executive directors are eligible to participate in two long
term incentve schemes. a Long Term Incentve Plan, and

a Share Matching Plan

a) Long Term Incentive Plan

The Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP} was approved by
sharehotders at the 2005 AGM Under the LTIP, annual
conditional awards of perforrnance shares may be made to
executve directors and senior stoff, up to an annual maximum
lirvut of shares worth 125% of base salary

The policy level of LTIP awards 1s 70% of salary for the Chief
Executive and 50% of salary for the other executive directors.
Awards of this level were made in 2011

Participants are entitled to additional shares in lieu of dvidends
paid on vested shares over the performance penod Awards will
nomnally vest as soon as the Committee determunes that the
performance conditions have been met provided that the
partiapant remaoins in employiment at the end of the
performance peniod

In 2011, the Commuttee changed the performance targets
applying to LTIP awards to be based on return on requiatory
capital volue (RORCV) The Committee betieves that the use of
RoRCV provides a strong alignment between the long term
finanaal and operational performance of the group and the
rewards delivered to management. It is felt by the Commuttee
to be the most all encornpassing indicator of performance

Thus measure 1s entirely consistent with the method used

by Ofwat In setting customer prices as part of the Final
Deterrmination {the process whereby COfwat set the level of
prices we can charge customers), and reflects the efficency
of earmings rather than simply being an absolute measure of
profit and 1s verified and published as part of the Ofwat Annua
Retumn process,
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A shiding scale of targets 1s used, linked to outperforrmance of
the Ofwat Final Determination shown graphically below

Graph removed

This vesting schedule 15 set so as to ensure that executives are
appropriately rewarded for performance in excess of the Final
Deterrmination, with no payouts for performance below this
However, it 1s dlso important that executives are not over-
incentvised to achieve excessive levels of RORCV, which could In
theory incentivise inappropnate behaviours such as operational
performance which does not deliver customer value or
mnadequate investment in our caprtal base The Commitiee
believes the above scale encourages delvery of strong
performance aganst the Final Determination, but without
compromusing the company’s wider values.

For 2012 awards, performance wil be measured over the three
finanaal years ending 31 March 2013, 2014 and 2015 If the
vesting result 1s 0% or greater than 50% than the Commuttee
reserves the discretionary power to change this result. If itis
greater than 50% ¢t may reduce the vesting to a rumber not
less than 50% as it considers appropnate; and if it 1s 0% it may
increase it to any figure not greater than 50% The use of this
discretion 1s expected to be exceptional, but may be invoked by
the Committee in order to take into account of any of the
followang fuctors (not an exhaustive list)

« Actual RPI compared to the Ofwat assumed RPI figure - even
though the RoRCV 1s adjusted each year for RPI a significant
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swing in nftabion dunng the year can result in substontial
urder or over performance on the RoRCV target. RPLin itself 15
not a factor that management can influence,

+ Changes to the fmanang of the company as approved by the
board dunng the performance penod - for exarmple a sigrificant
change to the level of geonng of the balance sheet would
result in parbially meeting this performance condition, and

» Policy changes that occur dunng the performance penod -
there 1s much discussion on the future shape of the water
industry in the UK and if enacted we would wish to ensure
that any changes have a neutral mpact on existing awards.

b) Share Matching Plan

Under the Share Matchung Plan (‘SMP') executives can receve

up to one matching share for each share deferred under the
annudal bonus plan The current policy 1s that they receve 05
rmatching share for each deferred share At the time of vesting
participants will receve the dvidends paid on vested shares over
the vesting penod Awards wilt normally vest as soon as the
Commuttee determines that the performance conditions have
been met provided that the participant remains in employment
at the end of the three year period

Awards under the SMP are subject to a relative Total
Shareholder Return (TSR} measure over three distinct
performance peniods However, owards will not normally

vest to participants until the third annversary of grant.

The performance condibion requires the company’s TSR to be
measured relative to those compares ranked 51-150 in the
FTSE Index by market capttalisation (excuding mvestment
trusts} This is constdered to be the most suitable comparator
group since the number of comparable reguiated utitties
aganst which to compare the cornpany’s performance remains
too small to enable meaningful analyss. The FTSE 51-150
comparator group dllows for the company’s performance to be
measured against a broader market without ary one sector
overly impacting the group In addition, for awards to vest, the
Commuttee must be satisfied that the TSR 1s reflective of the
company’s underlying performance

At the time of vesting participants will receve the dwdends
paid on vested shares over the performance penod

Shown graphically, the vesting schedule and performance and
vesting penods applying to the 2011 and 2012 SMP awards 5.

Graphs rermoved
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Pensions

Sevemn Trent executives recerve retrernent benefits from a
vanety of legocy pension arrangements including defined
beneftt, defined contnbution, payments made direct to
personal ptans and cash m beu However, whilst for legacy
reasons the executive directors particpate in a vanety of
different arrangements, the policy for emiployer contnbutions
for new executive directars has been agreed at 25% of salary
{with cash equivalent above the Annual Allowance or cash in
liews of the whole pension contnbution if above the Lifetime
Allowance}

As a result of the changes In pension legrstation for ugh earners,
Severn Trent has introduced the followang options for any
indmduats who are affected by the tax changes

For defined contrnibution members

+ Continue In the scherne and ndmduals meet any tax
liabilizes as they fall due, or

+ Continue In the scheme up to the Annual Allowance (£50,000
for 2011/12 tax year) and receive a cash altemative
{equwalent to the level of employer contnbutions made to
the scheme) above the Annual Allowance [f affected by the
Lifetme Aflowance, executives may receve cash in leu of the
pension contnbution they would otherwise have receved

For defined benefit members

« Continue in the scheme and indviduals meet any tax
habities as they fall due, or
+ Optout of future defined benefit accrudl and join the defined
contnbution section with the scme options as above
Tony Wray has elected to opt out of the defined benefit scheme
since he 15 affected by the Ldfetime Allowance Therefore, he will
now receve a satary supplement of 40% of base salary in lieu of
future pension provision.
Of the cumrent executive directors, Andy Smith porticipates n
the Severn Trent Pension Scheme, and he has elected to remain
in this scheme until ts dosure in 2015 The schemne 1s o funded
HMRC regstered final solary occupational pension scheme
whuch prowdes
+ anormal retirement age of 60 years,
« anoverall pension at normal retrement oge of two thirds
of final pensionable salary, which for executve directors 1s
defined as bose satary only, subject to the cornpletion of
20 years' pensionable service,
- lfe cover of 4 x pensionable earmings,
- a penston payable in the event of rebrerment on grounds
of dl heglth, and

« adependant’s pension on death of two thirds of the
member’s pension.
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Andy Srith participates up to the level of the scheme specific
eamngs cap which in 2011/12 was £129,600 He 1s provided
with a cash supplement in lieu of pension entitlernent above
thes scheme cap at 40% of his salary

Members’ contributions are payable at the rate of 6% of
pensicnable eamings Early retrernent s available aofter the oge
of 55 with the consent of the company Any pension would be
subject to o reduction that the trustees consider appropnate,
acting on actuanal advice, to reflect the expected longer
payment of the pension In the event of ncapacity, early
rebrernent s avalable on an unreduced basis allowmng for
pensionable service to age 60

Under the Trust Deed and Rules, pensions in payrment in excess
of any Guaronteed Minimurm Pension are guaranteed to
increase in line with pnee mflation subject to a maxirmum of
5% each year In the calculation of indvidual cash equivalent
trensfer values, allowance 1s made for such increases.

Indmdual executives are able to choose whether the allowance
1s paid to the comparty’s registered defined contnbution
scheme, taken os cash or paid to a personal pension
arrangement Thus reflects the wish of the Committee to
remaove future exposure to defined benefit schernes for seruor
executves These arrangements apply to Michael McKeon at
40% of base salary

Martin Kane 1s @ member of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme
{WPS Section) but opted out of the scherne in Jurie 2007 He
receves a cash supplerment of 30% of his basic salary in beu of
accrual for future servce from that date While he no longer
accrues addtionat years of service for pension purposes,
consistent with the legislation, Martin Kane's accrued benefits
generally contirue to be linked to his final salary (or £161,000
plus RPI from 30 June 2007 to the date of hus retirernent,
hugher} and scherme benefits are preserved in relation to @l
heglth, retrement and death n service The normal retirement
age for the scheme 15 65 dlthough early retirement 1s possible
prior to age 65 with the consent of the comparty, but any
benefits relating to service accrung after 1 December 2006
would be subject to an actuanal reduction,

Tory Ballance s o member of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme
(Pension Chaices section) which 1s the company’s defined
contnbution scherme He currently contnbutes 3% of salary and
the cormpany contrbutes at 30%, plus a further 2 5% m respect

of death in senvice and il heglth benefits, The normal retirement

age for the scheme s 65 dlthough retirerment pnor to 65 5
possible with the consent of the company
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Personal shareholdings

The company operates sharehalding gurdelnes under which
executve directors are expected to bulld and mantain o
minimum holding of shares in the company The Chuef Executive
15 expected to build and maintain a holding of shares to the
value of 1 5 x base salary and other executive directors 1 x base
satary Executive directors are expected to retan oll of the net
of tax number of shares they recerve through the LTIP, SMP and
other share-based plans until the shareholding guidelines have
been met Good progress s being made to meet the: guideline
holdings. Details of the current shareholdings of the executve
directors are set out on page 65

Directors' service agreements and letters of appointment
The Cormymittee continues to ensure that senace contracts for
new executive directors reflect best practice Toking ths into
account, it 1s the Committee’s policy that for future executve
director appointrents, the termination pravisions within the
service contracts will state that any terrmunation payment
should be based upon an estimate of salary and fixed
benefits only

The existing executive directors all have contracts under a
model which was approved by the Commuttee in 2004 and
updated dunng 2007/08 The main terms of the contracts for
existing executive directors are surnmansed in the table below
The Committee believes that the contracts provide as much
scope as 15 feasible to protect the interests of shareholders
when negotiating a termination, at whuch time it would
address the duty of mitigation.

All are subject to reappointment as directors at the
forthcorming AGM

Provision Policy
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External directorships

Executive directors are penmitted to take on extemal non-
executive directorshups, though normally only one other

FTSE 100 appointment. In order to avord any conflicts of
mnterest, oll such appontments are subject to the approval

of the Nommations Cormimittee Executive directors are
nomally only permitted to retain the fees ansing from one
such appomntment. External non-executve appointrents help
to bnng a further extermal perspective to the group and help in
the development of key ;ndnviduals expenence

Michael McKeon was appointed as a non-executive director

of The Merchants Trust Plc on 1 May 2008 and in respect of the
appointment for the year ended 31 Manch 2012 he was paid
fees of £23,205 He has retained these fees 1n accordance with
the above policy

Tony Wray was appointed as a non-executive director of
Gramger plc on 24 October 2011 and i respect of the
appeintment for the year ended 31 March 2012 has been

poid fees of £17,590

No other executve directors currently hotd any external fee
eoming non-executive directorships

Natice pertod 12 moonths from erther party

Termination
payment

Theoretical maxirmum payrment n the case of redundancy or termunation in breach of the agreement by the company
of 175% of base salary In deternuning actuat payouts, the Commuttee has a duty to take nto account the following

+ A reduction of up to 10% can be made at the Committee’s sole discretion {i e lowenng the payout to 157 5%

of salary), and

+ There 1s an explict clause i the contract stating that the company shall not be required to reward

poor performance

Any payment will not mdude amounts in respect of awards which have been made under any share plan which are

govemed by the nules of individual plans.
Mitigation

Any terrmination payrnent will not be made m:tomaﬂcoity but will be subject to both phasing and mitigation

{induding offset aganst any eammgs from new ernployment) unless, in the arcumstances, the Committee
considers it appropnate to achieve a dean break through payment of a turnp sum, in which case it will require

some discount for early payrment.

Change of
control of the company

There are no speafic contractual payments or benefits which would be tnggered in the event of a change in control —

Contract dotes

Executve directors

Tony Wray
Michael McKeon
Tory Ballarce
Martin Kane

Andy Senith

Date of current
ogreement

20 May 2008
6 December 2005
2 June 2008
1 Jarnuary 2012
2 June 2008

_ 1 Jarwary 2005

Date of appontrment
to Severn Trent

7 March 2005

13 Decernber 2005
23 July 2005

30 September 1975
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Performance graph

This graph shows the value, by 31 March 2012, of £100 invested
in Severn Trent Plc on 31 March 2007 compared with the value
of £100 mvested in the FTSE 100 Index The FTSE 100 was
chosen as the comparator becouse the company s a
constituent of that index The intermediate points show the
value at mtervening finoncio! year ends.

Graph rernoved

The board does not require directors to take a proportion of their fees in shares ond, instead, leaves decisions regarding the holding

of shares to ndmdual non-executive directors

Non-executive directors do not partiaipate in share or bonus schemes, nor s any pension provision made

Non-executive directors normlly serve three terms of three years. They do not have service contracts but their terms of
engagernent are regulated by letters of appomtrment, detals of which are shown below

Charmnan and non-executive directors

Charman and other non-executive directors
The remuneratson policy for non-executive directors, other than

the Chaurnan, 15 determuned by the board, within the limits set
out n the articles of assoaation.

The level and structure of the non-executive directors’ fees was
reviewed by the board in 2012 end some changes made which
were effective from April 2012 Rather than paying a separate
fee for membership of board committees, a single fee nduding
such memberships will be pad Additional fees will continue to
be paid for the servor independent director and chairmenshp of
the board comrruttees.

The breakdown of the non-executive directors’ fees from 1 Aprit

am‘mma‘ma\o

2012 1s shown m the table below é‘
Fees =
Base fee paid to dll non-executive directors £50,000 g
Supplernentary fees
- Serigr ndependent director £10,000
~ Audit Committee Charman £15,000
- Remuneration Committee Chaarman £15,000 @
-~ Corporate Responsibity Committee Charman . £13,000

The Chairman recerves a fee of £250,000 per annum This was
reviewed in 2012 and no change wos made to his fee He does
not recewve any additional fees for Commuttee memberships He
does not participate in any of the company’s pension
arrangements, share or bonus schermes
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Inito! appomtrment Current appointment Current expiry date”
Bernard Bulkin 1 January 2006 1 January 2012 31 Decernber 2014
Richard Davey 1 January 2006 1 January 2012 31 Becember 2014
Andrew Duff (Chairmnan) 10 May 2010 10 May 2010 9 May 2013
Gordon Fryett 1 Juty 2009 1 aly 2009 30 June 2012
Martin Lomb 29 February 2008 1 March 2011 28 February 2014
Baroness Noakes 29 February 2008 1 March 2011 28 February 2014

* Sutyect to the requirernents of the company's arides of assoaabon for the reappamtment of directors ot AGMs,
All of the directors are subject to reappointment as directors at the 2012 AGM.




Sevemn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Governance - Remuneration Committee

64

The text and tables thot follow comprise the auditable part of the Directors' remuneration report, being the information required by

the UKLA Lsting Rules986and 988

Directors’ emoluments

Total Total Total
Bosic Annugt  Annual 2011712 0C  mcldngDC 201011
salary borws -  borwus- before DC pension pension inctuding DC
and fees BIKs! cosh?  deferred? Other’  pensions  contrbutions'  contributions
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Chairman ond other non-executive directors
Dr Bernard Bulkin 594 - - - - 594 - 594 594
Richard Davey 714 - - - - 714 - 714 715
Andrew Duff {Chairman) 2500 - - - - 2500 - 2500 2242
Gordon Fryett . he4 - - - - 464 - 464 464
Martin Lamb  46h - - - - 564 - 464 464
Baroness Noakes 584 - - - 02 586 - 586 587
Executve directors i
Tony Ballance 1951 28 556 556 150 3241 712 3953 3793
Martin Kane 2267: 347 699 699 1002 5014 - 5014 4136
Michael Mckeon 4423 ) 69 1191 1191 142 4 8298 500 8798 8427
Andy Srmith © 2515 32 722 722 674 4665 - 4665 4567
Tony Wray 5301 77 1530 1530 1911 1,0349 - 10349 9051
21777 553 4698 4698 5163 36889 1212 38101 35040

1 Inrespect toMarbn Kane's relocation cost, the assooated tax will be bome by Severn Trent when it falls due estmated at £21,458 for 2011/2012 Please refer to poge 58 whch

provides further detoils.

2 The directors recerve 50% of thew bonus m cash and 50% in shares, awarded under the Annudl Bonus Scherme The omounts shawn 1n respect of share bonus are those owords
made m respect of 2012 performance Qutstanding urveleased Annual Borus Scheme awards are shown os non-berefiaal interests m the table of directors’ share nterests ond

n the defesred borus owards table

3 Other ernoluments nclude expenses chargeable to ncome tax, cor allowances, travet allowances, telephone allowances and ameounts paxd n Lew of pension contributions.

Included mn other emoluments are
« Baroness Noakes experses £179

» Tory Ballance car allowonce £315,000 and expenses £5

» Maortn Kone pension supplement £67,950, car allowance £15,000 and experses £17,300
+  Michoel McKeon pension supplernent £127,300, cor atiowonce £15,000 ond expenises £115

+  Andy Smuth pension supplemnent £52,640, cor affowance £15,000 ond expenses £7
+ Tony Wray pension supplernent £176,120 ond car allowance £15,000
4 Muchael McKeon recerved £50,000 up to the annuat dlowance, the balance of his pension arangesnent £127,300 was prowded in a cash supplement under ‘other’
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Directors’ defined benefit pension provisions

Increase Increase/

Incregsen n occrued {decrease} in

Service ccrued pension Tronsfer value Transfer value transfer volue

completed m Accrued pension dunng of accrued of acerued over the year,

years (ncluding pension at dunng the year pensionat pensionat  net of directors’

transferredn 31 March 2012 theyear (netofmflation) 31March2012 31 March 2011 contribubions

Nome service credits) £po fpa £pa £000 £000 £000

Andy Srith 7 31,317 5,581 4,629 4933 434 2 513

Tony Wray 6 29471 4,469 3,544 4243 404 8 137

Martin Kane 35 134,773 7,944 3,251 21661 2,0006 1655

Transfer

Increase i volue of aecrued

Accrued Increasein  accrued pension benefits net

pensionat  accrued pension  dunng the year of directors’

31March 2012 dunngtheyear  (net of inflation) contrbutions

Name £pa £po £000

Andy Srruth 31,317 5,581 4629 801

Tony Wray 29471 4,469 3,544 585

Martin Kane 134,773 7,944 3,251 1280
Motes.

Accrued pension figures and transfer vatue colculations prowded by Towers Watson.
There howe been no changes to the transfer viue basis since tast year's disclosures.

Tony Wray ceased to contribute to the Scheme from 31 December 2011 further details con be found on page 61
Allowance has been made for changes in market condiions over the year by applying the relevont Market Volue Adustment,
Inflation figure used m respect of yeor is to February 2012 (3 7%) 0s the lotest ovailable figure pnor to the year end

Directors’ share interests

The directars of the company at 31 March 2012 and therr benefical interests in the shares of the company were as follows

i) Beneficial holdings and outstanding deferred shares

At 1 April 2011 (or date of
appointment if later}
Nurnber of ordinary
shares of 97'7hep each

At 31 March 2012
Nurnber of ordinary
shares of 97'7/1.p each

At 22 May 2012
Numnber of ordinary
shares of 97'7/10p each

Benefiaal Non-benefical!

Benefioal Non-benefical?

Benefical Non-benefiaal!

Chairman and other non-executive directors

Dr Bernard Butkin 554 - 554 - 554 -
Rechard Davey 588 - 588 - 588 -
Andrew Duff {(Chairmnan) 3,500 - 3,500 - 3,500 -
Martn Lamb 3,012 - 3,012 - 3,012 -
Baroness Noakes 4,018 - 4018 - 4018 -
Gordon Fryett 1,018 - 1,064 - 1,064 -
Executve directors )
Tony Ballance 3,145 11,626 4,218 13,544 4,218 13,544
Martin Kane? 9,699 13,373 11,162 15,678 11,384 15,678
Michael McKeon 4231 31,043 8,168 32574 8,168 32,574:
Andy Smith 7,516 17,329 9,514 19,333 9,514 19,333
Tony Wray 10,158 32,000 13,429 35,453 13,429 35,453
Notes

1 Nen-benefioal holdings are yet to be refecsed shares condibonally held under the Annual Bonus Scheme, to whch directors become uncondibonatly entitied on the therd
ennrversary of gront. Detalls of the yet to be released Annual Bonus Scherme shares are prowded on poge 67

2 Martin Kone acquired 222 shares on 1 May 2012, with a market price of 1,683p per share, followang the exerase of hes 2009 three year Sharesove scheme option.
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i) Long Term Incentive Plan

The executive directors have further interests in the company’s ordinary shares of 97'hop each by virtue of having receved
contingent awards of shares under the LTIP The LTIP operates on a three year rolling basis. The Severn Trent Employee Share
Ownership Trust 1s operated in conjunction with the LTiP Awards do not vest until they have been held in trust for three years
and speafic performance cnteno have been satisfied.

Executive directors have o techrical interest in 515,844 shares held by the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownershup Trust. The detals
of the performance cntena are explained on page 59 of this report. The Indmdual mterests, for the above named directors, which
represent the maximum aggregate number of shares to which each indadual coutd become entitled, are os follows

Maximurm

Awards Maximum Awards Awards  outstanding owards

granted award vested lopsed as ot 31 March 2012

Tony Ballance 14 july 2008 5486 - 5,486 -
7 July 2009 7,405 - - 7,405

21 June 2010 6,803 - - 6,803

22 June 2011 6,525 - - 6,525

Martin Kane 14 July 2008 6,001 - 6,001 -
7 July 2009 8,154 - - 8,154

21 june 2010 8,504 - - 8,504

22 Jure 2011 7121 - - 7121

Mechael McKeon 14 July 2008 13,717 - 13,717 -
7 July 2009 18,733 - - 18,733

21 June 2010 17,211 - - 17,211

22 Jure 2011 14,411 - - 14,411

Andy Srrith 14 huty 2008 8,230 - 8,230 -
7 July 2009 11,019 - - 11,019

21 June 2010 10,124 - - 10,124

22 June 2011 8477 - - 8477

Tony Wray 14 July 2008 19,684 - 19,684 -
7 July 2009 27,769 - - 27,769

21 June 2010 25,512 - - 25512

22 June 2011 23,271 - - 23,271

The market price on the date of the 2011 award was 1,398p

The LTIP awards made in 2009 and 2010 are subject to TSR performance, measured relative to those cormparies ranked 51-150
in the FTSE by market caprtalsation (exduding investrment trusts) 25% of awards vest at median performance, and 100% vest
for performance in the upper quartile In oddition, for awards to vest, the Commuttee must be satisfied that the company’s TSR
1s reflective of the company’s underlying performance

The TSR performance up to 31 March 2012 for the 2010 award mxdicates that this award s curently on track to vest at 100%
The 2009 award ended its TSR performance penod on 31 March 2012 and will vest at 28 4%.
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lii) Annual Bonus Scheme

The shares in respect to 2011/2012 performance year will be granted in June 2012 The table below shows outstanding unreleased
share owards from previous years

Dateof Anral borus Nurmber of | Deferred share

grant deferred nto shares shares oward release date

Tony Ballance 7 July 2009 £62,29 5,669 6 July 2012
21 May 2010 £51,448 4,139 20 May 2013

20 May 2011 £51,823 3,736 19 May 2014

Martin Kane 7 July 2009 £68,598 6,243 6 July 2012
21 May 2010 £64,310_ 5173 20 May 2013

20May 2011 £59,119 4,262 19 May 2014

Michael McKeon 7 Juty 2009 £157,590 14,343 6 July 2012
21 May 2010 £128,724 10,355 20 Moy 2013

20 May 2011 £109,242 7,876 19 May 2014

Andy Smith 7 July 2009 £92,700 8,437 6 July 2012
21 May 2010 £75,810 6,098 20 May 2013

20May 2011 £66,555 4,798 19 May 2014

Tony Wray 7 July 2009 £166,680 15,187 6 July 2012
21 May 2010 £138,996 11,182 20 May 2013

20 Moy 2011 £126,000 9,084 19 May 2014

w} Share Matching Plan

The Share Matching Plan received shareholder approvol ot the 2009 AGM Under the Share Matching Plan executives can recenve,
subject to performance, matching shares for each share deferred under the annual bonus plan For awards made in 2010 {the first
set of awards gronted under the plan), the ratio was lirrited to 0 5 matchung share for each deferred share The performance
condition for the 2010 SMP awards 1s the same as that applying to the LTIP awards granted in 2010 (see page 60} The detalls of the
performance cntena applying to the 2011 awards are explained on page 59 of this report. The indwdual interest of the directors
under the Share Matchung Plon, are as follows

Maxirmum

outstanding

Dote of Maxarmurm Awards Award awards as at

grant award vesting topsng 31 March 2012

Tory Ballance 21 May 2010 2,069 — - 2,069
20 May 2011 1,868 - - 1,868

Martin Kane 21 May 2010 2,586 - - 2,586
20 May 2011 2,131 - - 2,131

Michael McKeon 21 May 2010 5177 - - 5177
20 May 2011 3938 - - 3938

Andy Smith 21 May 2010 3,049 - - 3,049
20 May 2011 2399 - - 2,399

Tony Wray 21 May 2010 559 - - 5,591
20 May 2011 4542 - - 4,542

The TSR performance up to 31 March 2012 for the 2010 and 2011 SMP awards against the median and upper quartile of the
comparator group mdicate that these awards are currently on track to both vest at 100%
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v} Sharesave options over ordinary shares

68

Exerased Gronted
At the start of dunng dunng  Attheend

the year the year theyear  of theyear Year of Date

(No of {No of {No of {No of grant of Exercise  fromwhich
shares) shares) shares) shores) opbion prce{p) exerasable Exprydate

Sharesave!

Tony Ballonce 556 - - 556 2009 862 May2012 Oct2012
561 - - 561 2010 808 May2013 Oct2013
Martin Kane? 314 (314} - - 2008 1221 May2011 Oct 2011
222 - - 222 2009 862 May2012 Oct2012
449 - - 449 2010 808 M™ay2013 Oct2013
- - 316 316 2011 1137 May 2014 Oct 2014
Michoet McKeon 1,943 - - 1,943 2009 862 May2014 Oct2014
Andy Smith 1,123 - - 1,123 2010 808 May2013 Oct2013
Tony Wray 1,123 - - 1,123 2010 808 May2013 Oct2013

1 The exeautive directors, ;m common with dll eligible UK employees of the group, are entitied to partiapote m the company’s HMRC approved Sharesave Scherme

2 Martin Kane acquered 314 shares on S May 2011, with ¢ market pace of 1,482p per share, following the exeraise of hes 2008 three year Sharesove scheme options,

generating a £820 gam,

The terms and conditions applicable to these options are those provided in that scherme The options have no performance

conditions as such conditions are not perrmitted by legislation

a) No executve share options in respect of executive directors were granted or lapsed duning the year At 31 March 2012 there were
no other executives participating in the group’s historcat executve Share Option Scherne (31 March 2011 five other executives)

b} At the close of busmess on 31 March 2012 the rmid-rarket pnce of the comparry’s shares was 1,520p and the range durng the

year was 1,375pto 1,613p

Sigred on behalf of the board which approved the Directors’ remnuneration report on 29 May 2012

Yaﬂ\«v&m o,
Richard Davey

Chairman of the Remuneration Cormnmittee
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Directors’ report

The directors present therr report, together with the audited
financial statements of the group, for the year ended
31 March 2012

Prncipal activity
The prnincipal actmty of the group s to prowde and treat water
and remove waste water in the UK and intemationally

Details of the pnnapal joint ventures, assoaated and subsidiary
undertakings of the group at 31 March 2012 appear in notes
19, 20 and 40 to the financial statements on pages 99 and 127

Business review

The Charrman’s statement, the Chuef Executive’s review, the
report and performance reviews for the group's main
businesses and the Finanaial review on pages 2 to 36 provide
detaled nformation relating to the group, its business models
and strategy, the operation of its businesses and the results ond
finonaal position for the year ended 31 March 2012

Details of the pnncipal nsks and uncertamties facing the group
are set out in the nsk management section on pages 37 to 40

All of the above are iIncorporated by reference m {and are
deemed to form part of) this report.

Directors and their interests

Biographes of the directors currently serving on the board
are set out on pages 42 and 43

All of the directors will be offenng themselves for reappointment
at the Annual General Meeting (AGM), as set out In the
Chairman's letter on pages 45 to 49

Details of directors’ service ogreements are set out in the
Drrectors’ remuneration report on page 55 The mterests of
the directors in the shares of the company are shown an
poges 65 to 68 of that report.

Insurance and indemnities

The Company mantans Directors’ and Officers’ Liobility
Insurance in respect of legal action that rmught be brought oganst
its directors and officers In accordance with the company’s
articles of association, and to the extent permitted by law, n
Novernber 2011 the company mdemnified each of its directors
and other officers of the group aganst certain labilhies that
may be mcurred as a result of therr postions with the group

Sevem Trent does not have i place any indemnittes for the
benefit of the ouditors

Employees

The average number of employees within the group 1s shown
in note 9 to the finanad statements on page 92

Severn Trent believes thot o diverse and indusive culture 1s g key
foctor in being a successful business. Apart from ensunng an
ndmdual has the abiity to do the job we do not discnminate

m any way and make every effort to ensure that those with
drsabiittes are able to be employed by us. We endeavour to
retan employees in the workforce if they become disabled, we
make all reasonable adjustments to their role and, if necessary,
took for redeployrment opportunibies to support them in seeking
an alternative role within Severn Trent. We ensure that training,
career development and promotion opportunities are ovailable
for all our employees srespective of therr gender, race, age

or disabilty
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The group actively encouroges employee mvolvernent and
consultation and places emphasis on keeping its employees
mnformed of its actmty and finanaal performance by way of
bnefings and publication to staff of all retevant mformation
and corporate announcements. To help develop employees’
interest m the company’s performance, Severn Trent offers two
employee share plans. The Sevem Trent Sharesave Scheme, an
HM Revenue arxd Customs approved SAYE plan, is affered to UK
employees on an annual boss. The Severn Trent Share [ncentve
Plan, approved by HM Revenue and Customs, mokes an annual
award of shares to Sevemn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water
Limited employees, based on performance aganst the KPIs,

aammog‘mm’mm

Research and development

Expenditure on research and development 1s set out n note 7
to the accounts on page 91

Treasury management

The disclosures required under the EU Fair Value Directive in
relation to the use of financial mstruments by the company
are set out m note 32 to the cccounts on pages 108 to 118
Further details on our treasury policy and management are
set out in the Finanaial review on page 35

Post balance sheet events

Details of post balance sheet events are set out in note 38 to
the group finanaal statements on page 126

Dwidends

An interm drvdend of 28 04 pence per ordinary share was paid
on 13 January 2012 The directors recommend o final dvdend
of 42 06 pence per ordinary share to be paid on 27 July 2012 to
shareholders on the register on 22 June 2012 Thus would brng
the total dwidend for 2011/12 to 70 10 pence per ordinary
share (2011 6509 pence) The payment of the final dividend 5
subject to shareholder approval at the AGM.

In addition to the recommended final dwdend, the directors
recornmend o special dvidend of 63 0 pence per ordinary share
to be paid on 27 July 2012 to sharehotders on the register on
22 June 2012 The payment of the final dvidend 1s subject to
shareholder approval ot the AGM

Capitol structure

Details of the company’s issued share copital and of the
movernents dunng the year are shown in note 29 to the
finanaol statements on page 107 The company has one dass
of ordinary shares which cames ne nght to fixed incorne

Eoch share cames the nght to one vote ot general meetings of
the company The ssued nominal volue of the ordinary shares s
100% of the total issued norminal value of all share caprtal

There are no specific restnctions on the size of a holding nor on
the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provisions of the articies of assoaction and prevailmg legistation
The directors are not aware of any agreements between
holders of the company’s shares that ray result in restnctions
on the transfer of secunties or on voting nghts.

Details of employee share schemes are set out n note 33 to the
financial statements on poges 119 to 123 For shares held by
the Sevem Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust, the trustee
abstains from voting
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No person has any special nghts of cantrot over the compary’s
share capital and all issued shares are fully paid

With regard to the appamntment and replacement of directors,
the company is governed by its artides of assocation, the
Governance Code, the Cornponies Act 2006 ond related
legislation. The artictes may be amended by speaat resolution
of the shareholders The powers of directors are described in the
Board Governance docurment, the articles and the Chorman's
letter on pages 45 to 49

Under tts articdes of association, the directors have authonty to
allot ordinary shares, subject to the aggregate nominal amount
Lt set at the 2011 AGM

There are a number of agreements that take effect after, or
termunate upon, a change of contral of the company, such as
commercial contracts, bank loan agreerments, property lease
arrangernents and employee share plans None of these s
constdered to be sigruficant in terms of therr likely impact on
the business of the group as a whole There are no agreements
between the company and ts directors or employees that
provide for compensation for loss of office or employment that
occurs because of a takeover bid

Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 March 2012 the company had been notified in
accordance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency
Rutes of the following major sharehaldings

No of ordmary Percentage of votng
sharesof  nghts and ssued

Name of holder 97/ ,speach share capital
Blockrock Inc 26,001,134 1094%
Newton Investment

Management Ltd . 12,087,473 509%
Legal & Generol Group Pic 9,403,273 397%

Percentoges rounded to two deamal places

As at 29 May 2012, the company hod been notified of the
following holdings of voting nghts i the ordnary share
capttal of the cormpany- Blackrodk Inc 23,457,458 (5 87%),
Newton Irwestrment Managerment Ltd 12,087,473 (5 09%)
and Legal & General Group Plc 9,403,273 (3 97%)

Authority to purchase shares

The compary wos given outhonty ot ts AGM n 2011 to make
market purchases of ordinary shares up to a maxamum number
of 23,748,457 shares. Similar authonty will agan be sought from
shareholders ot this year's AGM, No miarket purchases werne
made by the company dunng the year ended 31 March 2012

Supplier payment policy

Indwidual operating comparves withun the group are
responsible for establishung appropnate policies with regard to
the payment of therr suppliers. The companies agree terms and
condiions under whuch business transactions with suppliers
are conducted. It s group policy that provided a supplier is
complying with the relevant terms and conditions, Including
the prompt and complete submission of all specified
documentation, payment will be made m accordance with
agreed tenms. It is also group policy to ensure that suppliers
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know the terms on which payrment will take ploce when
business s agreed Details of suppler payment polictes can be
obtaned from the ndmdual comparies at the addresses
shown n note 40 to the financial staterments on page 127
Trade credtors for the group at the year end are estmated as
representing 21 2 days’ purchases {2011 24 4 days’ purchases)

Contributions for political and charitable purposes
Donations to chantable organisations dunng the year
amounted to £107,325 (2011 £181,843) Donations are given
to chanties whose projects align closely with our aim to
promote the responsible use of water resources and woste
water services which provide the opporturuty for longer term
partnerships. In addition we provide donations to employee
norminated chanties through a rmatched funding scheme and
health and safety reward schemes. We are also committed to
supportng WaterAud, the UK's only major chanty dedicated to
improving access to safe water, hygiene and sanitation m the
world’s poorest countnes

Severn Trent's policy 1s rot to make any donations for politcal
purposes in the UK, or to donate to EU political parties or ncur
EU political expenditure Accordingty netther Severn Trent Plc nor
its subsicianes made any political donations or incumed political
expenditure i the finanaal year under review

Under the provisions of the Political Parties Elections and
Referendums Act 2000 (the relevant provisions of which

are now contained m Part 14 of the Comparues Act 2006),
shareholder authonty s required for political donations to be
made or poliical expenditure to be incurred by the company or
any of its subsidiartes in the EU and drsdose any such payments
© the annual report. The legistation gives a wide definiion of
what constitutes potitical donations and political expenditure
mduding sponsorship, subscriptions, payrment of expenses,
paid leave for employees fulfilling public duties and support for
bodses representing the business community in policy review or
refarm The company has therefore obtamed lrmited authonty
fromn shareholders as a precoutionary measure to allow the
company to continue supporting the community and such
organisations without inadvertently breaching the legislotion.

At the 2011 AGM, shareholders gave the company authonities
to make political donations or to incur political expenditure in
the EU {which would not ordinorily be regarded as poltical
donations) up to an oggregate annual lirrut of £50,000 for the
company and its subsidianes. Pursuant to those authonties,
dunng the year ended 31 March 2012 the group incurred costs
of £ndl (2011 £nil) Those cuthonties will exprire ot the 2012 AGM
and, in line with market practice to renew the authonties onan
annud basis, the board has decided to put forward a resolubion
to this year's AGM to renew the guthonties to make donabors
to political orgarusations and to incur political expenditure up to
a maxinurm of £50,000 per annum. As permitted under the
Comparues Act 2006, thus resolution atso covers any political

donations made or pobtical expenditure incurred, by any
subsidianes of the comparny
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Analysis of shareholdings at 31 March 2012

71

Nurmber of %of Number of
Category shareholders sharehalders shores % of shores
Indmdual end jont accounts 64,900 9191 ] 25,499121 1107
Other* 5,709 809 212,108,990 8893
Total 70,609 10000 237,608,111 10000
* Indudes msurance companes, nomnee companes, banks, pension funds, other corporate bodses, Ermited ond public Errsted companses.
) Number of %of Nurnber of
Size of holding shareholders shareholders shores % of shares
1-499 o - T 51,947 7357 9,985,255 420
500-999 * 12,158 1722 8525535 359
1,000-4,999 ) 5487 777 9,439,778 397
5,000-9,999 315 045 2,131,111 090
10,000-49,999 322 046 7,705,422 324
50,000-99,999 116 016 8268252 348
100,000+ 264 037 191,552,758 8062
Total 70,609 10000 237,608,111 10000
Internal controls The group's procedures for exercsing control and managing sk

The board ts responsible for the group’s system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The board reviews
the effectiveness of the systemn of internal control, ncluding
financal, operational and compliance and nsk management,
at least annually in accordance with the requirements of the
Govemnance Code The internal control systemn con provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal
rmisstaternent or loss, as it s designed to manage rather than
elminate the nsk of failure to ochieve business objectves.

The Audit Commuittee reviews the group’s sk management
process and the effectrveness of the system of nternal control
on behalf of the board and keeps under review ways in which
to enhance the control and audit amangerments The Audit
Commuttee receves reports every six months from the Chef
Executnve detailing the significant nsks and uncertainties faced
by the group, an assessment of the effectiveness of controls
over each of those nsks and an action plan to improve controls
where this has been assessed as necessary Dunng the course
of its review of the system of internal control in 2011/12, the
Audit Commuttee has not identified nor been advised of any
fallings or weaknesses which ¢t hos determined to be significant.
Therefore a confirmation in respect of necessary actions has
not been considered appropnate

The Internal Audit department provides objectve assurance
and adwvice on nsk manogement and control The extemal
audttors also report on signdicant finanaial control ssues to the
Audit Cormuttee

An independent reporter (Atkins) provides objectve assurance in
retation to the Sevem Trent Water Limited Ofwat Annucl Retum
The board confirms that procedures providing an ongoing
pracess for dentifiang, evaluating and ranaging the pnnapat
nsks and uncertanties foced by the group have been in place for
the year to 31 March 2012 and up to the date of approval of the
annuadl report, which is in accordance with the revised guidance
onintemnal contrel published in October 2005 (the Turnbull
Guidance)

in relation to finanaia reporting and preparction of consolidated

occounts indude

» the formulation and communication of group accounting
policies which are reqularly updated for developments in [FRS
and cther reporting requirements,

- specification of a set of financial controls that all of the
group’s operating businesses are required to implement as a
MPIrUMLT,

+ deployment of @ group wide consclidation system with
controls to restnct access and maintain imtegnty of dato,

* recrutment, training and development of appropnately
qualfied and experenced finanaal reporting personnel, and

+ monthly reviews by STEC of finanao! reports from the group’s
operating businesses.

Relevant Audit Information

In the cose of each of the persons who were directors of the
compary at the date when this report was approved

+ so far as each of the directors s aware, there s no relevant
audit mformatron of which the company’s guditors are
unaware, and

+ each of the directors has taken il the steps that he/she
ought to have taken as a director to make turself/herself
aware of any relevant audit nformation and to establish that
the company’s auditors are aware of that mformation

Ths confirmatien 1s given and should be interpreted in
occordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Comparues
Act 2006

External Auditors

The Audit Committee has recommended to the board the
reappamtment of Deloitte LLP and a resolution to that effect will
be on the agenda at the AGM. Deloitte LLP have indicated thesr
willingness to continue as auditors The Audit Comruttee will
also be responsible for deterrniring the oudit fee on behalf of
the board.
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Accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited

Regulatory accounts for Severn Trent Water Limited are
prepared and sent to Ofwat. A copy of these accounts will be
available from the website of Sevem Trent Water Lirnited
(www stwater co uk) or on written request to the Company
Secretary (at the address given on the back cover) There s no
charge for this publication

Going concem

The group's business actvities, together with the factors Ukely
to affect its future developrment, performance and position are
set out in the Chuef Executive's review on pages 4 to 7 and the
business reviews of Severn Trent Woter and Severn Trent
Services on pages 8 to 30 The financial position of the group,
its cash flows, kquidity position and borrowing faciliies are
descnbed in the Finanaal review on pages 33 to 36 The group’s
objectives, poliaies and processes for managing its capital and
its finangal nsk management objectives are descnbed in the
Financiol review, the nsk management report and the
Governance report on pages 37 to 73 Details of the group's
financal instruments, hedging actvities and exposure to credit
nsk and iquidity nsk are described in note 32 to the group
financial staterments.

The group’s principal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water,
15 a regulated long term business charactersed by mult year
investrment programimes  The group’s strategic funding
objectives reflect this The group therefore seeks to attain a
balance of long term fundng or commitment of funds across
arange of funding at the best possible economic cost. Average
debt maturnty 15 16 years and the effective average interest cost
before exceptional finance costs dunng the year was 6 4%

The group 15 in ¢ strong liquidity position and had £295 1 rmillion
in cash and bquid reserves and £600 0 millon of undrawn
cormmuitted bank facliies at 31 March 2012, wihich are expected
to be suffiaent to fund its investment and cash flow needs until
at least Decernber 2013 in the normial course of business.

Severn Trent Water operates in an industry that is currently
subject to econormic regulation rather than market competiton
Ofwat, the economic regulator, has a statutory obligation to set
price lirruts that 1t believes will enable the water comparues to
finance their actvities As o consequence the directors believe
that the group s well ploced to manage its business nsks
successfully despite the current uncertain economic outlook

After making enquines, the directors have a reascnable
expectation that the company and the group have odequate
resources to continue In operational existence for the
foreseeable fiture Accordingly, they continue to adopt

the going concern basis in prepanng the annual report

and accounts
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Annual general meeting

The AGM of the company will be held at the International
Convention Centre, Broad Street, Brmingham B1 2EA at 11om
on Wednesday 18 hdy 2012 The notice corvening the
meetmg, together with details of the business to be considered
and explanatory notes for each resolution, 15 distnbuted
separately to sharehotders It is also available on the company’s
website (www.severntrent.com)

By order of the board

o g

Generd Counsel and Cormpany Secretary
29 May 2012
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report,
Directors’ remuneration report and the finonaal staternents in
accordance with applicable law and requiations

Company low requires the directors to prepare financal
statements for each finanadl year Under thot law the directors

are required to prepare group finanaal statements in
occordance with International Finanaal Reporting Stondards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation and have chosen to prepare the parent
company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generdlly Accepted Accountmg Practice

{United Kingdorn Accounting Standords and applicable low)
Under company law the directors must not approve the
accounts unless they are sotisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the stote of offars of the comparny and of the profit
or loss of the company for that pertod

In prepanng the parent compony financal statements, the
directors are required to

- select sutable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

» make Judgernents and accounting estimotes that are
reasonable and prudent,

« state whether applicoble UK Accountng Standards have been
followed subject to any rmatenal departures disdosed and
explained in the financial statements, and

« prepare the financiol statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropnate to presume that the company will
continue in business.

In preparing these financial statements, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires that the directors

- properly select and apply accounting policies,

- present information, induding accounting policies, ina
manner that prowides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

- prowde additronal disdosures when complionce with the
speafic requirernents i IFRSs are msuffiaent to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other
events and conditions on the entity’s finoncial position and
finanaal performance, and

« make an assessment of the company’s abiity to continue as
0 gotng concem

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
tronsactions and disdose with reasonable accuracy at any tme
the financial position of the company and enable them to
ensure that the financal statements comply with the
Comparues Act 2006

They are also responsible for safequanding the assets of the
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevenition and detection of fraud and other mregulanties

The directors are responsible for the mantenance and integnty
of the corporate and finanad mformation mduded on the
company’s website Legrsiation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissermination of financol
statermnents may differ from legrstation in other junsdictions

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

+ the finantial statements, prepared m accordance with the
relevant finanaal reporting framework, give a true and far
view of the assats, liahilitres, financial position and profit or
loss of the comparny and the undertalangs induded m the
consolidation taken as a whole, and

» the management report, which is incorporated into the
Drrectors’ report, mcludes a fair review of the development
ond performance of the business and the postion of the
company and the undertakings ncuded in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a descnption of the principal
n uncertamties

/-

Michoel McKeon
Finance Director

Andrew Duff
Charman

‘ uoqmumuaaols:uauamsmm;&nd.uo)l szuathmspamjd‘oa’ amarog‘ mm’mmo




Sevemn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Financial
statements

Group finanoal staterments

75
76
77

78
79
80
8

Independent auditor's report
Conspbdated ncome staterment
Consoldated stotement of

ncome
Consobdoted stotement of changes in equity
Consolxigted balance sheet
Consolidated cash flow staterment
Nates to the group finanoal staterments

finanoal staterments

Company

128 Independent auditor's report

129 Cormpany batance sheet

129 Company statement of totat recognised

and losses

gans
130 Notes to the company financial staternents

74

Graphic removed




Severn Trent Pic  Annual Report and Accounts 2012

75

Independent auditor’s report to the

members of Severn Trent Plc

We have audited the group financial statements of

Sevemn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2012 which
cormpnse the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consclidated
statement of changes in equity, the consolidated balance
sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, and the related
notes 1to 40 The finanaal reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation i1s applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union

This report 1s mode solely to the company’s members, as a
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so thot we
rught state to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to therm in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assurme responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibility
staterment, the directars are responsibte for the preparation of
the group financial statements and for being satisfied that they
grve a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to cudit and
express an opinion on the group financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial staternents

An oudit nvolves obtaning evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financiol statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the finonciol statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This iIncludes an assessment of whether the accounting policies
are appropnate to the group’s arcumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read dll the financial and
non-fingnaial mformation in the annual report to identify
ratenal inconsistencies with the audited finanaal statements
If we become aware of any apparent matenal rmisstatements
or Inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
Opinicn on finanaial statements
In our opinion the group finanaal staterments
+ give atrue and farr view of the state of the group’s affairs as
at 31 March 2012 and of its profit for the year then ended,
+ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, ond
+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Comparies Act 2006 and Artide 4 of the [AS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the inforrmation grven in the Directors’ report for
the financial year for which the group finanaial staternents are
prepared is consistent with the group finanaal staterments

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report In respect of the followng

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, 1N our opinion

= certain disdasures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

+ we have not recewved ail the Information and explanations we
require for our audit,

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

- the directors’ staternent, contained within the Directors’
report, in relation to going concem,

« the part of the Chairman's letter relating to the company’s
compliance with the nine prowisions of UK Corporate
Govemance Code specified for our review, and

- certamn elements of the report to shareholders by the board
on directors’ remuneration

Other motters

We have reported seporately on the parent company financit
statemnents of Severn Trent Pic for the year ended 31 March
2012 and on the information n the Remuneration Committee
report that 1s descnbed as hoving been audited

Cst R

Carl D Hughes {Sertor ory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

London, UK
29 May 2012
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Notes £m £m
Tumover 56 1,7706 1,7113
Operating costs before exceptional items 7 {1,2664) (1,192 2)
Exceptional operating costs 8 {34 4) (21 4)
Total operating costs 7  (1,3008) (1,2136)
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional tems 5 504 2 5191
Exceptional items before interest and tax 8 (34 4) (214)
Profit before interest and tax 469 8 4977
Finance mcome 10 1077 1007
Finance costs excluding excepticnat costs 11 (3367) (331 3)
Exceptional finance costs 11 {16 5) -
Net finance costs {245 5) (2306)
Losses on finanaigl mstrurments 12 677 (14 2)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 01 01
Profit before tax, losses on financiol mstruments and exceptional items 2753 2886
Exceptionat tems before tax 8 (509 (21 4}
Losses on fingncial instruments 12 677) (14 2)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1567 2530
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities
Current tax 13 {60 5) (321)
Deferred tax excluding excepttonal credits 13 91 (141)
Exceptional deferred tax credit 13 691 677
Total taxation 13 177 215
Profit for the year 174 4 2745
Attrbutable to
Owners of the company 1718 2726
Non-controlling interests 26 19
174 4 2745
Eamings per share {pence)
Basic 15 125 1152
Diluted 15 721 1146
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
im fm
Profit for the year 1744 2745 g
(Losses)/gams on cash flow hedges taken to equity (86 5} 160 2
Deferred tax on losses/gamns on cash ftow hedges taken to equity 208 {t1) g
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the income staternent 37 45
Deferred tax on transfers to mcome statement 09 12) g
Exchange movemnent on transtation of overseas results and net assets (14) ©3) ——
Tax on exchange movernent - 04)
Actuonal (fosses)gains on defined benefit pension schermes (1107) 507
Tox on octuand losses/gams 266 (132) "
Deferred tax movernent ansing from rate change 17 07
Other comprehensive (loss)income for the year (1467) 467
Total comprehensive income for the year 277 3212
Attnbutable to
Owners of the company 251 3197
Non-controliing mterests 26 15
277 3212
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Equity attributoble to owners of the cornpany

Share Share Other  Retoned ch'oNll?rwwg Total
capritol presmsum resenves eomings Total interests equity
fm fm fm £fm £m £m £m
At 1 Apri 2010 2316 759 4556 1776 9407 63 9470
Profit for the penod - - - 2726 2726 19 2745
Gans on cash flow hedges - - 160 - 160 - 160
Deferred tax on gains on cash flow hedges - - (41) - (41) - (41)
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred
to the incorme statement - - 45 - 45 - 45
Deferred tax on transfers to the income
statement - - 12 - 12 - (12)
Exchange moverment on translation of
overseas results and net assets - - (59 - (59) 04) {63)
Tax on exchange differences - - 04) - 04) - 04)
Actuanal gains - - - 507 507 - 507
Tax on actuanal gans - - - (132) (132) - {132)
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - 07 07 - 07
Total comprehensive income for the penod - - 89 3108 397 15 3212
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 06 41 - - 47 - 47
- vadue of employees’ services - - - 46 46 - 46
- free shares issued - - - (20) (2G) - (20}
Current tax on share based payments - - - 03 03 - 03
Deferred tax on share based poyments - - - 12 12 - 12
Dnadends paid - - - (169 4) (169 4) (15) {1709)
At 31 March 2011 2322 800 4645 3231 1,0998 63 1,106 1
Profit for the penod - - - 1718 1718 26 1744
Losses on cash flow hedges - - (86 5) - (865) - {865)
Deferred tax on tosses on cash flow hedges - - 208 - 208 - 208
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred
to the iIncome statement - - i7 - 7 - 37
Deferred tax on transfers to the ncome
statermnent - - 09) - 09) - (09)
Exchange movernent on transtation of
overseas results and net assets - - (14) - (14) - {14)
Actuanial losses - - - (1107 (1107) - (1107
Tax on actuanal losses - - - 266 266 - 266
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - 17 17 - 17
Total comprehensive income for the penod - - (64 3) 894 251 26 277
Share options and LTIPs o i
- proceeds from shares ssued 04 38 - - 42 - 472
- value of employees’ serices - - 45 45 - 45
- free shares issued - - - (18) (18 - (18)
Current tax on share based payments - - - 04 04 - 04
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - 03 .03 - 03
Dradends paid - - - (1590 (1590) (10) (1600)
At 31 March 2012 2326 838 400 2 2569 9735 79 981 4
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Consolidated balance sheet

At 31 March 2012
2012 2011
Note £fm £m
Non-current assets ) i ] §
Goodwill ) . o 16 469 683 @
Other mtangible assets 17 1160 1349 5
Property, plant and equiprment 18 6,577 8 6,4270
Interests in jont ventures 19 02 02 3
Interests in assoaates 20 46 48 —_
Dervative finanaal instruments 32 1326 1831
Avaiable for sale fimanad assets 32 01 01
6,8762 6,823 4
Current assets i é’
Irventory 21 344 271 S
Trade and other recevables 22 4794 4785
Denvative financial Instruments 32 300 43 é
Cash and cash equivalents 23 2951 3152
8389 8251
Total assets 77151 76485 &
Current Labilities
Bomowings 32 (893) {239
Dervative financial instruments 32 0 §) {01)
Trade and other payables 25 (397 6) (3912)
Current ncome tax labilittes {46 5) 670)
Provisions for kabflities and charges 28 {170) {126)

(5509) (494 8)

Non-current biabilities

‘ umuqumm'qwunm:smm;ﬁundtmg

Borrowings ) 32 (43095) (43205)
Dervatve finoncial nstruments 32 (2880) (122 4)
Trade and other payables 25 (4110Q) (3678)
Deferred tax ) 26 (8015) (919 4)
Retirernent benefit obligations 27 (345 8) (292 1)
Provisions for habies and charges 28 (27 0) {254)
(6,182.8) (6,0476)
Total habilires (6,733.7) (6,5424)
Net gssets 9814 1,106 1
Equty "
Cdlted up share capitat 29 2326 2322
Share premum account 30 838 800
Other reserves 31 4002 464 5
Retamed eamings ) 2569 3231
Equity attnbutable to owners of the cormpany 9735 10998
Non-controlling interests 79 63
Total equity 9814 1,1061
Signed on behdfom approved the occounts on 29 May 2012
’ m.&{ Michael McKeon
Charman Finance Duwector

Compony Nurnber 2366619
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 March 2012

2012

2011

Note £m £m
Cash generated from operations i 34 7259 7530
Tox pad {720) (324)
Net cash generated from operating actmties 6539 7206
Investing octvities
Interest recenved 67 103
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 91 51
Purchases of Intangible assets (120) (209)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (3711) (403 1)
Contnbutions and grants receved 228 194
Net cash used m investing actvities (344 5) (3892)
Financing actvities
Interest paid (203 5) (1798)
Closed out swap - 205
Interest elernent of finance lease payments {136) (10.8)
Dnadends paid to shareholders of the parent (1590) (169 4)
Drndends pad to non-controlling mterests (10) (15)
Repayments of borrowings (157 4) (287
Repayments of obligations under finance leases (47 6) (47 3)
New loans raised 2500 1712
Issues of shares 42 47
Purchase of own shares {18) (20)
Net cash used in financing actmities (3297) {243 1)
{Decrease)/increase i cash and cash equivalents (203) 883
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 3152 2278
Effect of foreign exchange rates 02) (09)
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 2947 3152
Net cash and cash equivalents compnse
Totat cosh and cash equivdlents 2951 3152
Bank overdrafts (0 4) -
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 2947 3152

The decrease n cosh and cash equivalents s reconailed to the moverment in net debt in note 34
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Notes to the group financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

1 General information
The Severn Trent group has o number of operations These are
descnibed in the segmental analysis in note 5

Severn Trent Plc 1s a company mcorporated and dormicled in the
Urited Kingdom The oddress of its regsstered office 1s shown on
the back of the cover of the annual report and accounts.

Severn Trent Plc is isted on the London Stock Exchange

2 Accounting policies

) Basis of preparation

The financiol statements have been prepored m occordance
with Internabional Finanoal Reporting Standards (IFRS),
Intemational Accounting Standards (IAS) and IFRIC
interpretations ssued and effectve and ratified by the European
Union as at 31 Morch 2012

The finanaiol statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis (see Directors’ report on page 72) under the
histoncal cost corwention as modified by the revatuation of
certain financial assets and hobiities (induding denvotive
instruments) at farr value

The preparatton of financigl staterments in conformaty with IFRS
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported armounts of assets and liabilities ot the daote of the
financiol statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses for the reporting period Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event
or actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates,

b) Bas:s of consclidetion

The finunaal statements nclude the results of Severn Trent Ple
and ts subsid:anes, joirt ventures ond associated undertakings
The results of subsidianes, joint ventures and asscaated
undertakings are included from the date of acquisihion or
incorporation and exduded frorm the date of disposat

The results of subsicianes are consolidated where the group has
the power to control a subsidiary

The results of jomt venture undertakings are accounted for on
an equity basis where the company exercised joint control
under a contractua armangernent.

The results of associates are accounted for on an equity basis
where the company holding 1s 20% or more or the company
has the power to exercrse sigruficant nfluence

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiones are identified separately from the group's equity
therein Non-controling mterests consist of the amount of those
interests at the date of the onginal business combmnation and
the non-controlling interest’s share of changes in equity since
that date

All intra-group transactions, balances, iIncome and expenses are
elmnated on consolidation

¢) Revenue recogmition

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration receivable,
excluding value added tax, trade discounts and mter-cornpany
sales, in the ordinary course of business for goods and services
provded.

Revenue 15 not recogrused until the service has been prowded to
the customer or the goods to which the sale relates have etther
been despatched to the custormer or, where they are held on
the custorner's behalf, titte has passed to the customer

Turnover includes an estimate of the amount of rmans water
ond waste water charges unbilied at the year end. The accruot
& estimated using o defined methodology based upon a
measure of unbilled water consurmed by tanff, which s
caleulated from hustoncal biting nforrmation

Inrespect of long term contracts, revenue is recognised based
on the value of work carmed out dunng the yeor wath reference
to the total sates value and the stage of completion of these
contracts.

Interest ncorme s accrued on a time basts by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effectve interest rate
applicable Dvdend income from tnvestrments s recognsed
when the group's nghts to receve payment have been
established Interest and dvidend income are included in
finance mncome

d) Exceptional terns

Exceptional tems gre income or expendrture, which indmduclly
or, if of a similar type, in aggregate shoudd, in the opiruon of the
directors, be disclosed by wvirtue of thewr size or nature if the
financial statements are to gve a true and farr view In this
context, matenality 15 assessed at the segment level

e) Taxation

Current tax payabte 1s based on taxable profit for the year
Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported n the ncome
staterment because it excludes terns of mcorme and expenses
that are toxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes tems that are never taxable or deductible The group’s
bability for current tax s calculated using tox rates that have
been enacted or substantvely enacted by the balance sheet
date

Deferred taxation 1s provided in full, using the licbility method,
on taxable temporary differences between the tox bases of
assets and liabilities ond thesr carmying amounts i the financal
statemnents A deferred tax asset s only recogrused to the
extent ¢t 5 probabte that sufficent taxable profits will be
avallable in the future to utilise it. Deferred taxation ts measured
ona non-discounted basis using the tax rates ond laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset 1s realised or the deferred tax babiity
15 settled

Deferred tax assets and babires are offset whenthere s a
legalty enforceable nght to set off current tax assets agamnst
current tox labilties and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authonty and the group intends to
settle its cument tox assets and bobities on a net basis.

amm‘mawssansng‘mmo

ummuqumm‘nmmmmm;&n&uo)l SUALIINS uowy dnais




Severn Trent Plc  Annwol Report and Accounts 2012

Notes to the group finoncal statements

2 Accounting poticies {continued)
f) Goodwill

Goodwili represents the excess of the far value of purchase
consideration over the farr vatue of the net assets acquired
Goodwill ansimng on acquisttion of subsidianes s included n
intangible assets, whilst goodwill ansing on ocquisition of
associates 1s incduded ininvestrments in assoaates, If an
acquisition gives nse to negative goodwill thes 15 credited directly
to the income statement. Farr vatue edjustments based on
provisional estmates are amended within one year of the
acquisition, if required, with a corresponding adjustment to
goodwilt

Goodwill ansing on all acquisitions prior to 1 Apnl 1998 was
written off to reserves under UK GAAP and remoms elrrunated
against reserves Purchased goodwill ansing on acquisitions
after 31 March 1998 1s treated as an ntangible fixed osset.

Goodwill 1s tested for Imparment i accordance with the policy
set out in note 2m) below and carned at cost less accumutated
impairment losses Goodwill 1s allocoted to the cash-generating
unit that denves benefit from the goodwill for impairment
testing purposes.

Where goodwill forrms part of a cash-generating urit and all or
part of thot unit is disposed of, the associated goodwil 1Is
included in the carrying arnount of that operation when
determiming the gan or loss on dispesal of the operation

g) Intangible non-current assets

Intangible assets acquired seperately are copitalised at cost and
when acquired in a business combination are capitalised at far
value at the date of acquisition Following intal recogrution, the
histonical cost model s apphed to mtongible assets

firite ife Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis
over therr estimated useful economuc bves as follows

Years
Software i 3-10
Other assets 2-20

Amortisation charged on assets with finite lives s taken to the
income statement through operating costs

Intangible assets are reviewed for mparment where mdicators
of impaiment exist.

h} Research and development

Research expenditure 1s expensed when it 1s ncurred.
Development expenditure 1s capitalised and witten off over its
expected useful economic [ife where the followsng ctena are
met.

* 1t s technucally feasible to create and make the asset available
for use or sale;

« there are adequate resources available to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset,

+ there s the Intention and abdity to use or sell the asset,

+ 1t 1s probable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits, and

» the development cost can be measured reliably

Expenditure on property, plent and equipment relating to

research and devetopment projects is capitalised and watten off

over the expected useful lfe of those assets
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1) Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed as mcurred except where i
probable that the contract will be owarded, In which case they
are recognised as a prepayrment whuch s witten off to the
ncome statement over the life of the contract,

The group assesses that it 1s probable that a contract will be
owarded when preferred bidder or equivalent status has been
achieved and there are no significant iImpediments to the
award of the controct.

J} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is hetd at cost {or at deemed
cost for infrastructure assets on transition to IFRS) less
accumulated depreagtion The costs of like for like replacernent
of infrastructure components are recognised in the income
statement as they anse Where it is probable that the
expenditure wilt cause future economuc benefits to flow to the
group, then costs are capitatised

Where items of property, plont and equipment are transferred
to the group from customers or devetopers, the foir value of the
osset transferred 1s recogrused in the balance sheet. Fair volue is
determmned based on estrated depreciated replocement cost.
Where the transfer ts in exchange for connection to the network
and there s no further obligation, the comresponding credit s
recogrused immedately m turnover Where the transfer i
considerad to be linked to the provision of ongoing services the
corresponding credit 1s recorded m deferred income and
released to operating costs over the expected useful lives of the
related assets.

Bomrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition,
construction or production of assets, that necessarily take o
substantial penod of time to get ready for their intended use,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are recdy for their ntended use

Property, plont and equipment is depreciated to its estimated
residual volue over ts estrmated useful life, wath the exception
of freehold land which 1s not depreciated Assets in the course
of construction are not deprecrated until commussioned

The estmoated useful bves are:

Yeors
Infrastructure assets
Impounding reservorrs 250
Raw water aqueducts 250
Mains 80-150
Sewers 150-200
Other gssets
Buildings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 20-40
Vehidles and mobile plant 2-15




Severn Trent Plc - Annual Report ond Accounts 2012

Notes to the group finanaal statements

2 Accounting policies (continued)
k) Leased assets

Where the group obtains assets under leasing arrangements
which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset to the group as lessee (finance leases),
the lower of the farr volue of the leased asset or the present
value of the minimum lease payrments 1s capitalised as an asset
with a comesponding babrlity representing the cbligation to the
lessor Lease payrnents are treated as consisting of o capitat
element and a finance charge, the capital element reducng the
obligation to the lessor and the finance charge being wntten off
to the income staterment at o constant rate over the penod of
the lease in proportion to the capital amount outstanding.
Depreaation is charged over the shorter of the estimated useful
life and the lease penod

Leases where substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership remain with the lessor are clossified as operating
leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases are expensed
on a straight line basis over the term of the lease Leases of land
are normally treated as operating leases, unless ownership s
transferred to the group at the end of the lease

1} Grants and contnbutions

Grants and contnbutions receved In respect of non-current
assets, ncluding certan charges made as a result of new
connections to the water and sewerage networks, are treated
as deferred income and released to the income staternent over
the useful economic tife of those non-current assets

Grants and contnbutiens which are given m compensation for
expenses incurred with no future related costs are recogrused in
operating costs in the Income statement i the penod that they
becorne recenvable

my} Imparment of non-cument assets

If the recoverable amount of goodwill, an tem of property,
plont and equipment, or any other non-current asset 15
estmated to be less than its carmmying amount, the camying
armount of the asset 1s reduced to its recoverable amount.
Where the asset does not generate cosh flows that are
independent from other assets, the group estimotes the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount 1s the higher of far value
less costs to sell or estmated value in use at the date the
imparment review 1s undertaken Farr value less costs to sell
represents the armount obtainable from the sale of the osset in
an ammv's length transaction between knowledgeable and
willing third parties, less costs of disposal Volue inuse
represents the present value of future cash flows expected to
be denved from a cash-generating unt, discounted using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects cument market assessments
of the cost of capstal of the cash-generating urit or asset.

The discount rate used s based on the group's cost of copital
adjusted for the nsk profiles of indwviduat businesses

Goodwill s tested for impamment annually Impairment reviews
are dlso carmed out if there s an indication that an imparment
may have occurred, or, where otherwrse required, to ensure that
non-current assets are not camed above ther estimated
recoverable cmounts

Impawrments are recognised in the income statement.
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n} Irnventory

Inventory and work in progress is stated at the lower of cost
and net realsable volue Cost indudes {abour, matenals,
transport and attnbutable overheads.

0) Service concession ggreements

Where the group has an unconditional nght to recerve cash
from a government bedy In exchange for constructing or
upgrading a public sector asset, the amounts recenvable ore
recogrused as a finanaal asset in prepayments and accrued
income

Costs of constructing or upgrading the public sector asset are
recogrused on a straight bine basrs, before adjusting for expected
mflation, over the life of the contract.

p) Retirement benefits

The group operates both defined benefit and defined
contrbution pension schemes.

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension
scheme assets and defined benefit pension scherme habilities 1s
recorded con the balance sheet as a retrernent benefit asset or
obligation

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured at farr
value using bid prce for assets with quoted pnces Defined
benefit pension scherme kabiliies are measured ot the balance
sheet dote by an independent actuary using the projected unit
method and discounted at the current rate of retum on hugh
quality corporate bonds of equivalent term and currency to the
babiity Service cost, which is the increase i the present value of
the Liabilibes of the group’s defined benefit pension schernes
expected to anse from employee service In the penod, 1s
nciuded in operating costs The expected return on the
scheme’s assets and the increase dunng the penod m the
present value of the scheme’s liabilsties, arsing from the
passage of time, are Induded in other finance ncome or cost.

Actuanal gans and losses ansing from expenence adjustrents,
changes in actuanal assurmnptions and amendments to pension
plans are charged or credited to equity and recorded n the
statement of comprehensive income

Contributions to defined contnbution pension schernes are

charged to the ncome statement m the penod n which they

fall due

q) Provisions

Provisions are recognised where

- there s a present obligation as a result of o past event,

= 1t 15 probable that there will be an outflow of econormuc
benefits to settle thus obligation, and

= areliable estimate of this amount can be made

Insurance provisions in the group's captive insurance subsidiary

are recognused for claims notrfied and for daims incurred but

which have not yet been notrfied, based on adwice from the

group’s ndependent insurance advisers

Provisions are discounted to present volue using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the nsks specific to the kability where
the effect s matenal

amm‘mma’mmo
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Notes to the group financial statements

2 Accounting policies {continued)
r) Purchose of own shares

Shares held by the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership
Trust which have not vested unconddionally by the batance
sheet date are deducted from shareholders’ funds until such
time as they vest.

s) Financal instruments

(i) Ainancial assets

Finanaia! assets are ctassified into the following categanes

= at for value through profit or loss,

* held to matunty investments,

- avaitable for sale finanaidl assets, and
* loans and recenables

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financidl asset 1s dassified at fair value through profit or loss if
it 1s 50 designated or if it 1s dassified as ‘held for trading’
Denvatrve finanaal assets that are not designated and effectve
as hedging tnstrurments are required to be dassified as ‘held for
trading’ by IAS39 However, the group’s Treasury Policy,
descnbed in the Financial Review on page 35, is that the group
does not hold or 1ssue derivative financial instrurments for
trading Financial ossets at for value through profit or loss are
stated at fow value, with any gains or losses ansing on
remeasurernent recogrused in gansAosses on financial
instruments in the income staterment. Far value s deterrruned
using the methodology descnbed in note 32 Interest received
in respect of dervative financial assets is included :n finance
incorne but changes in accrued interest recenvable are included
n gamsflosses on financial instruments,

Held to matunty investments

Where the group has the ability and intent to hold an
iInvestiment to matunty the finanaal asset 1s dassified as held to
matunty Such financial assets are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, with any gains or
losses being recognsed in the incomne statement.

Available for sale financial assets

After iniial recognition at cost {being the farr value of the
consideration paid), investrents which are dassified as
availoble for sole are rmeasured at far value, with gains or losses
recogrused m other comprehensive Income When an available
for sale investment 1s disposed of or impaired, the gain or loss
previously recogrused in other comprehensive meorme 1s taken
to the income statement Where there 1s no active market In
the investments and the fair value cannot be measured reliably,
the investrnents are held at cost.

Loans and recervables

Trade recevables, loans and other recevables that have fixed or
determinoble payments and that are not quoted in an active
market are clossified os loans and recenvobles. Such assets are
measured at far value on initial recognrtion and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method unless there s objectve evdence that the
asset 1s impaired, where it 1s witten down to its recoverable
amount and the irmecoverable amount 1s recognised as an
expense

Trade recevables that are assessed not to be impaired
indmdually are assessed collectively for mpamment by
reference to the group’s histoncal collection expenence for
recenvables of similar age
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(5) Fnanaal abilities
Financial iablities are dassified as esther

+ fmancal liabdrtes at far value through profit or loss, or
+ other finanaid labiities.

Financial liabilires at fair value through profit or loss

A finanac lobiity 1s dossified at far value through profit or loss
if t s so designated or f it 1s dlassified as ‘held for trading’
Denvative financial habilities that are not designated and
effective as hedging instruments are required to be dassified as
‘held for trading’ by IAS39 However, the group's Treasury Policy,
descnbed in the Finanaal Review on page 35, 1s thot the group
does not hold or 1ssue denvative financial mstruments for
trading Financal lobities at fair vatue through profit or loss are
stated at far value, with any gains or losses arsing on
remeasurement recognised in gainsfosses on financial
mstruments in the Income statement. Farr vatue s determuned
using the methodology descrnbed in note 32 Interest pad m
respect of dervative financial labilitres 1s ncdluded in finance
costs but changes in accrued interest payable are induded in
gamns/tosses on finonaal instruments.

Other financial habilibes

Other financial habiities, ncdudmg borrowings, are mitially
recogrused ot far value less transaction costs After initial
recognition, other finanaadl kabilties are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective nterest rate method

(i) Hedge accounting

The group uses denvative finanaial instruments such as cross
currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest rate
swaps to hedge rts nsks associated with foreign currency and
mnterest rate fluctuations Such denvative Instruments are
recogrused ond meosured in accordance with the accounting
policies descnbed above

At the inception of the hedge retationship, the group
docurnents

» the relationship between the hedging mstrument ond the
hedged itemn,

+ its nsk management objectives and strategy for undertaking
hedge transactions, and

» whether the hedgng instrument 1s highly effectve in
offsetting changes n farr values or cash flows (as appropnate)
of the hedged tem

The group continues to test and document the effectrveness of
the hedge on an ongoing basss.

Hedge accounting s discontinued when the hedging
mstrument expires, 1s sold, terrrunated or exercised, or no langer
quatfies for hedge accounting

Fair volue hedges

Where aloan or borrowing 15 n a fair value hedging retationship
it 1s rerneasured for changes in farr value of the hedged msk ot
the balance sheet date, with gains or lesses bemg recogrused in
gansfosses on finanaal Instruments in the income statement,
The gam or loss on the hedging instrument s taken

to gansiosses on financial mstruments in the income
statement where the effective portion of the hedge will

offset the gain or loss on the hedged tem,

When hedge accounting s discontinued, the far value
adjustment to the cammying amount of the hedged tem ansing
from the hedged sk is amortised to the ncome statement
from that date
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
s) Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Hedge accounting {contmued)

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedgmg nstrument that s
detemuned to be an effective hedge 1s recognised directly in
equity and the ineffective portion in gamnsfosses on finonaial
nstruments i the mcome statement. The gains or losses
deferred i equity in this way are recyded through goins/losses
on finanaial nstruments in the income statement in the same
penod n which the hedged underlying transaction or firm
commuitment s recogrused in the ncome statement.

When hadge accounting is discontinued any curmutative gainor
loss on the hedging instrument recogrised in equity 1s held in
equity until the forecast transaction occurs, or transferred to

gansftosses on finanaial instruments n the Income staterent f

the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Where forward currency contracts and foreign currency
borrowings are used to hedge net investments in foreign
currency denomunated operations, to the extent that they are
designated and effective as net investment hedges, they are
matched in equity agamst changes in volue of the related
assets Any ineffectiveness 1s taken to gainsflosses on financiat
instrurments mn the ncome statement.

{v) Embedded denvatives

Dervatives embedded i other fimancial instruments or other
host contracts are treated os separate denvatves when their
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v) Foreign currency

The resutts of overseas subsidiary and associoted undestakings
are translated into sterling, the presentational currency of the
group, using average rates of exchange ruling dunng the year
The net investments in overseas subsidiary and assoaated
undertakings are translated mto sterling ot the rates of
exchange ruling at the year end Exchange differences ansing
are treated as movernents in equity On disposal of o foreign
currency denorminated subsidiary, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised n equity since 1 April 2004 relating to that
entity s recogrised in the incorme staternent under the
transitional nde of IFRS 1

Exchange differences ansing in respect of foreign exchange
instruments taken out as hedges of overseas investments are
also treated as mavements in equity to the extent that the
hedge 15 effective (see note 2s)

All other foreign currency denorminated assets and Liabdibies of

the compony and tts subsidiary undertakings are translated mto

the relevant functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling
ot the year end Any exchange differences so ansing are deait
with through the income statement.

Foretgn currency transactions ansing durng the year are
translated into sterling at the rate of exchange nuling on the
date of the transaction. All profits and losses on exchange
onsing dunng the yeor ore dealt with through the incorme
staternent,

w) Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

amwog’mmg’mmo

Where an asset or group of assets (a disposal group) s available
for mmediate sale and the sote s highly probable and expected
to ocour within one year then the disposal group 1s classified as

hetd for sale The disposal group 1s measured at the lower of the

nsks and charactenstics are not dosely related to those of the
host contract and the host cantract s not camed at far value,
with gains and losses reported in gains/losses on financial

instruments in the income statement.
t) Share based payrments

The group operates a number of equity settled share based
compensation plans for employees. The farr value of the
emplayee senices received in exchange for the grant s
recogrised as an expense over the vesting penod of the grant.

The farr value of employee services is determined by reference
to the foir value of the owards granted, calculated using an
appropnate pncaing model, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting condittons. The number of awards

thot are expected to vest takes mto account non-market
vesting conditions indluding, where appropnate, continuing
employment by the group The charge 1s adjusted to reflect
shares that do not vest as a resutt of faling to meeta
non-market condition.

u) Cash flow staternent

For the purpose of the cash flow staterment, cash and cash
equvalents mdude highly iquid investments thot are reodiy
convertible to known amaounts of cash and which are subject to
anmsignificant nsk of change n value Such investments are
normally those with less than three rmonths matunty frorm the
date of acqusibon and indude cash and bank balances and
investrments in iquid funds Cash ond cash egquivalents olso
include overdrafts repayable on demand

Interest pard in the cash flow statement mcludes amounts
charged to the ncome staternent and amounts induded in the

cost of property, plant and equipment.

carmyng amount and fair value less costs to sell

Where a group of assets which compnises operations that can

be cleary distnguished operationally and for finanaial reporting

purposes, from the rest of the group (o cornponent), has been

disposed of or dassified as held for sale, and tt.

* represents a separate majoer line of business or geographical
area of operations, or

+ 15 part of a segle co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographucal area of operations, or

+ 5 asubsidiary ocquired exdusivety with a view to resale,

then the companent 1s dassified as a discontinued operation.

Non-current assets classified as hetd for sale are meosured at
the lower of carnying amount and farr votue less costs to sell
Deprecation s not charged on such assets.
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3 New accounting policies and future requirements

The foliowing standards have been issued by the Intemnational
Accounting Standords Board and are likety to affect future
finonaal statements

IFRS 9 Firanadl instruments’ s ikely to affect the
measurement and disdosure of finanaat mstruments.

The standard 1s required to be Implemented by the group with
effect from 1 April 2013, subject to £U endorserment.

IFRS 10 *Consclidated Finanaal Statements’ was issued in

May 2011 and 1s required to be implemented by the group from
1 April 2013 The standard includes a new defintion of control
to be used to determine when entities are conschidated

The standard 1s not expected to have a matenal impact on

the group's financial stotements

IFRS 11 “Joint Agreernents’ was issued in May 2011 and 1
required to be implernented by the group from 1 April 2013
IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 ‘Interests m Jont Ventures’ and SIC-13
*Jontly-controlled Entities” IFRS 11 uses the defirution of control
gwven in IFRS 10 to defire joint control and removes the option
to account for joint ventures using proportionate consolidation
This 1s not expected to have a matenal empact on the group's
financiol statements.

IFRS 12 ‘Disdosure of Interests n Other Entities’ was ssued in
May 2011 and s requrred to be implemented by the group from
1 Apnt 2013 The standard provides disclosure requirernents for
subsidianes, assoaates, jomt agreements and structured
entities which were previously covered in 1AS 27, 1AS 28 and 1AS
31 Additional disdosures will be required in the group financial
staterments to meet the requirements of the standard

IFRS 13 Far Vatue Measurernent’ was issued mMay 2011 and 1s
required to be implemented by the group from 1 Apal 2013

The standard provides additonal guidance on how to measure
far vatue but does not change when fair value s permtted or
required The standard may impoct the methods of
deterrrurung fair value which are currently emplayed by the
group and will require enhanced drsdlosure of these methods

1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ (revised) ndudes a requirerment to
measure the expected return on the defined benefit penston
scheme assets using the discount rate applied to the scheme
liabdities. This will impact the income statement and statement
of comprehensive incorme It 15 not possible to estimate the
impact this will have on the financidl staternents at this time
The other armendrments are not lkely to have a matenal impoct
on the group The standard s required to be implemented by
the group with effect from 1 April 2013, subject to EU
endorserment.

The directors assess that the other standards and
interpretctions issued but not yet effective are not likely to have
o sigreficont impoact on future financial staternents
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4 Significant accounting jJudgements and key scurces
of estimgtion uncertainty

In the process of applying the group’s accountmg policies, the
group 1s required to make certain judgements, estmotes and
assumptions that it believes are reasonable bosed on the
mformation available

The more signuficant judgernents were:

a) Tax provisions

Assessing the cutcome of uncertain tax positions requires
Judgements to be made regarding the result of negotiations
with and enquines from tax authorities n a number of
Junsdictions. The assessments made are based on adwice from
independent tax adwvisers and the status of ongoing discussions
with the relevant tax cuthonties,

b) Prowisions for other liobiltues and charges

Assessing the finanaial outcorne of uncertain commercot

and tegal positions requires judgements to be made regarding
the relatve mernts of each party’s case and the extent to
which any dam agamst the group s likely to be successful.
The assessments made are based on advice from the group's
mtemal counsel and, where appropnate, independent

legal adwvice

The key accounting estmates were

a) Goodwill impairment

Deterrmining whether goodwill 1S imparred requires an
estmation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
{'CGU7) to which goodwill has been ollocated The value m use
calcutation requires the group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to anse frorm the CGU and a sutabte discount rate to
calculate present volue Details of the assumptions used are set
out In note 16 to the finanaial staterments

b} Depreciation and carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment

Calaulating the depreciation charge and hence the cormying
value for property, plant and equipment requires estimates to
be made of the useful lves of the assets The estimates are
based on engineenng data and the group’s expenence of
similar assets Details are set out in note 2 j)

¢} Retirement benefit obligations

Determining the amount of the group’s retrement benefit
obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits requires
assumptions to be made concerming long term interest rates,
nflation, salary and pension increases, investment returns and
tongevity of current and future pensioners. Changes in these
assumptions could significantly mpact the omount of the
obligations or the cost of providing such benefits. The group
makes assumptions cenceming these matters with the
assistance of adwice from independent qualified actuanes.
Details of the assumptions made are set cut in note 27 to the
finanaadl statements.
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4 Significant accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty (continued)
d) Unbilted revenue

Severn Trent Water rarses bills and recogrises revenue m
accordance with s nght to receive revenue in ine with the
lirnits established by the penodic regulatory pnce review
processes. For water and waste water custormers with water
meters, the amount recognised 1s dependent upon the volume
supplied Induding an estimate of the sales value of units supplied
between the date of the last meter read and the year end
Meters are read on a cychical bases and the group recogrises
revenue for unbidled amounts based on estimated usage from
the last billing to the end of the finanaal year The estimated
usage 15 based on histoncal doto, judgement and assumptions
€} Provision for impairment of trade recenables

Promisions are made aganst Severn Trent Water's trade
recevables based on historical expernence of levels of recovery
from accounts n a particular ageing category. The actual

5 Segrentat analysis
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armounts collected could differ from the estirnated level of
recovery which could impact operatng results.
f) Adoption of private drains and sewers

0On 1 October 2011 Severn Trent Water was required to adopt
approximately 37,000 krm of drains and sewers as a result of
legistotion. The group’s accounting policy 1s to recogrise
odopted assets at far vatue at the point of adopbion Estirmation
of the far value of these assets requires assumptions to be
made about.

= the costs required to bring the assets up to the required
standard,

» the costs required to maintan the operating capability of the
assets at the required standard, and

= the extent and tmung of recovery of these costs,

In all reasonably probable scenanos, the present value of the
costs recovered will not exceed the present value of the costs
incurred and hence a far value of nit has been attnbuted to
these ossets.

The group has two reportable segments Severn Trent Water and Sevem Trent Services The key factor deterrmining the identdfication
of reportable segrments s the regulatory ermaronment in which the businesses operate Sevem Trent Water 1s subject to economic
regulation by Ofwat and operates under a icence to prowide water and sewerage services within a defined geographucal region in
Englond and Wales Severn Trent Services 1s not subject to econormic regulation and operates m markets in the USA, Europe and

Asia

The Severn Trent Executive Cornmittee (STEC) s considered to be the group’s chuef operating decision maker The reports provided to
STEC include segrmental information prepared on the basis described above Details of Severn Trent Water's operations are described
on pages 8 to 21 of the Business Review and those of Sevem Trent Services on pages 24 to 30

Transactions between reportable segments are included within segmental results, ossets and labiittes in accordonce with group

accounting polictes. These are eliminated on consolidation.

The group has a large and diverse customer base and there 1s no significant reliance on arnty single customer

The measure of profit or loss that s reported to STEC for the segments s profit before interest, tax and exceptional terns
(underlying PBIT) A segmental analysis of sales and underlying PBIT s presented below

Severn Trent  Severn Trent
Water Services

2012 £m £m
Extemal sales 1,4561 3133
Inter-segment sales 14 190
Totdl sales 1,457 5 3323
Profit before mterest, tax and exceptional tems i 5000 180
Exceptional terns 103 {667
Profit/{loss} before nterest and tax 5103 (267)
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional temns is stated after

Amortrsation of intangible assets i 287 19
Depreaation of property, plant and equipment i 2521 59
Profit on disposdl of fixed assets {42) (02)
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)
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Sevem Trent  Severn Trent
Woter setvices

2011 £m £m

External sales 1,3889 3217

Inter-segment sales 09 144

Total sales 13898 3361

Profit before interest, tax and exceptional temns 5037 257

Exceptional sterms (13 0) {45)
Profit before nterest and tax 4907 212

Profit before interest, tax and exceptional tems 1s stated ofter

Amortisation of Intangible assets 236 16

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2474 64

Profit on disposal of fixed assets 21) 05)

The group’s treosury and tax affairs are managed centrally by the Group Treasury and Tax Departments Finance costs are managed
on a group basis and hence interest Income and costs are not reported at the segmental level Tax s not reported to STEC ona

segmental basis

Interests i joint ventures and associates are not matenal and are not included in the segmental reports reviewed by STEC
Separate segmental analyses of assets and labiliies are not reviewed by STEC The balance sheet measure reviewed by STEC ona

segmental basis is capital emnployed which indudes the following components

Severn Trent  Sevemn Trent
Wuater Services

2012 £m fm
Operating assets 70229 1855
Goodwall - 448
Interests in joint ventures and assocates 01 46
Segment assets 70230 2349
Segment operating liabfliies (1,064 3) {953)
Capital employed 59587 1396
Severn Trent  Severn Trent

Water Services

2011 £m fm
Operating assets 6,864 8 2038
Goodwill - 683
Interests in jomt ventures and associates 01 47
Segment assets 6,8649 2768
Segrnent operating ablibies {9597) {878)
Capital employed 59052 1820

Operating assets compnse other mtangible assets, property, plant and equipment, irventory and trade and other recenvables.

Operating habiliies cormpnse trode and other payables, retirement benefit obligations and provisions.
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5 Segmental analysis {(continued)

Addihions to other mtangible assets and property, plart and equipment were as follows

Severn Trent  Severn Trent
Woter Services

2012 £ £m

Other intangible assets 98 21

Property, plant and equipment 4053 55

Severn Trent  Severn Trent

Water Servces

2011 £m £m

Other intangible assets 183 26

Property, plant and equipment 3707 49
The reportable segments’ revenue 1s reconclled to group tumover os follows.

2012 2011

fm fm

Severn Trent Water 1,4575 1,3898

Sevemn Trent Services 3323 3361

Other 98 81

Inter-segment sales (290) (227

Group tumover 1,7706 1,7113

Segmental undertying PBIT 15 reconciled to the group's profit before tax and discontinued operctions as follows.

2012 2011
£m im

Underlying PBIT
- Seven Trent Water 5000 5037
- Severn Trent Services 180 257
- Corporate and other costs {153) (125)
Consolidation adjustments 15 22
Group undertying PBIT 5042 5191
Exceptional operating costs
- Severn Trent Water 103 {130
- Severn Trent Services (447 (45)
- Corporate and other ) - (39)
Share of resuits of assoaates and jomt ventures o i 01 01
Net finance costs ) (2455) (2306)
Losses on finanaal mstrurnents (677) (162)
Profit before tax 1567 2530
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5 Segmentat analysis (continued)
The reportable segments’ assets are reconaled to the group’s total assets as follows.

2012

2011

£m £m
Segment assets
- Severn Trent Water 70230 68649
- Severn Trent Services 2349 2768
Corporate assets 464 468
Other financigl assets 4578 5077
Consolidation adjustrments (470) (&7 7)
Total assets 77151 76485
The consoldation adjustments compnse elirmination of ntra-group debtors and unrealised profits on fixed assets
The reportable segrments’ liabiliies are reconcited to the group's total liabilities as follows
2012 2011
£ Erm
Segment kabilities
- Severn Trent Water (1,064 3) (9597
- Severn Trent Services (953) {87 8)
Corporate habilities (578) (550
Cther financial labilities (4,6873} (44669)
Current tax (46 5) 670)
Deferred tax (801 5) (919 4)
Consotidation edjustments 190 174
Total labilibes {6,7337) {6,542 4)
The consolidation adjustments comprise elimination of ntra-group creditors
Geographical areas
The group's sales were denved from the following countries.
2012 2011
£m £m
UK ~ 15380 14654
USA ) 1365 1540
Other 961 919
17706 17113
The group’s non-current assets (excluding financial instruments, deferred tox assets and post employment benefit assets) were
located in the following countnes
2012 2011
fm £m
UK 66704 65508
USA _ 592 583
Other 140 262
67436 66353
6 Revenue
2012 2011
£m £m
Water and sewerage services o o . . _hse3 13800
Other serices . . _ L 1914 1923
Sale ofgood;; ) o ) ) __ ) ) S 98 1032
Service concesston arrangements {note 36) 385 358
Total turnover ~ . 106 1113
Interest recenable (note 10) i 70 75
1,7776 17188
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7 Operating costs
2012 2011
Before Before
exceptional  Exceptioncl exceptional  Exceptional
costs costs Totat costs costs Total
f£m £m fm £m £m £m
Waoges and salories 2642 26 2668 2637 31 2668
Socal secunty costs 177 01 178 158 04 162
Pension costs 275 (231) 44 270 06 276
Share based payments 41 - 41 46 - 46
Total employee costs 3135 (204) 2931 3111 41 3152
Power 590 - 590 579 - 579
Carbon Reduction Commutment 59 - 59 - - -
Raw matenals ond consumables 1350 04 1354 1353 06 1359
Rates 694 - 694 624 - 624
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 307 215 522 352 - 352
Service charges 333 - 333 326 - 326
Deprecation of property, plant and equipment 2560 - 2560 2515 - 2515
Arnortisation of intangible fixed assets 308 - 308 254 - 254
Impairment of goodwall -~ 229 229 - -
Hired and contracted services 2192 43 2235 1776 72 1848
Operating leases rentals
-land and buldings 34 - 34 43 04 47
~other 15 - 15 08 - 08
Hire of plant and machinery 56 - 56 78 - 78
Research and development expenditure 45 - 45 45 - 45
Prafit on disposal of propesty, plant and equipment (4.8) - {6 &) (26} - (16)
Foreign exchange gains 01 - 01 (09) - (09)
Infrastructure maintenance expenditure 1289 - 1289 969 - 969
Other operating costs 592 57 64.9 608 91 699
13516 344 13860 1,2606 214 1,2820
Release from deferred income 87 - 8.7) {84) - (8.4)
Own work capitalised (76 5) - (76 5) {600) - {60.0}
1,266 4 344 13008 1,192 2 214 1,2136
Further details of exceptional costs are given in note 8
Dunng the year the following fees were charged by the guditors
2012 2011
£fm fm
Fees payable to the cornpany’s auditors for
- the audit of the company’s annual accounts 01 01
- the gudit of the company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 04 04
- audit fees payable to assocates of the company’s cuditors 02 01
Total qudst fees 07 06
Fees payable to the company’s auditors and their associctes for other services to the group
- other services pursuant to legislation 02 02
- other services relating to taxation - 02
Total non-audit fees 02 04

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 55 to 68
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8 Exceptional items before tax
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2012

2011

£m £m
Exceptional operating costs
Severn Trent Water
Restructunng costs 115 130
Curtatment gains on defined benefit pension schemes (21 8) -
{103) 130
Severn Trent Services
Provisions for commercial disputes and bad debts 231 -
Curtalment gamns on defined benefit pension schemes {13) -
Impairment of goodwall 229 -
Restructunng costs - 07
Costs relating to requlotory matters (see note 35) - 38
447 45
Corporate and Other
Costs retating to regulatory matters (see note 35) - 39
- 39
Total exceptionat operating costs 344 214
Exceptional finance costs
Costs incurred on early redemption of debt 165 -
Exceptronal tems before tax 509 214
9 Employee numbers
Average number of employees (including executive directors) during the year
2012 2011
Number Number
By type of business
Severn Trent Water 5,162 5,237
Severn Trent Services 2,878 3,032
Corporate and Other 11 13
8,051 8,282
10 Finance income
2012 2011
£m fm
Interest revenue earmed on
Bank deposits 41 38
Other fimanciol iIncome 29 37
Total interest revenue 70 75
Expected retum on defined benefit schemne assets 1007 932
1077 1007
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11 Finance costs

2012 2011

Before

excepbonal  Excepbional

costs {osts Total Total
fm £m
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 289 - 289 69
Interest on other loans 1989 - 1989 2141
Interest on finance leases 97 - 9.7 111
Total bormrawang costs 2375 i - 2375 2321
Other finanaal expenses 15 165 18.0 08
Interest cost on defined benefit scherme obligations 977 - 977 984
3367 16.5 3532 3313

In occordance with IAS 23 borrowing costs of £10 5 million (2011 £11 4 rmilbon) meurred funding eligible caprtal projects have been

capitalised at an interest rate of 5 93% {2011 5 99%)
12 Losses on financial instruments

2012

2011

fm fm
(Loss)/gam on cross currency swaps used as hedging nstrurnents in far value hedges (51) 176
Gain/(loss) ansing on adjustment for foreign currency debt in fair value hedges 19 (104)
Exchange gaini{loss) on other loans i 415 12)
Loss on cash flow hedges transferred from equity 37 (&5)
Loss ansing on swaps where hedge accountng is not applied {102 3) (157)
{677) (14 2)
The group’s hedge accounting arrangements are described in note 32 f)
13 Taxation
a) Analysis of tax credit in the year
2012 2011
£m £m
Current tax
Current year at 26% (2011 28%) 692 665
Prior year at 28% (2011 30%) (87) (344)
Totol current tax 605 321
Deferred tox i
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences - current year {(140) 46
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences - pror year 49 95
Exceptional credit ansing from rate change 691) (677)
Total deferred tax {782) (53 6)
{177) {21 5)

The exceptional deferred tax credit anses from the reduction m the rate at which the temporary differences are expected to reverse

from 26% to 24% The standard rate of corporation tax i the UK changed from 26% to 24% with effect from 1 Aprit 2012

KBNS [pouDul; Aupdua)
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13 Taxation {(continued)
b) Factors affecting the tax credit in the year

The tax expense for the current year s lower {2011 tower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK. The differences are

explained below
2012 2011
£m £m
Profit on ordnary actmvties before tax 1567 2530
Tax at the standard rate of corporation tax i the UK 26% (2011 28%) ~ 408 708
Tax effect of expenditure not deductible/(incorme not taxable) in deterrmurung taxable profits 120 (02)
Current year impact of rate change 19 -
Effect of different rates in overseqs junsdictions 05 05
Adjustrments in respect of prior years (38 (249)
Exceptional deferred tax credit ansing from rate change (69 1) (677)
Total tax credit {17 7) (21 5)

¢) Tax (credited)/charged directly to equity

In addition to the amount credited to the income staternent, the followang amounts of tax have been (credited)/charged diectly to

equity
2012 2011
£m £m
Current tax
Tax on share based payments {04) (03)
Tax on pension contnbutions n excess of profit and loss charge 88 -
Tax on exchange movement - 04
Total current tax (credited)/charged directly to equity {92) 01
Deferred tax
Tax on actuanal losses/gans (178) 132
Tax on cash flow hedges (199) 53
Tax an share based payments 03) (12}
Effect of change in tax rate (17 {07)
Total deferred tax (credited)/charged directly to equity (397 166
14 Dividends
Amounts recogrised as drstnbutions to equity holders m the penod
2012 2011
Pence per Pence per

i share fm share £m
Final dwdend for the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010) ) 3905 925 4561 1078
Intenm dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011) 2804 665 2604 616

6709 1590 7165 1694

Proposed final dmdend for the year ended 31 March 2012 4206
Proposed specal dmdend 6300

The proposed final and speaal dvdends are subject to approvat by shareholders at the AGM and have not been included as a

Lability in these financial statements,
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15 Eomings per share

Bask eamings per share are colcutated by dviding the eamings attnbutaoble to ordinary shareholders by the weighted averoge
number of ordinary shares in ssue dunng the year, excluding those held in the Sevem Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust
whuch are treated as cancelled.

For diuted eamings per share, the weghted average number of ordinary shares in issue s adjusted to assume conversion of all
potentially dilutive ordinary shares. These represent share options granted to employees where the exeraise price s less than the
average market pnice of the cormpany’s shares dunng the year

Basic and dituted earmings per share from continuing operations are calculated on the basis of profit from continuing operations
attnbutable to the equity holders of the company

The calculation of basic and diluted earmings per share s based on the following dato

ammjmlmlmm’m

Eamings
2012 2011
£m £m
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diuted earmings per share from operations )
Profit for the penod attributable to the equity holders of the company 1718 2726
Number of shares
2012 2011
m m
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earmings per share ) 2370 2367
Effect of dilutve potential ardinary shares ] g
- share options and LTIPs 12 11 .
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of dituted egrmings per share 2382 2378 g’
Adjusted earmungs per share
2012 2011 §
pence pence
Adjusted basic earnings per share 889 1056
Adjusted dituted earmings per share 885 1051 §
Adpusted earmings per share figures are presented for continuing operations. These exclude the effects of deferred tax, losses on 3
finanaal nstrurments and exceptional items in both 2012 and 2011 The directors consider that the adjusted figures provide a useful
additional indicator of performance The denominators used n the colculations of adpusted basic and diluted eamings per share are é '
the same as those used in the unadjusted figures set out above

Adpustments to eamnings
The adjustments to earrings that are made in calautoting adjusted earmings per share are as follows ‘

2012 2011 ‘
£m £m ‘

Earrungs for the purpose of basic and diuted earnings per share from continuing operations ) 171.8 2726 |
Adjstments for
- exceptional tems 509 214
- current tox related to exceptional tems at 26% (2011 28%) {15) 47
- losses on finanaal instruments o ] i 677 142
- deferred tax (782) (53 6)

Eamungs for the purpose of cdjusted basic ond diluted earmings per share 2107 2499
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16 Goodwill

2012 2011

£fm £m

Cost
At 1 April 683 706
Exchange adjustments (05) 23
At 31 March 678 683
Imparment i
At 1 April ) - -
Arnounts written off (229 -
At 31 March (229) -
Net book value
At 31 March 449 683

Goodwill mpairment tests
Goodwill s allocated to the group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) identified according to country of operation and business segrment
A summary of the gocdwilt allocation by CGU 15 presented below:

2012 2011
£m £m

Severn Trent Services )
Water Punfication US ) 263 262
Contract Operations ] 117 116
UK Laboratories ) - 120
Senwices Italy ) 22 82
Services Span (formerly Apliclor) 47 103
449 683

The group has reviewed the carmying value of goadwill for impairment m accordonce with the policy stated in note 2m)

The value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covenng a five year
peried The key assumption underlying these budgets 1s revenue growth. Managerment of each CGU deterrmines assurmptions bosed
on past experience, current market trends and expectations of future developments.

Cash flows beyond the five year penod are extropolated using an estimated norrunal growth rate stated below The growth rate

does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the economy in which the CGU operates The assumptions used in relation
to growth rates beyond the five year penod and discount rates were

Normenal growth rote Dscount rote

2012 2011 2012 2011

% % % %

Water Punfication US 35 30 58 73
Contract Operations 35 30 59 77
UK Laboratories i - 30 80 73
Services Italy i 30 30 110 110
Services Spain 31 30 89 116

The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts induded in industry reports The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflect speafic nsks relating to the (GU

As a result of the impaimment review, the group has recorded the following impamment losses i the Severn Trent Services segment.

In each case the recoverable armount has been deterrmined by calculating the value in use of the asset using the assumptions
descnibed above
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16 Goodwill (continued)

In UK Labaratones, towards the end of the year, and eary i the new finanaial year, management was informed that certan
contracts from utifies comparues would not be renewed Monogement s developing a plan to reduce the scale of thes business

accordingly The business’s cash flow projections have been amended to take these changes mto account and as a result an

mpaiment loss of £12 0 milken has been recogresed m these finanagl statements

The group has discontinued any further mvestrment in resources to support future market growth in ftaly and continues to toke o
cautious view as to the medurn term business opporturuties n that country As a result an imparment loss of £5 7 million has been

recogrused in these financidl staternents m respect of Services Italy

In Senvices Span the group has taken o couttous view of the prospects for growth both in the short and medurn term As aresultan

impaimment loss of £5 2 million has been recognised in these finanoal statements.

Changes in the growth rote outside the five yeor penod or in the discount rate applied to the cash flows may cause o CGU's carrying
value to exceed its recoverable amount. However, in the apinion of the directors, the changes m growth rate or discount rate that
would be required to reduce the recoverable armounts of Water Punfication US and Contract Operations below ther camying value

are not reasonably possible and therefore no sensitmty analysis has been provided

17 Intengible assets
Computer software Other
Intermolly Intemnally
gererated  Purchased genergted Totat
£m £m £m £m

Cost i
At 1 April 2010 ) 1174 1853 218 3245
Additions 41 146 22 209
Drsposals ) - (298) - (29 8)
Reclossifications - 02 12 14
Exchange cdjustments - (02) {04) (06)
At1Apri 2011 1215 1701 248 3164
Additions 03 97 20 120
Disposats - (04) - {0 4)
Exchange adpstments - 02 {02) -
At 31 March 2012 1218 1796 266 3280
Amortsation ]
At 1 April 2010 ] (734)  (1009) (117 {186 0)
Amortrsation for year . (94) (151) 0% (254)
Disposals i - 297 - 297
Exchange adpsstments - 01 01 02
At 1 Aprl 2011 ) (82.8) {86 2) (12 5) {1815)
Amortisation for year ) (19 4) 97 17 308)
Drsposals . - 02 - 02
Exchange adpstments - - 01 01
At 31 March 2012 (102 2) {(957) (141) (2120}
Net book value ~ ~ i
At 31 March 2012 196 839 125 1160
At 31 March 2011 387 839 123 1349

Other assets pnmarity compnse caprtalised development costs and patents.

mmmjm‘mlmm‘m
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18 Property, plant and equipment

Fixed plant
Londond Infrastructure and Movable
buidings assets  equipment plont Total
£m Em fm £m £m
Cost
At 1 April 2010 24833 40620 31500 600 97553
Additions 947 1302 1535 38 3822
Disposals (75) 05) (320) (64) (46 4)
Redossifications ©3) - (39) - (42)
Exchange adjustments (03) - (14) 07 (24)
At 1 Apnl 2011 2,5699 41917 32662 567 10,0845
Additions 1069 1188 1815 45 4117
Disposals (36) o1 (26 4) 43) (34 4)
Exchange adjustments - - (08) 01 07
At 31 March 2012 26732 43104 34205 570 10,4611
Depreciation
At 1 April 2010 (7691) (1,0659) (15874) (309) (3,4533)
Charge for the year {563) (27 6) {160 5) (71) (2515}
Disposals 73 - 315 50 438
Redassifications 19 - - - 19
Exchange adjustments 01 - 10 05 16
At 1 April 2011 (8161) (1,0935) (1,7154) {325) (36575
Charge for the year (56 0) (282) {1651) 67 {256 0)
Disposals 33 - 228 38 299
Exchange adjustments - - 03 - 03
At 31 March 2012 (8688) (11217} (1,8574) (354) (3,8833)
Net book value
At 31 March 2012 1,804 4 31887 15631 216 65778
At 31 March 2011 1,753 8 30982 15508 242 64270
The camying amount of property, plant and equipment indudes the following amounts in respect of assets held under finance
leases
Fixed plant
tondond Infrostructure and Movable
buidings assets  equiprment plant Total
tm £m im £Em £m
Net book vatue
At 31 March 2012 - 1192 763 - 1955
At 31 March 2011 - 1201 96 4 - 2165

Property, plant and equipment indudes £372 3 miflion (2011 £433 8 million) in respect of assets in the course of construction for

whuch no deprecation 1s charged
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19 Interests in joint ventures

99

2012

2011

tm £m
Group’s share of i
Long tern assets 02 02
Current assets 06 06
Current babilties {0 6) {06)
02 02
Group’s share of
Tumover 04 33
Operating costs {0 &) (33)
Profit before tax - -
Tax - -
Profit after tax - -

As at 31 March 2012 and 2011 the joint ventures had no sigruficant contingent labilities to which the group was exposed and the
group did not have any significant contingent liabilities in relation to its nterests in the joint ventures. The group had no capitat
commutments in relation to its nterests m the jomt ventures at 31 March 2012 or 2011

Particulars of the group's pinapal joint venture undertckings at 31 March 2012 werer

Country of Proportion of
Nome ncorporation ownership mterest
Cogruca Lirnited Great Britan 50%
Jockson Water Partnership USA 70%

The partnerstup agreement for the Jackson Water Partnership requires that certain key deasiorss require the unarymous consent of
the partners and consequently the partnership has been accounted for as a joint venture

20 Interests in associates

2012

2011

uoqnun;uam\s:w.xmmsmm;ﬁndm) Qmm;mﬁam‘mmim

£m £m
At 1 April 48 46
Share of profits 01 01
Exchange adjpustments {03) 01
At 31 March 46 48
Group's share of i i
Total assets 247 261
Total hobilities {201) {213)
46 48
Tumover 77 76
Profit before tax 01 01

At 31 March 2012 and 2011 the assoaate company had no significant contingent habitities to which the group was exposed
The group had no capital commitrnents i relation to its interests in the associate at 31 March 2012 or 2011

The pnncpal associate at 31 March 2012 was Servizio Idnco Integrato S cp a, a company incorporated in Italy The proportion of

ownership interest held by the group was 25%.

The group has given certain guarantees in respect of the assoaate’s borrowings The guarantees are mited to €11 2 million
(2011 €11 2 millon} The group does not expect any labilties that are not provided for in these financal stotements to anse from

these armangements,
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21 Inventory
2012 2011
£m £m
Irventory and work in progress 344 271
22 Trade and other receivables
2012 2011
£fm £m
Trade recevables 3063 2866
Less provisions for impairment of recenvables (1252) (98 5)
Trade recervables net 1811 1881
Recervables from related parties 02 02
Other amounts recenvable 325 401
Prepayments and accrued income 2656 2501
4794 4785

The carmying vatues of trade and other recevables are reasonable approximations of therr fair values

Prepayments and accrued ncorme mclude £25 5 mullion {2011 £27 1 millilon) in respect of amounts due from customess for

contract work and £43 1 mitlion (2011 £49 7 millton) which is recoverable after more than one year

Credit control policies and procedures are determined ot the iIndmdual business unit level By far the most sigruficont busmess urt of
the group 1s Severn Trent Water Lirvuted, which represents 82% of group turnover and 79% of net trade recervables. Severn Trent

Water hos a statutory cbligation to provide water and sewerage sences to customers within its region. Therefore there 1s no

concentration of credit nsk with respect to its trade recewvables and the credit quality of its customer base reflects the wedlth and
prospenty of all of the commeraat businesses and domestic households withm its region. None of the other business units are

tndmdually sigrificant to the group

Movements on the doubtful debts provision were as follows

2012

2011

£m £im
At 1 April 985 918
Amounts wrtten off dunng the year (24 4) (289)
Amounts recovered dunng the year 03) -
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 307 352
Exceptional charge for bad and doubtful debts 215 -
Exchange adjustments {08) -
At 31 March 1252 985

Included i trade recevables are balances with a carmying amount of £157 8 mithon (2011 £146 0 milion) which were past due at
the reporting date but for which no specific prowision has been made os the collective mpairment recorded agamnst such assets is
considered to be sufficient allowance for the nisk of non-collecton of such balances.

The aged analysis of past due recenables that were not ndmductly impanred s as follows.

2012

2011

£m Em

Up to 90 days 464 477
91-365 days 701 606
1-2 years 264 250
2-3 years . _ 95 B4
More than 3 years 54 43
1578 1460
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22 Trade and other receivables {continued)

Included in the dllowance for doubtful debts are prowsions amounting to £27 5 milkon {2011 £24 0 million) against specific trade

recenvables. The oge of the impared recevables was as follows

2012 2011

£m £Em
Up to 90 days 14 25
91-365 days i 29 181
1-2 years 151 41
2-3 years ) 45 37
More than 3 years 41 47
280 331
23 Cash and cash equivalents
2012 2011
£m £m
Cash at bank and m hand 374 666
Short term deposits 2577 2486
2951 3152
Of the £257 7 milhon (2011 £248 6 million) of short term bank deposits, £26 9 millon (2011 £28 4 million) s held os secunty
deposits for msurance obligations and 15 not available for use by the group
24 Finance leases
Obligations under finance lease are as follows.
2012 2011
fm Em
Gross obligotions under finance leases 2921 3526
Less future finance charges (731) (85.9)
Present volue of leose obligations 2190 2667

A matunty analysis of gross obligations under finance leases 1s presented in note 32 Net obligations under finance leases fall due as

follows.
2012 2011
£m fm
Within 1 year - 135
1-2 years ] 178 164
3-5 years ) ) 855 81
After more than 5 years 1157 1527
Included in non-current hicbitities 2190 2532
2190 2667

The remaining termns of finance leoses ranged from 3 to 20 years at 31 March 2012 Interest terrms are set at the inception of the
leases Leases with capital outstanding of £219 0 mdllion (2011 £266 7 mdlen) bear fixed mterest at a weighted average rate of

5 4% (2011 5 4%) The lease obligations are secured agamnst the related assets.

There were no contingent rents, escalation daouses or matenal renewal or purchase options. The temns of the finance leases do not

impose restnctton on dmvidend payments, additonat debt or further leasing

SIUBUSIONS (00U ALDALIC)
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25 Trade and other payables
2012 20m
fm fm
Current habilties i
Trade payables i ] 349 318
Soaal secunty and other taxes ) 70 68
Other payables 184 321
Accruals and deferred income 3373 3205
3976 3912
Non-current liabdiies
Trade payables - 05
Other payables 04 21
Deferred incorme 3966 3459
Accrued expenses 140 193
4110 3678
The drectors consider that the camying value of trade payables s not matenally different from ther far values.
Accruals and deferred incormne includes nil (2011 nil) in respect of amounts due to customers for contract work,
26 Deferred tax
An analysts of the moverments in the major deferred tax liobities and assets recogrused by the group is set out below
Accelerated  Retrernent Far value of
tax berefit fingnciol
depreciation obligotion  Taxlosses  mstruments Other Total
£m £m £m £m fm £m
At 1 April 2010 1,161 8 {99 4) (71) (335) (65 4) 956 4
Charge to incorne 136 32 03 10 (40) 141
Credit to income arnising from rate change (77 5) 31 - 12 55 {677
Charge to equity - 132 - 53 (12) 173
Credtt to equrty ansing from rate change (55 40 - 12 {04) 7
Exchange differences (05) - 04 - 01 -
At 1 April 2011 1,0919 {759) {64) (24 8) (654) 9194
Charge to ncome (831) 137 - {167) 770 (91)
Credit to income ansing from rate change (724) 28 - 11 (06) {691)
Charge to equity - (178 - {199) (03) {380)
Credit to equity ansing from rate change (55 30 - 07 01 (17)
At 31 March 2012 9309 (74 2) (64) (59 6) 108 8015
Deferred tax assets and liabiliies have been offset. The offset armounts, which are to be recovered/settied after rmore than
12 menths, are as follows.
2012 2011
3] fm
Deferred tax asset _ o (1949) (14 4)
Deferred tax liability 1,0004 9338
8055 9194
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27 Retirement benefit schemes
a} Defined benefit pension schemes

() Amount included n the balance sheet ansing from the group's obligations under defined benefit pension schemes

2012

o

£m fm E
Farr value of scherne assets
Equities 7986 7988 g
Gits o 2352 413 —
Corporate bonds 3391 5306
Property 1057 g50
Hedge funds 526 -
Cash 260 77 @
Total far value of assets 1,557.2 1,473 4 g
Present vatue of the defined benefit obligations - funded schernes (18944) (1,7574) &
(3372) (284 0) a
Present vatue of the defined benefit obligotions — unfunded schemes (8 6) 81)
Liobility recogrised m the balance sheet {345 8) (2921) §
Movements in the fair value of the scheme assets were as follows. “
2012 2011 g
im £m
Farr vatue at 1 Aprd 14734 13930 z
Expected retumn on scheme cssets 1007 932 S
Contributions from the spansonng companies 535 400
Contributions from scheme members 56 61
Actuanal fosses)/gains recognised in the staterment of comprehensive ncome (4 5) 122
Benefits paid {715) (711) 74
Far value at 31 March 1,557 2 1,473 4 g
Movermenits in the present value of the defined benefit obligotions were as follows
2012 2011 é.
£m £m
Present value at 1 Aprit 1,765 5 1,7479
Service cost 226 27
Interest cost } 977 984
Net curtalment gan (231) -
Contnbutions from scheme members 56 61
Actuanal losses/(gains) recognised in the staternent of comprehensive income 1062 (385)
Benefits paid (71 5) (711)
Present volue at 31 March 19030 1,7655
Of which
2012 2011
£m £m
Amounts relating to funded schermes ) B 18944 17574
Amounts relating to unfunded schermes 86 81
Present value at 31 March 19030 1,7655
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27 Retirement benefit schemes {(continued)
a) Defined benefit schemes {continued)

(i} Amounts recogrused i the incorne staterment i respect of these defined benefit pension schemes

2012 2011
£m fm
Amounts charged to operating costs i
Current service cost (226) (227)
Exceptronal curtalment gain 231 -
05 (227)
Amounts chargad to finance costs .
Interest cost ) 977 {98 4}
Amounts credited to finance income
Expected return on scheme assets 1007 932
Total amount credited/(charged) to the tncome statement 35 (27 9)

The actual return on scheme assets was o gain of £95 9 million (2011 gain of £105 4 milion)

Actuanal gains and losses have been reported in the statement of comprehensive Income  The cumulative omount of actuanal
gans and losses recognised In the staternent of comprehensive tncome since the adoption of IFRS is a net loss of £280 1 million
(2011 netloss of £169 & mullion)

(i) Background

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemnes i the UK, covenng the majonty of UK employees. The defined
benefit pension schemes are funded to cover future salory and pension increases and thesr assets are held in separate funds
adrministered by trustees The trustees are required to act in the best interests of the schernes’ bereficianes. A formal actuanal
valuation of each scheme 1s carmed out on behalf of the trustees at tnenrual ntervals by an independent professionally qualified
actuary Under the defined benefit pension schemes, members are entitled to retirement benefits calculated as a propertion
{varying between 1/30 and 1/80 for each year of service) of their salary for the final year of employment with the group or, if hugher,
the average of the highest three consecutive years' salary in the last ten years of employment.

On 11 May 2011, Severn Trent announced that it was consuiting with its 6,000 plus UK employees on proposed changes to its
pension arrangements, which would see oll existing pensions replaced by one new defined contnbution pension scheme Following
the penod of consultation and after discussion with the schemes’ trustees, final proposals have been accepted by the employees’
representatives and the trustees A new defined contribution pension scheme has been established and from 1 April 2012 new
employees have been outo enrolled into this scheme The defined benefit pension schermes will dose to future accrual on 31 March
2015 and members of the defined benefit pension scheme will then become members of the new defined contnbution pension
scheme Thus resulted in an exceptronal net curtaiment gam of £23 1 milllon being recogrmsed in the income staterment. The existing
defined contnbution pension scherme wall also be reptaced by the: new pension arangements with effect from 1 April 2015 and tt s
proposed to automatically enrol those emptoyees who are not curently members of a Severn Trent scheme from 1 April 2013

The final salary sections of the pension schemes listed below are dosed to new entrants and the age profile of scherme participants
15 expected to nse and hence service costs are also expected to nse until the schemes are dosed to future accrual

The UK defined benefit pension schermes and the date of therr last formal actuanal vatuation are os follows.

Date of lost forrnal actuanal valuation

Severn Trent Pension scheme (STPS)* 31 March 2010
Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2009

* The STPS 15 by for the largest of the group’s UX defined benefit schernes.

The group has an ebligation to pay pensions to a number of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise have been
restrnicted by the Finance Act 1989 earmings cap Provision for such benefits amounting to £8 6 million (2011 £8.1 million) s nduded
as an unfunded scheme within the retirement benefit obbgotion.
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27 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schemes (contmued)

(v) Actuanal assumptions

The major assurmphions used in the valuation of the STPS (also the approxmate weighted average of assurnptions used for the
vatuations of dll group schemes) were gs follows,

2012

2011

% %
Pnice nflatson ) 310 350
Salary ncreases ] 360 400
Pension mcreases in payrment i 310 350
Pension increases in deferment ] 310 350
Discount rate i 490 560
Long term rate of return on )
Equities i 680 785
Gitts ) 330 435
Corporate bonds . 490 560
Property . 580 685
Hedge funds ) 630 -
Cash 390 425

The assurnption for pnce inflation s denved from the difference between the yelds on longer term fixed rate gilts and on index-

tinked gilts The discount rote 15 set by reference to AA rated sterling 17 year corporate bonds.
{iv) Actuanal assumptions (continued)

The expected rate of retumn on scheme assets 1s based on market expectations at the begmning of the penod for returns over the

life of the benefit obligation For gilts and corporate bonds the expected rates of return are based on market yields For equities,
property and hedge funds, o nsk prerum has been added to the gilt rate.

The mortality assumptions adopted are based on rmortality tables applicable to the sex and year of birth of Indmdual members,

with allowance for the CMI 2010 future iImprovements and a 0 5% trend For men the assumptions are based on 110% of the *SAPS’

SINMA L tables and for women on 78% of the SINFA_L tables. These have been based on a mortality investigation camed out n

conjunction with the valuation of the STPS as at 31 March 2010 on behalf of the trustees
The life expectanaes implied by the mortality assumptions adopted at each year end are os follows

2012

2011

ammg‘mm‘mo
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Years Years
Age to which current pensioners aged 65 are expected to live i )
- men ) i i ) 875 874
- women 911 9210
Age to which future pensioners aged 45 at the balance sheet date are expected to Ive
- men ) 880 880
- women 919 918

The calculabion of the schemne liabilities is sensibive to the actuanal assumptions and in particular to the assumptions relating to
discount rate, pnce inflatron and mortality The following table summarnses the estimated impact on scherne Labilittes and service

cost resulting from changes to key actuanal assumptions whilst holding all other assumptions constant.

Assurmnphtion Change in assumption Impoct on scherme babilities
Drscount rate Increase/decrease by 0 1% Decreasefincrease by £35 rmulion
Price inflation Increase/decrease by 0 1% Increase/decrease by £30 milllon

Mortality Increase in life expectancy by 1 year Increase by £45 milion

umnuuo;uano’suauamsmmj&m
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27 Retirement benefit schemes {continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schermes (contmued)

(v) Contnbutions to the schernes

Contnbution rates are set in consultation with the trustees for each scherme and each participating employer [t s anticipated
that normat contnbutions to the scheme i the year ended 31 March 2013 will be unchanged ond agreed lump sum defict
contnbutions include a payment of £10 million per annum n cash and a further £8 million per annum through an asset backed
funding armrangement.

(i} History of actual and expected performance of pension scheme assets and liabilities

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

fm £m fm £m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligations (19030) (1,7655) (1,7479) (13080) (1,4583)
Farr value of scheme assets 1,557 2 1,473 4 1,3930 10750 1,3323
Deficit n schernes (345 8) (292 1) (354 9} (2330 (126 0)
Difference between actual and expected retum on scheme assets {65) 122 2704 (329 8) (1257)
Expenence adjustments on scheme tabilities (106 2) 1051 198 79 (64 3)

b) Defined contribution pension schernes

The group olso operates defined contribution arangements for certain of its UK and overseas employees In September 2001,

the Severn Trent Group Pension Scheme {an occupational defined contribution pension scherme) was established to ensure
compliance with stakeholder tegisiation and to provide the group with an alternative pension arrangement This was dosed to new
entrants on 1 April 2005 and replaced by the Severn Trent Stakeholder Pension Scheme

The total cost charged to operoting costs of £4 9 mdlion (2011 £4 9 rrullion) represents contributions payable to these schermes by
the group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes As at 31 March 2012, alt contnbutions (2011 100%j) due in respect of the
current reporting penod had been paid over to the schemes

28 Provisions
Terrninoted
Onerous  operations
Restructunng  Insurance contracts and dsposals Other Total
£m fm Em fm £m £m
At 1 Aprit 2011 33 231 69 37 10 380
Charged to income statement 14 74 - 27 53 168
Utilisation of provision (28) (56) (16) - (11) {111)
Unwinding of discount - - 02 - 01 03
At 31 March 2012 19 249 55 64 53 440
2012 2011
fm £m
Induded in
Current hiabilities 170 126
Non-current liabilities 270 254
440 380

The restructunng prowision reflects costs to be incurred in respect of cornmitted restructunng programmes

Derwent Insurance Limsted, a captve insurance company, 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of the group Prowisions for daims are made
as set outinnote 2 The associated outflows are estimated to anse over a penod of up to five years from the balance sheet date
The onerous contract provision relates to specific contractual bigbilities esther assurmed with businesses acquired or ansing in existing
group businesses, where estirmoted future costs are not expected to be recovered in revenues. The assoaicted outflows are
estimated to occur over a penod of ten years from the balance sheet date

Prowistons relating to terminated operations and disposals include amounts that it s probable will be pad m respect of dams ansing
from services performed by these businesses and the mdemnities descrnbed in note 35 b)

Other provisions indude provistons for dilapidations and commeraial disputes The associated outflows are estimated to anise over a
penod up to six years from the balance sheet date
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29 Share capital
2012 2011
£m fm
Total issued and fully paid share capital . ) ) } )
237,608,111 ordinary shares of 97'%/,,p (2011 237,142,534) 2326 2322
Changes n share copital were as follows.
Number fm
Qrdingry shares of 97/,5p
At 1 April 2011 237,142,534 2322
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 442,593 04
Shares issued under the Unapproved Share Option Scheme 22,984 -
At 31 March 2012 237,608,111 2326
30 Share premium
2012 2011
£m £m
At 1 Aprit 80O 759
Share prermum ansing on issue of shares for Employee Sharesave Scheme 37 41
Share prermuum ansing anissue of shares for Unapproved Share Qption Scheme 01 -
At 31 March 838 800
31 Other reserves
Coprtol Tronslotion
redernption  Infrastructure exchonge Hedging
reserve reserve reserve resenve Totat
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2010 1561 3142 317 (46 4) 4556
Totdl cormprehensive income for the peniod - - (63) 152 89
At 1 April 2011 1561 3142 254 (312) 4645
Total comprehensive loss for the penod - - {14) {62 9) {64 3)
At 31 March 2012 1561 3142 240 {94 1) 4002

The capitat redermption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares.
The infrastructure reserve arose on restating infrastructure assets to forr value as deemed cost on trensition to IFRS

The translation reserve anses from exchange differences on translation of the results and financial position of foreign subsichanes os

well as exchange differences ansing from hedges of net mvestment.

The hedging reserve anses from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge accounting

provisions of [AS 39 and the transition nules of [FRS 1
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32 Financial instruments

a) Caprtal management

The group's pnnapal objectives N managing caprtal are

» to access a broad range of sources of finance to obtan both the quantum required and lowest cost compatible with the need for
continued availability;

* to mantain an investment grade credit rating, and

+ to mamntan a flexible and sustamable balance sheet structure

The group seeks to actueve a balance of long term funding or commitment of funds across a ronge of funding sources at the best
possible econormic cost.

The group does not have a specific geanng target but seeks to mantamn geanng at a level consistent with 1ts capital management
objectives described above

The group’s dvidend policy 1s a key tool in achuewving its capital management objectives. This policy ts reviewed and updated in line
with Severn Trent Water's five year price control cyde and takes into account, inter alig; the plonned investrment programme, the
appropnate gearing level achieving a balance between an efficent cost of capital, and retaining an nvestment grede credit rating
and delivening an attractive and sustainable return to shareholders.

The directors have reviewed the group's capital structure, taking into account the funding requirements over the remainder of AMPS,
the proportion of index inked debt m ssue and histoncal and forecast RPI, and conduded thot there s an opportunity te delver
additional returns to shareholders The board has therefare proposed a return to shareholders of £150 million, which equates to

63 00 pence per share See note 14.

The group monttors future funding requirements and credit market conditions to ensure continued availability of funds.

On 24 January 2012, the group 1ssued a £250 mulion bond with a coupon of 4 875% and o matunty of 30 years On 27 January
2012, the group purchased £150 6 million of a £200 million bond matunng n 2014 through a tender offer lounched smuttaneously
with the bond 1ssue The costs of the tender offer gave nse to an exceptiondl finance charge of £16 5 million, representing the
difference between the purchase pnice and the canrying value of the bond

A new five year £500 million Revolving Credit Facility was agreed in October 2011 Ths replaced the existing £500 mitlion Revolving
Credit Focilty A new 10 yeor £100 mifion bilateral bank faciity was ogreed in March 2012 Thus facility was drawn on 18 April 2012

At 31 March the group's equity and debt capital cormprised the following

2012 201

£m fm

Cash and short term deposits 2951 3152

Bank overdrafts {04) -
Bank loans ~ {8529) {846 8)
Other loans (3,3269) (3,2309)
Obligations under finance leases {2190 (667

Cross curtency swops 1359 160 4
Net debt _ (39678) (3,8688)
Equity attributable to the company’s equity shareholders (9735) {1,0998)

Total capital (4,9413) {6,968 6)
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32 Finanaial instruments (continued)
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b) Categories of financial assets
2012 2011
£fm £m
Far value through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps - farr value hedges 952 981
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted 237 173
Energy swaps - cash flow hedges 25 147
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted 412 623
1626 1924
Avaitable for sale mvestrnents carmed at fair value
Unquoted shares 01 01
Loans and recemables (induding cash and cash equivalents)
Trade recevables 1811 1881
Short term deposits 2577 2486
Cash at bank in hand 374 666
4762 5033
Totdl finanaial assets 6389 6958
Disclosed in the balance sheet as.
Non-current assets
Dervative financial nstruments 1326 1881
Avaitable for sale finanaat assets 01 01
1327 1882
Current assets
Dervative financia! instruments 300 43
Cash and cash equivalents 2951 3152
Trade recervables (note 22) 1811 1881
5062 5076
6389 6958
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32 Financtal instruments (continued)
¢) Categones of financial Liabilities

2012 2011
£m £m
Faowr vatue through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted (05) -
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges (91 6) (178)
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted (194 4) (104 6)
Energy swaps - cash flow hedges ) (14) -
Foreign exchange forward contracts - not hedge accounted {06) 01
(288 5) (122 5)
Other financial liobilities )
Bark loans ) {852 5) (845 8)
Other loans ~ (33269 (3,2309)
Obligations under finance leases @180 (266 7)
Overdraft {04 -
Trade payables {34 9) (323)
(44337) (43767)
Total finanaiat babilities (6,7222)  (4,4992)
Disclosed in the balance sheet as
Non-current liabilties
Denvative financial instruments (288 0) {122 4)
Borrowmngs (4,3095) (4,3205)
{4,5975) (4,4429)
Current iabilities ]
Derwvative finanaial mstrurments (05) 01)
Borrowings (893) (239
Trade payables (note 25) (349) (323)

(124 7) (56 3}
(4,7222) (4,499 2}




Sevemn Trent Plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2012 ]. 1 1

Notes to the group finanaadl statements

32 Finanaal instruments {continued)
d) Fair values of financial nstruments

Except as disclosed below, the directors consider that there 1s no significant difference between the camying amount of financal
assets and habilites recorded in the financial staternents and therr fair values

2012 2011

Book vatue For volue Book vaiue Far value

fm £m fm im
Bank loans - amortised cost (852 5} (858 3} (846 8) (836 8)
Other loons (33269) (3,9362) (3,2309) (3,5976)
Obligations under finance leases - amortised cost (2190} (215 4) (266 7) (237 &)

{4,3984)  {5,0099) (4,344 4)  (6,6718)

Discounted future cosh flows are used to determine fair values for debt. Discount rates are dernved frorm yield curves based on
quoted interest rates and are adjusted for the group’s credit nsk.

Farr value measurements recogrised in the balance sheet
In 2012 and 2011, all the fair values of finanaal nstruments that were measured subsequent to nitiol recognition ot far value, were
based on observable mputs other than quoted prices for identical mstruments, defined as ‘Level 2/ IN IFRS 7

The fair volue of mterest rate swaps 1s calculated as the present value of the estmated future cash flows estimated and discounted
based on the application of yietd curves denved from quoted interest rates

Cross currency swaps ond forward exchange contracts are valued by reference to quoted forward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date and yield curves derved from quoted interest rates matching the matunties of the contracts.

e} Financial risk factors

The group’s activities expose 1t to a vanety of financial nsks. market nsk (induding currency and interest rate nsk), aredit nsk, iquidity
nsk and inflation nsk. The group’s overatt nsk manogement programme addresses the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to reduce potential adverse effects on the group's financiol performance or postbon.

Finanaio! nsks are managed by a central treasury department {Group Treasury) under polices approved by the board of directors.
Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges finanaal nisks in dose co-operation with the group’s operating units The board
provides written principles for overall nsk management, as well as written polictes covering specific areas such as exchange rate nsk,
interest rate nsk, credit nsk and the use of dervative and non-denvative finanao! nstruments. Denvative financial instruments are
used to hedge exposure to changes mn exchange rates and interest rates. The group’s policy i that denvative finanadl mstruments
are not held for troding

(i) Market nsk

The pnncipal market risk that the group is exposed to s fluctuations n mterest rates

Interest rate resk

The group's mcorme and operating cash flows are substantialty independent of changes in market interest rates,

The group's Interest rate nsk anses from long term borrowings. Borrowings wssued at vanable rates expose the group to cosh flow
mterest rate msk. Borrowings issued at fixed rotes expose the group to fair value mterest rate nsk. The group’s policy ts to maintam
45% to 90% of tts net debt i fixed rate nstruments At 31 March 2012 74 0% of the group's net debt was at fixed rates

(2011 759%)

The group manages its cash flow interest rote nsk by using floating to fixed interest rate swaps. Such nterest rate swaps have the
economuc effect of converting barrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Under the terms of the nterest rate swaps, the group
agrees with other parties to exchange, mainly sermi-annually, the difference between fixed contract and floating rate interest rates
calculated by reference to the agreed notional prncipal amounts The group has entered into o senes of long dated interest rate
swaps to hedge future debt. Econonically these act to fix the interest cost of debt wathun the group which s denommnated as
floating rate, but do not achieve hedge accounting under the strict critena of IAS 39 This has led to an £80.3 mithon charge

(2011 charge of £15 7 rmilon) in the Incorme statermnent.

Some of the group’s debt 1s index-linked, that 1s its cost & linked to changes m the Retai Price Index (RPI) This debit provides an
economic hedge for Severn Trent Water’s revenues and Regulatory Capital Vialue that are also RPI tinked under its requiatory regirne
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32 Financial instruments {continued)
e) Financial nsk factors (continued)

112

(i) Market nsk (contmued)
Financial iabilitres analysed by interest rote after taking occount of varous interest rate swaps entered into by the group
Non-interest
beorng Flogting Fixed Index-
obites rate rate tinked Total
2012 fm £m £m fm £m
Bank loans and overdrofts - (5004)  (1922) {1603}  (8529)
Other loans 12) (2652) (2,0631) {9974} (3,3269)
Finance leases - - {2180 - (2190
Other financial labilities (349) - - - (349)
(361) (7656) (24743} (L1577) (64337
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched agamnst speafic debt
mstrurments - 4636 {463 6) - -
361) (3020} {29379) (11577) (4,433 7)
Weighted average mnterest rate 5 84%
Weighted average pertod for which interest 1s fixed (years) 128
Non-interest
beoring Floating Fixed Index-
hobitbes rate rote nked Total
2011 fm £m fm £m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts - (544 1) {150:0) {1527) (846 8)
Other loons 12 (26350 (2047 (9515) (3,2309)
Finance leases - - (2667) - (266 7)
Cther financial labilities (323) - - - (323)
(335) (8076) (2,4314) (1,1042) (43767)
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched aganst speafic debt
instruments - 4623 {462 3) - -
{335) (3453) (2,8937) (1,1042) (43767)
Weighted averoge interest rate 596%
Weighted average penod for whuch interest is fixed (years) 117
Financiol assets analysed by mterest rates
Nofrinterest
beanng Floating Fixed Index-
assets rate rate bnked Total
2012 £m fm fm £m fm
Available for sale finanadl assets 01 - - - 01
Loans and recevables 1810 - - - 1810
Cash and cash equvalents - 2951 - - 2951
1811 2951 - - 4762
Non-nterest
beanng Flogting Fixed Index-
assets rote rate bnked Totod
2011 £m £m fm fm £m
Available for sale finonad assets ) 01 - - - 01
Loans and recenvables 1881 - - - 1881
Cash and cash equivalents - 3152 - - 3152
1882 3152 - - 503 4
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32 Finanaal instruments (continued)

€) Financal nsk foctors {continued)

(i) Market nsk (continued)

Interest rate sensitiity analysis

The sensitvity after tax of the group's profits, cash flow and equity, mduding the impact on derivatve financiol instruments, to
changes in interest rates at 31 March s as follows,

2012 2011
+10% -10% +1 (% -10%

fm fm fm fm

Profit or loss ) 753 (901) 461 {55 3)
Cash flow . 01 (01) 01 01
Equity 1217 (143 1) 833 {98 6)

Inflation rate sensitvity analysis

The sensitvty of the group's profit and equity to changes in inflation at 31 March s set aut in the following table This analysis
exctudes any impact on Severn Trent Water's revenues and Regulated Capital Value, or accounting for defined benefit pension
schemes.

ammumoglmssalsng‘mmo

2012 2011

+1 0% -10% +1 0% -10%

fm £m fm £m

Profit or loss (8 8) 88 (80) 80
Equity (88) 88 (80) 80

Exchange rate nsk

The group operates internationally and 1s exposed to exchange nsk ansing frorm net nvestments in forergn operations, pnmanty with
respect to the US dollar and the euro However, since substantially dlt of the group’s profits and net assets anse from Severn Trent
Water which has very imited and indirect exposure to changes in exchange rates, the sensitivity of the group’s results to changes in
exchange rates 15 not matenal

The group’s net debt includes foreign currency borrowings, prmanly denominated in yen and euros The group’s policy is to

manage the exchange nsk ansing from foreign cumrency borrowings by entenng nto cross curency swaps o forward contracts

with external parties.

The group’s gross and net currency exposures ansing from currency borrowings are sumimiansed below:

SUILINO7S |oDuDUy AUDdLUO) | SJUALIIDTS [puDLy dnaus
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Japanese Czech

Stering Euro Us Dollar Yen Krona

2012 £m €m sm ¥Bn CZKm
Borrowings by cumrency (3.4735) (720 6) (50 0) (300) (1,9700)
Cross currency swaps - hedge accounted (1840} 199 500 200 1,9700
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted (617 6) 7000 - 100 -
(4,2751) 07 - - -

Cash 2769 53 221

Net currency exposure (3,998 2) 46 221 - -
Japanese Czech

Steriing Eurc US Dollar Yen Kmona

2011 fm €m $m ¥Bn CZKm
Borrowings by currency {3,536 5) (721 4) (50.0) (310} (1,9700)
Cross curency swaps - hedge accounted (188 9) 199 500 210 19700
Cross currency swaps -~ not hedge occounted (617 7) 7000 - 100 -
{4,343 1) 15) - - -

Cash 2849 121 316 - -
Net currency exposure {4,058 2) 106 316 - -

The euro and US doltar net cash balances relate to operations in which the euro or US dollar s the functionat currency
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32 Financial instruments (continued)
e} Financal risk foctors (continued)

Monetary assets and liabilities by cumrency, excluding functional currency

Certan of the group’s subsidianes enter mto transactions n currenaes other than the functional curerxy of the operation Exchange
nsks relating to such operations are not matend! but are managed centrally by Group Treasury through forword exchange controcts
to buy or sell currency

(ir) Credit nsk

Cpergtionally the group has no significant concentrations of credit nsk. It has policies m ploce to ensure that sates of products are
made to austormners with an appropriate credit history, other than i Severn Trent Water Limited, whose operating licence obliges
it to supply domestic customers even in cases where bills are not pard Arnounts provided against accounts recervable and
movements on the provision dunng the year are disclosed m note 22

For financing purposes, dervative counterparties and cash transachions are bmited to high credit quality financiat institutions,
The group has polictes that lmit the armount of credit exposure to any one financial mstitution

Credit nsk analysis
At 31 March the aggregate credit inuts of authonsed counterparties and the amounts held on short term deposits were as follows
Credit lirmut Amount deposited
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
AAA ) 200 3000 01 548
Double Arange ) 1500 4500 1111 812
Single A range 4500 5250 1465 1126
6200 1,2750 2577 2486
The fair values of dervative assets analysed by credit ratings of counterpartses were s follows
Dervative assets
2012 2011
Rating fm im
Double A range 446 1009
Single A range 1130 915
1626 192 4

(i) Liquidity nsk

Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient cash balances ond the avalability of funding through an adequate
arnount of committed facilites and the ability to close out market posiions Group Treasury manages liquadity and flexibility in
funding by moritonng forecast and actud cash flows and the matunty profite of financiat assets and liabilties, and by keeping
comymutted credit lines availlable

At the balance sheet date the group had committed undrawn barrowing facilities expinng as follows

2012 2011

fm fm

Within 1 year - 417
1-2 years - 4583
2-5 years 50G0 -
After more than 5 years 1000 -

6000 5000




Severn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2012 115

Notes to the group finanaal statements

32 Financial instruments {continued)

e) Financial nsk factors (contmued)

() Liquidity nsk {continued)

Non-dervatve financiol instruments analysed by matunty date

The following tables detait the group’s rematrung contractual matunty for its non-denvative net financial knbihes The information
presented 15 based on the earbiest date on which the group can be required to pay and represents the undiscounted cash flows

including pancipal and interest.

Between Between Between Betweenten Greater
Withmone oneandtwo twoondfive fiveondten oandtwenty than twenty
year years years years years years Totad
2012 £m £m £m £m Em £m fm
Financial babidities
Overdraft 04) - - - - - {04)
Bank loans (207) (384 6) (191 4) (340 1) (339} - (9707)
Other loans {262 1) (1751) (1,908 9) (8377 (2,2248) (60227 (11,4313)
Finance legses {4 4) {25 4) (103 6} (356) (1231} - (292 1)
Other finanaial babthibies (34 9) - - - - - (34 9)
(322 5) (5851) {(2,2039) (1,2134) (2,3818) ({6,0227) (12,7294)
Financial assets
Trade recenvables 1811 - - - - - 1811
Cash and short term deposits 2951 - - - - - 2951
4762 - - - - - 4762
Net cash flow 1537 (5851) (2,2039) (1,2134) (23818) ({60227 (12,253 2)
Between Between Between Between ten Greater
Withnone oneandtwo twoandfve fveandten andiwenty thon twenty
year years years years years years Tetol
2011 £mn £m £rm £m £fm £m £m
Finonaal labilities
Bank loans (197) (26 8) {4315) {507 7) (394} - (1,025.1)
Other loans (1358) (2013) (1,264 3) (8088) (16501} (57703) (9,830.6)
Finance leases (1950 (255) (106 8) (702) (1147} (16 4) (352 6)
Other finonaal kabilibes (323) - - - - - (323)

(206 8) (2536) {1,8026) (1,3867) (1,8042)

(57867) (11,2406)

Fingnaal assets
Trade recevables 1881 - - - -

- 1881

Cash ond short term deposits 3152 - - - - - 3152
5033 - - - - - 5033

Net cash flows 2965 {2536) (1,8026) (1,3867) (1,8042) (57867 (10,7373}

Other loans include mdex-inked debt with matunties up to 55 years. The principal 1s revalued ot fixed mtervals and 1s inked to
movernents in the retail pnce ndex. Interest payments are made biannudily based on the revalued pnncipal The pnncipal
repayment equdls the revalued amount at matunty The catcutations above are based on forward mflation rates at the balance

sheet date
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32 Financial instruments (continued)
¢} Financial risk factors (continued)

() Liquidity nsk (continued)

Dervative financial instruments analysed by matunty date

The following table details the group’s iquidity analysis for its denvatve finanaal mstruments The tables are based on the

116

undiscounted net cash inflows/(outflows) on the denvative finanaal mstruments that settle on a net basts and the undiscounted
gross mflows/{(outflows) on those dervatives that require gross settlement. When the amount payable or recevable 1s not fixed, the
amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates denved from the forward
curves existing at the balance sheet date Actual amounts may be significantly different from those indicated below

Between Between Between Betweenten Greater
withn oneandtwo twoandfive fiveandten andtwenty thantwenty
one year years years years years years Total
2012 £ £m £m £m £m £m £m
Derwvative kabilites
Instruments settled net
Interest rate swaps (335) (394) (1106} (93 06) {74 9) {4 6) (356 6)
Energy swaps - {eA] (11) - - - (15)
(335) (398) (1117) (93 6) (74 9) {4 6) (3581)
Dervative assets
Instruments settled net
Interest rate swaps 38 32 34 - - - 104
Energy swaps 18 07 - - - - 25
Instruments settled gross
Cross currency swaps
- cash receipts 1259 374 8149 52 447 - 15363
- cash payments (97 8} (370) {715 4) {37) {24 8} - (8787)
337 43 1029 15 199 - 6705
Net cash flow 02 (355) (8 8) 921) {550) (4 6) 3124
Between Between Between Between ten Greater
withn oneandtwo twoandfve fiveandten andtwenty thantwenty
one yeor years years years years years Total
2011 £m £Em fm £m £m fm fm
Derrvative liabilibes
Instruments settled net
Interest rate swaps (302) (23 4) {42 8) {152) 69 OB (117 7)
(302) (23 4) {42 8) (152) 69 08 (117 7)
Denvative assets
Instruments settied net
Interest rate swaps 71 51 62 - - - 184
Energy swaps 19 91 48 - - - 158
Instruments settled gross
Cross currency swaps
- cashreceipts 483 1314 8919 24 275 - 1,1015
- cash poyments (316) (99 2) (759 8) {22) (12 2) - {9050)
257 464 1431 02 153 - 2307
Net cash flow {4 5} 230 1003 (150) 84 08 1130
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32 Finanaal instruments {continued)
f) Hedge accounting

The group uses demvative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes n exchange rates and mterest rates Hedge
accounting is adopted for such mstruments where the cntena set out n 1AS 39 are met.

(i) Far value hedges

The group raises debt denominated m currencies other than sterling ~ pnnapally yen and euro Cross currency swaps are entered
nto at the time that the debt s drawn down to swap the proceeds into sterting debt beanng mterest based on LIBOR in order to
mibigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate fluctuotions The terms of the recervable leg of the swap closely match the terms

of the underlying debt hence the swaps are expected to be effective hedges. At the year end the amounts of cross currency swaps
designated as far value hedges were as follows.

Nobtional pnncipal amount Far volue

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m fm

US dollar ] 270 270 76 66
Euro ) 114 114 78 60
Yen 984 1033 590 608
Czech krona 47.2 472 208 a7
1840 1889 95.2 981

(n} Cosh flow hedges

The group has entered into interest rote swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed end floating
interest rate amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the group to mitigate the nsk of
changing mterest rates on future cash flow exposures ansing from 1ssued vanable rate debt. The group also entered nto a number
of Interest rate controcts with future start dates dunng the AMPS regulatory peniod Such contracts enable the group to mitigate the
nsk of changing interest rates on debt which s highly probable to be ssued over the AMPS pertod to fund Severn Trent Water's
caprtal programme and have been accounted for as cash flow hedges The farr value of nterest rate swaps at the balance sheet

daote 1s deterrruned by discounting the future cash flows using the yreld curve prevailing at the balance sheet date and the credit rsk
inherent i the contract.

The interest rate swaps prirnarily settle net on a biannual basis The floating rate on the mterest rate swaps s six months LIBOR
Details of nterest rate swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summansed below

Averoge Notonal

controct fixed prnapal
interest rate amount Fair value
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 01
Penod to motunty % % £m £m £m £m
Less than 10 years ] - - - - - -
10-20 years ) 507% 507% _(4923) (493 0) (91 6) (17 8)
More than 20 years - - - - - -
507% 507% (492 3) (493 0) {91 6) {17 8)

The group has entered into a senes of energy swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and
market pnces of electnaty at six-monthly mtervals up to March 2015
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32 Fnancial instruments (continued)

f} Hedge accounting {continued)
() Cash flow hedges {continued)
Detaits of energy swops that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summansed below
Notonat
Averoge controcted
controct pnce amount Far value
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Perad to maturity £MWh £/MWh MWh MWh £m £m
Less than 1 year ) 488 420 725,088 131,040 18 18
1-2 years 533 451 550,368 428,064 03 62
2-5 years ] 629 547 174,720 1,087,632 (10) 67
522 473 1450176 1,646,736 11 147
Chonges in the arnounts deferred in equity dunng the penod reloting to cash flow hedges were os follows.
2012 2011
£m fm
Far value gans/{losses) deferred In equity at the start of the penod 184 (21)
Farr vatue (losses)/gamns recognised i equity in the period 865) 160
Far value losses transferred to finance costs i the penod 37 45
Fair value (losses)/gains deferred in equity ot the end of the penod {64 4) 184

(ni} Interest rate swaps not hedge occounted

The group has a number of Interest rate swaps which are not accounted for as cash flow hedges. Contracts where the group pays

fixed rate interest are summansed below

Average contract fixed
mnterestrote  Nobional pancipat armount Forr value
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Peniod to rmatunty % % £m £m fm £m
Less than 1 year ) - - - - - -
1-2 years . - - - - - -
2-5 years ] 632 632 2250 2250 {379) (330
5-10 years _ - - - - - -
10-20 years ) 541 541 3136 2373 (114 6) {412)
20-30 years 510 522 1250 2000 (419) (304)
561 561 6636 662 3 (194 &) (104 6)
Contracts where the group recenves fixed interest are summuarised below
Average controct fixed
mterestrote  Nobonal prncipal armount Forr value
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 20m
Penod to maturty % % £m £m £m £m
Less than 1 year i ) - - - - - -
1-2 years - - - - - -
2-5 years 518 518 2000 2000 237 173
5-10years ) - - - - - -
10-20 years ] - - - - - -
20-30 years - - - - - -
518 518 2000 2000 23.7 173
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33 Share based payments

The group operates a number of share based remuneration schemes for employees. Dunng the penod, the group recogrused totol
expenses of £4 1 milbon (2011 £4 6 milion} related to equity settled share based payment transoctions.

The weighted average share price dunng the penod was £1500 (2011 £13 40)

At 31 March 2012, there were no options exercisable under any of the share based remuneration schernes (2011 22,984 options tn
the Unapproved Share Cption Scheme)

a) Long Term Incentive Plans (L¥IPs)

Under the LTIPs conditional awards of shares may be made to executive directors and serior staff Awards are subject to
perforrmance condrtions and continued employment throughout the vesting penod  Awards have been made on different bases to
Severn Trent Pic and Severn Trent Water employees {the LTIP) and to Severn Trent Serwices employees (the Services LTIP)

(i} Awards outstanding

Awards made under the LTIP

In July 2011 awards over 112,446 shares (2011 141,111 shares) with a farr value of £12 16 (2011 £7 91) were mode to 18
employees (2011 20 employees) under the LTIP These awards are subject to Severn Trent Water's achievement of Return on
Regulated Capital Viatue in excess of the level included in the Severn Trent Water AMPS business plan. The LTIP awards granted in
July 2010 are subject to total shareholder return {TSR) over three years relotive to the companies ranked 51-150 by market
capttalisation in the FTSE index (excluding mvestment trusts) It has been assumed that performance against the LTIP non-market
conditions will be 100%) (2011 100%)

Awards made under the Services LTIP

In July 2011 awaords over 38,493 shares with a farr value of £12 16 were made to 10 employees under the Services LTIP

These awards are subject to achievernent of turnover and profit targets in the year ending 31 March 2014 1t has been assurmed
that performance against the 2011 Services LTIP non-market conditions will be 75%.

The awards granted in july 2008 vest in three equal tranches which are subject to ackuevernent of turover and profit targets m the

years ending 31 March 2011, 2012 and 2013 It has been assumed that performance agamnst the 2008 Services LTIP nor-rmarket
condttions will be 0% (2011 0 3%)

Details of changes i the number of awards outstanding dunng the year are set out below

Nurnber of owards

LTIP _Senvces LTIP

Outstanding at 1 April 2010 393,483 110,440
Granted during the year 141,111 -
Vested dunng the year (71,849) -

Forfetted dunng the year ) (10671 (9,053)
Lapsed dunng the year (49,373) -
Outstanding at 1 April 2011 _ 602,701 101,387
Granted dunng the year o 112,446 38493
Vested dunng the year ) - -
Forferted during the year | (14946)  (10,329)
Lopsed during the year (116,714)  (34,607)

Outstanding at 31 March 2012 383,487 94,944
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33 Share based payments {continued)
Detatts of LTIP and Services LTIP owards outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Numnber of gwards
Normal date

Date of grant of vesting 2012 2011
July 2008 2011 - 151,322
Rty 2008 2012 33671 33671
July 2008 2013 31,145 33,109
July 2009 2012 151,786 151,786
July 2010 2013 127,727 134,200
July 2011 2014 134,102 -

478,431 504,088

(i Faw value
The share price at the grant date was £13 98 (2011 £12 28} The vesting penod commences before the grant date Performance in
the vesting period pricr to the grant date 1s taken into account in determining the fair value of the award

The far value of the LTIP awards made during the year was calculated using the Black-Schotes method using the principal
assumptions set out below

Assurmptions 2012
Expected volatiity - Severn Trent Plc i 27%
Expected dwidend yield 47%
Risk free rate 157%

Expected volatility 1s based on hustorical weekly volatiity over a three year penod Weekly volatility in the observed data was
between 25% and 31%

The nisk free rate 1s denved from yields at the grant date of gilts of sirmilor duration to the LTIP awards
The dvidend yield s calculated using the expected dmdend for the year dvided by the share prce at the date of grant.

The far value of the LTIP owards made dunng the previous year was calculated using the Monte Carlo method using the principal
assumptions set out below

Assumpbions 2011
Expected volatility

Severn Trent Plc 27%
Comparator group 47%
Correlation between Severn Trent Pic and comparator group 32%

Expected volatility s based on historical weekly volatility over a three year penod Weeldy volatiity i the observed dota was
between 25% and 31%.

For the July 2010 LTIP award the comparatar group 1s the group of cornparnies ranked 51-150 in the FTSE index exduding
mvestment trusts

The volatdity of the comparator companies, the comrelation between Severn Trent Plc and the comparator companies, and
performance over the porbon of the performance penod that hod elapsed at the date of grant was taken into account when
modelling the TSR performance condition

Dmdends ‘paid’ on shares dunng the vesting penod are accumulated duning the vesting penod and released subject to achievernent
of the performance condition in the same manner as the underlying shares As o result a dmdend yetd assumgption s not required

Detatls of the bass of the LTIP schermes are set out m the remuneration report on page 59 and 60
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33 Share based payments {continued)

b} Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board may grant the nght to purchase ordinary shares m the comparny to those
employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Sove As You Eamn contract for a penod of three or five years.

{i) Options outstanding

The number of employees entenng into Sharesave contract and the number of options granted dunng the year were as follows.

2012 2011

3 yeor S year 3year S year

scheme scheme scheme scheme

Number of employees ) 1,610 363 1,073 448

Number of options granted 440930 127,631 223291 142,981
Details of changes n the nurmber of options outstanding dunng the year are set out below

Werghted

Number of averoge
share oplicns  exercse price

nummuﬁmm;ﬁndmma' SUBUIDYS PoUDUY dnes aunnanog’ mm‘m

Qutstanding at 1 April 2010 3,637,068 899
Gronted dunng the year 366,272 1,137p
Forferted dunng the year (146,468) 895p
Cancelled dunng the year (92,030 875p
Exercised dunng the year {550,525) 841p
Lapsed durnng the year (86,132)  1,062p
Outstanding at 1 Aprit 2011 3,128,185 904p
Granted during the year " 568,561 1,177p
Forfeited dunng the year {60,732 903p
Cancelled dunng the year {51,578) 947p
Exercised duning the year i (442,593) 928p
Lapsed dunng the year (57,357) 913p
Outstanding at 31 March 2012 3,084,486 950p g
Sharesave options outstanding at 31 March were as follows g
Nurmber of share options
Date of gront Nommal date of exerese  Opion pce 2012 2011
Jarwary 2004 ) 2011 592p - 45,820
January 2005 2012 759p 52912 54,324
January 2006 2011 0r 2013 823p 20468 21290
January 2007 2012 or 2014 1,172p 78,280 93,243
Jarwary 2008 2011 0r 2013 1,221p 78488 218,048
January 2009 2012 or 2014 862p 1,141,447 1,247,781
Jarwory 2010 20130r2015  806p 810413 890,670
January 2011 2014 or 2016 1,137p 334910 365,358
Jarwary 2012 2015 0r 2017 1,177p 567,568 -
3,084,486 3,128,185
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33 Share based payments {continued)

b} Employee Sharesave Scheme {continued)

(n) Fair value

The fair value of the Sharesave options granted dunng the year was caloulated using the Black Scholes model. The prinapal
assumptions were gs follows

2012 2011

3 year 5 yeor 3 year S year

Assumptions scheme scheme scherme scheme
Expected volatility 27% 27% 27% 27%
Expected dmdend yield 4 6% 4 6% 4 4% 4 4%
Risk free rate 053% 175% 163% 224%
Fair value per share 320p 339 348p 35%9p

Expected volatility s based on histoncol weekly volatility over a three year penod Weekly volatility in the observed dato was
between 25% and 31% The nsk free rate s denved from yields ot the grant date of gilts of smitar duration to the Sharesave
contracts The dwvidend yield 1s calculated using the expected dvidend for the year dvided by the share pnce at the date of grant.

The following data was used in calculating the far value of the Sharesave options

2012 2011

3 year 5 yeor 3 year 5 yeor

scheme scherme scherme scheme

Share pnce at grant date 1,520p 1,520p 1,486p 1,486p
Vesting period (years) 3 5 3 5
Option Life (years) 35 55 35 55

¢) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

Under the SIP the board may grant share awards to employees of group cormpanies During the year the board has announced that
it will make awards under the SIP based on performance ogamst Severn Trent Water's targets for its Key Performance Indicators.
Ehgible employees will be entitled to shares to a maximum value of £750 It s expected that these owards will be made in August
2012 SIP shares vest with the employee on the date of grant.

d) Unapproved Share Options Scheme

The board has granted options to purchase ordinary shares in the company to a number of executives under an unapproved share
option schemme No awards have been made under this scheme since July 2003

Details of movernents in the share awards outstanding dunng the year were as follows.

Werghted
Number of averoge
share options  exercise pnce

Qutstanding at 1 April 2010 35,259 728p
Exerased dunng the yeor (3,679) 720p
Lapsed during the year {8,596) 729p
QOutstanding at 1 Apnl 2011 22,984 729p
Exerased duning the year (22,984) 729p
Outstandng at 31 March 2012 - -

Options outstonding under this scheme ot 31 March were as follows.
Nurmber of shares

Normal dote

Dateofgrant  of exercise  Option pnce 2012 2011
June 2001 2004-2011 738p - 11,844
June 2002 2005-2012 720p - 11,140

- 22,584
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33 Share based payments (continued)

¢) Share Matching Plan (SMP)

Under the Share Matching Plen members of STEC recerve matching share awards over those shares which have been acquired
under the deferred share component of the annual bonus scheme Matching shares may be owarded at a maximum mto of one

matching share for every one deferred share and are subject to a three yeor vesting penod Dunng the year matching shares were
awarded ataratioof 05to 1

Matching shares are subject to total sharehotder retum over three years measured relative to the comparues ranked 51-150
by market capttalisation in the FTSE Index (excluding investment trusts) Thus replicates the LTIP performance condition for the
July 2010 award

The number of shares subject to an award will increase to reflect dwvidends paid through the performance peniod on the basis of
such notional dwidends being reinvested at the then prevailing share pnice Awards will normally vest as soon os the Rermuneration
Cormmuttee deterrmines that the performance conditions have been met prowded that the participant remains in employrent at
the end of the perforrnance penod

(i) Awards outstanding

Bunng the year 19,072 (2011 25,187) matching shares with a far value of £8 84 (2011 £6 79) were owarded to 11 employees
(2011 11)

Nurmber of

awards

Outstanding at 1 April 2010 -
Granted dunng the year 25,187
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2011 25,187
Granted dunng the year 15,072
Cancelled dunng the year ) {1,900)
Vested duning the yeer {309)
Outstanding at 31 March 2012 41,450

Details of share matching owards outstanding at 31 March were os follows
Number of awards
Normmoal date

Daote of gront of vesting 2012 2011
May 2010 June 2013 22,378 25,187
May 2011 May 2014 19,072 -

41450 25187

(i Far value

The farr value of the share matching awards rmade dunng the year was calculated using the Monte Carlo method using the prinapal
assurmptions set out below

Assumphons 2012 2011
Expected volatility

Sevem Trent group 26% 27%
Comparator group 41% 46%
Correlation between Severn Trent Plc and comparator group n/a 33%

Share pnce volatility s based on observations over a hustoncal pened prior to the date of grant, commensurate to the expected term
of the performance penod

The cormnparator group 1s the companies ranked 51-150 in the FTSE Index
The share price at the grant date was £15 02 (2011 £11 26)

Dridends paid on the shares dunng the vesting penod are accumulated dunng the vesting penod ond reteased subject to the
achievernent of the performance condition, m the sarme manner as the urderiying shares. As a result a dvidend yield assumption
15 not required
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34 Cash flow stotement
a) Reconciliation of opergting profit to operating cash flows

124

2012

2011

£m fm
Profit before mterest and tax 4698 4977
Depreaation of property, plant and equiprment 2560 2515
Amortisation of intangible assets i 308 254
Exceptional mpairment 229 -
Pension service cost 226 227
Curtailment gain (231} -
Pension contributions (535) (400)
Share based payments charge 41 46
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and ntangtble assets (4 4) (26}
Deferred income moverment (87 (84}
Provisions charged to the income statement 168 68
Utiisation of provisions for habilities and charges (111 {190)
Increase in inventory (74) (05}
Decrease/(increase) in amounts recenvable 61 (75)
Increase in amounts payable 50 223
Cash generated from operations 7259 7530
Tax pad (720) (324)
Net cash generated from operating actvities 6539 7206
b) Non-cash transactions
No additrons to property, plant and equipment duning the year were financed by new finance leases (2011 nil)
) Exceptional cash flows
The fallowing cash flows arose from tems dassified as exceptional in the ncome statement.
2012 2011
£m £m
Restructunng costs (14 4) (27 6}
Regulatory matters 39 (38)
Finance costs (165) -
{34 B) (314)
d) Reconciliation of movermnent in cash and cash equmvalents to movement in net debt
Asat RP1 uplift on Other Asat
1 Aprl Farvolue  ndex-nked Foegn  noncash 31 March
2011 Coshfiow odjustments debt  exchange moverments 2012
fm £m fm fm frn fm £m
Cashond cosh equivalents 3152 (199} - - 02) - 2951
Bank overdrafts - (04) - - - - {04)
Net cash and cash equivalents 3152 (203) - - (02) - 2947
Bank loans (846 8). 19 - {76) - - {8525)
Other loans (3,2309)  (949) 19 46 0) 415 11 (3,3269)
Finance leases {266 7) 476 - - - 01 (2190
Cross currency swaps 1604 - (266) - - 21 1359
Net debt (3,868 8) (65 3) (24 7) (53 6) 413 33  (3,9678)
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35 Contingent Liobilities
a) Bonds and guarantees

Group undertakings have entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business. No liability 15 expected to anse in
respect of esther bonds or guarantees.

The group hos given certain guarantees in respect of the borrowings of its assooate, Senvizio Idnco Integrato S cp.a. The guarantees
are imited to €11 2 millbon (2011 €11 2 million} The group does not expect any liobiltties that are not prowided for in these financiol
staternents to onse from these amangements.

b) Disposal of subsidianes

The group has given certain guarantees and indemnibies in relation to disposals of businesses

Followang a hearing m the Commeraal Court in Belgrurm in February 2010 in relation to a daim from Veolia Proprete SA. (Veola')
ansing from the sate of Biffa Belgium to Veolia in 2006, the Court rendered yudgment in favour of the group on 1 Apnl 2010 and
dedlared alt of Veoha's claims to be unfounded Veolia has filed an appeal against this decision, however, the group considers that
Veolio's case remains unfounded and no provision has been recorded m respect of this matter

The group 1s not aware of any cther hiabiity that 1s fikely to result from these guarantees and indemnities that hos not been provided
for in these financial statements

) Regulatory matters

On 17 December 2010 Severn Trent Plc, Severn Trent Water lmited and Severn Trent Laboratones Lirruted recenved a request from
Ofwat to provide certan mformnation under the Cornpetition Act in connection with Seven Trent Loboratones Limited's contracts

with Severmn Trent Water Limited and certain other water companies The informnation requested has subsequently been provided
to Ofwat.

At this stage it 1s not posstble to determine what, if any, fiability will arise as a result of this request.

36 Service concession arrangements

The group’s contract to provide water and woste water services to the Mirustry of Defence (MoD) 1s ¢ service concession
arrangement under the defirition set out i IFRIC 12 The group acts as the service provider under the MoD Project Aquatrine

Package C - a 25 year contract spanning 1,523 sites across England coverng the Eastern sea border and frorm Lancashwre in the
North West to West Sussex on the South Coost.

Under the contract the group maintains and upgrades the MoD nfrostructure assets and prowides operating services for water
and woste water The maintenance and upgrade services are charged at an agreed rate, adjusted for nflotion, that s egreed
mn the contract. The operating services are charged under an agreed volumetnc tanff

Since the group has an unconditional nght to recenve cash in exchange for the mantenance and upgrade services, the amounts

recenvable are recogrused as a finanaal asset withn prepayrments and accrued mcome At 31 March 2012 the amount recevable
were £25 5 millon (2011 £27 1 million)

There have been no significant changes to the arrangement during the year
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37 Financial and other commitments
a) Investment expenditure commitments

2012 2011
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided in the financiol statements 1598 917

In eddiion to these contractual commmitments, Severn Trent Water Limited has tonger term expendrture plans which indude
investrments to achieve improvernents in performance mandated by the Director Generol of Water Services (Ofwat) and to provide
for growth in demand for water and sewerage services

b) Leasing commitrments

At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding commitments for future mimimum operating lease payments under
non-cancellable opercting leases, which fall due as follows

2012 2011

fm fm

Within 1 year ) 47 44
2-5 years 120 112
After more than 5 years 81 73
248 229

Operabing lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties, plant and equipment

38 Post balance sheet events

Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dvidend of 42 06 pence per share and a special dvdend
of 63 00 pence per share Further details of this are shown m note 14

39 Related party transactions

Transactions between the company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are
not Included n this note Transactions between the group and its associates ond joint ventures are disdosed betow

Trading transactions

Amounts due from related Amounts due to related

Scle of goods Purchase of goods porties parties

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

fm £m fm £m fm fm £m £m

Sit 56 69 - - 161 185 - -
Jockson Water Partnershup - 29 - - - - - -
56 98 - - 161 185 - -

The related parties are assoaates and joint ventures 1n which the group has a parbcipating nterest,
Rernuneration of key management personnel
Key munagement personnel compnse the members of STEC dunng the year

The remuneration of the directors is included within the amounts disdlosed below Further nformation about the remuneration of
indvidual directors 1s provided in the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 64 to 68

2012 2011

£m £m

Short term employee benefits 51 48
Post employment benefits ] 05 05
Termination benefits ) - 03
Share based payments 08 06

64 62
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40 Principal subsidiary undertakings and their directors
Detalls of the principol operating subsidianes as at 29 May 2012
are given below A complete list of subsidiary undertakings 15
avanable on request to the company and will be filed with the
next Annual Return

Severn Trent Water

Severn Trent Water Lirnited

2 St John's Street, Coventry CV1 21.Z
Telephone 02477 715000
Directors

A JDuff MJLomb

A JBallance M JE McKeon

B Bulkin Baroness Noakes
R H Davey AP Smith

G Fryett APWray

M J Kane

Severn Trent Services

Severn Trant Services Inc

Sutte 300, 580 Virginia Drive,

Ft Washungton, Pennsylvanta 19034, USA

Telephone 001 215 646 9201

(Incorporated and operational in the United States of Arerica)

Directors

S Bouvier M JKane

Severn Trent Environmental Services Inc

Park 10, 16337 Pork Row

Houston, Texas 77084, USA

Telephone 001 281 578 4200

{Incorporated and operational in the United States of Amencay

Directors
S Bouvier
M J Kane

K JKelly

Severn Trent Services Limited

Artey Drive, Birch Coppice Business Park
Cordon, Tamworth B78 15A
Telephore 01827 266 000

Directors
M JKane
B Kennedy

R C McPheely
G P Tyler

Severn Trent Water Punfication Inc

3000 Advance Lane,

Colmar, Pennsylvaria 18915, USA

Telephone 001 215997 4000

{Incorporated and operattonal in the United States of Amenca)

Directors
S Bouwvier
M JKone

K JKelly

Severn Trent Services International Lirmited
2308 Coventry Road, Birmingham B26 32
Telephone 0121 722 6000

Directors

B Kennedy GPTyler
R C McPheely

C2C Services Limited

{80% owned)

2308 Coventry Road, Brmingham B26 372
Telephcne 0121 722 6000

Directors

D Godfrey R J Phillips

A JHandford W G Weatherdon
RGPiper E A Wilson

Severn Trent Laboratories Limited

STL Busingss Centre, Tornngton Avenue
Coventry (V4 9GU

Telephone 024 764 21213

Directors
B Kennedy
R C McPheely

Other Businesses

GPTyler

Derwent Insurance Limited

6A Queensway, PO Box 64, Gibraltar

Telephone 00 350 200 45502

(Insurance company - incorporated and operational
In Gibrottar)

Directors
JP JDavies A Richrmond
N Feetham F White

Severn Trent Luxembourg Overseas Holdings Sarl
1A rue Thomas Edison L-1445 Strassen, Luxembourg
(Financa company - registered and operational in Luxernbourg)

Managers

S Bouwier M JE McKeon
F Gerardy JPrendergast
B Kennedy D Robyns

Country of incorporation and main operation 1s Great Britain and
regtstration 1s in England ond Wales unless otherwise stated

All subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned unless otherwise
indicated All sharehotdings are in ordinary shares

All subsidiary urdertakings have been included in the
consolidation
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Independent auditor’s report to the

members of Severn Trent Plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of
Sevemn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2012 which
comprise the company balance sheet, the company statement
of total recognised gans and losses, and the related notes 1 to
17 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
therr preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other thon the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibility
statemnent, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the parent company financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true ond far view Our responsibility is
to audit and express an opinion on the parent company
finanaal statements in accordance with applicable law and
Intermational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to cornply with the Auditing Practices
Board'’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An oudtt involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial staterments sufficient to give
reasoncble assurance that the finanaial statements are free
from matenal misstaterment, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies
are gppropnate to the parent company’s arcumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the directors, and the overalt presentation of the financio!
staterments [n addition, we read all the financial and
non-finonaal nforrmation in the annual report to identify
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financiol statements
If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstaterments
or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report
Opinion on financial statements
In our optruon the parent company financial statements
+ give a true and fair view of the state of the parent company’s
affairs as at 31 March 2012,
+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

« the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with Companies
Act 2006, and

+ the information given in the Directors' report for the financial
year for which the financal statements are prepared is
consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report n respect of the foliowing matters
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, n
our opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or retumns adequate for cur audit hove not
been receved from branches not visited by us, or

+ the parent company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in
agreerment with the accounting records and returns, or

+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by low
are not made, or

+ we have not receved all the Informatien and explangtions we
require for our audit,

Other matter

We have reported separately on the group financial statements
of Sevem Trent Pic for the year ended 31 March 2012

CarlD Hughes (Senjohstatutory OUdItOI')
for and on behalf ofDdloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

London, UK
29 May 2012
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Signed on behalf of the board who approved the accounts on 29 May 2012

Company balance sheet
At 31 March 2012
2012 2011
Mote £m £m
Non-current assets ) §
Tangible fixed assets 2 02 02 w
Investments in subsidianes 3 36380 3,5501 §
Dervative finanaal instruments 208 275
3,659.0 35778 g
Current assets —
Debtors 4 443 162
Denvatve financial instruments 67 -
Cash at bank and m hand 2346 2232 n
2856 2394 g
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 5 (1810) (8272} 6
Net current assets/(iabilities) 1046 {587 8) g
Total assets less current labilties 3,763 6 29900
Creditors. amounts falling due after more than one year 6 (§6 9} (167 7}
Net ossets 3,6667 2,8223 5
Capitat and reserves 4
Called up share capital 8 2326 2322
Share prerrium account 9 8338 BoO g
Other reserves 9 1524 1506 2
Retained earnings 9 31979 23595 E
Total capital and reserves 9 3,6667 28223 =2
5.

Andrew Duff Michael McKeon
Charman Finance Director

Cornparry nurnber 2366619

Comparely statement of total recognised gains and losses
31 March 2012

For the year end

2012

2011

£m £m
Transfers to the profit and loss account on cash flow hedges 23 27
Deferred tax on transfers to the profit and loss occount 06) 07
17 20
Profit for the penod 9933 2645
Total recogrused gamns and losses for the penod 9950 2665

‘ LONDLLLIAJ S0
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Notes to the company financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

1 Accounting policies
a) Basis of accounting

The finanad statements have been prepared under the
histonical cost convention as modified by the revatugtion of
financial assets and labilities (including denvative instruments)
at far value through profit or loss and n accordance with
applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and cormply
with the requirements of the United Kingdom Companies Act
2006 (the Act)

Severn Trent Plc 1s a partner in Severn Trent Limited Partnership
{the partnership’), which is registered in Scotlond As the
partnership is ncluded in the Severn Trent Plc consolidated
accounts, the company has taken advantage of the exemption
conferred by Regulation 7 of The Partnershup (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 from the requirernents of Requtations 4 to 6
b) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are induded at cost less accurmulated
depreciation Freehold tand 5 not depreciated Other assets
are depreciated on a straight line basis over ther estmated
economuc lives, which are pnnapally as follows.

Years
Buildings 30-60
Computers ond software 2-15

¢} Impairment of fixed assets and investments

Impairrments of fixed assets and investments are calcutated as
the difference between the camying values of net ossets of
ncorne generating uruts, nduding where appropnate
investments and goodwitl, and their recoverable amounts.
Recoverable armount 1s defined as the higher of net realisable
value or estimoted volue n use at the date the impairment
review Is undertaken Net realisable value represents the net
amount that can be generated through sale of assets Value n
use represents the present value of expected future cosh flows,
discounted on ¢ pre-tax basis using the estimated cost of
caprtal of the mcome generating unit. Impairment reviews are
camed out f there 1s some iIndication that en impaiment may
hove occurred, or where otherwise required, to ensure that
goodwill and fixed assets are not carned above their estmated
recaverable amounts. Imparments are recogrused i the profit
and loss account.

d} Financal instruments
(1} Financigl assets
Finanaal assets are dassified into the following categones

« ot far value through profit or loss,

+ hetd to matunty mvestments,

= gvailable for sate financial assets, and
» loans ond recenvables.

Financiaf assets ot far value through profit or loss

A finanoal asset 1s dassified at farr value through profit or loss

if it 1s so designated or f it s dassified as ‘held for trading'
Denvative financio! assets that are not designated and effectve
as hedging instrurnents are required to be ctassified as *held for
trading’ by FRS26 However, the group’s Treasury Policy,
described in the Fingnaal review on page 35, 1s that the group
does not hold or issue denvative financial nstrurnents for
trading Finanaal assets ot fair value through profit or loss

are stated at far value, with any gains or losses ansing on
rermegsurernent beng recogrsed m the profit and koss account.
Far vatue 1s determined using the methodotogy descnbed in
nate 32 to the group’s finanaol staterments.

Held to matunity wmvestrnents

Where the company has the ability and ntent to hold an
investrment to maturty the financial asset 1s classified as held to
matunty Such financial assets are measured at amortised cost
using the effectve interest rate method, with any gains or
losses being recogrused i the the profit ond loss account.

Available for sale financial assets

After inttial recogrition ot cost (being the far value of the
considerction paid), mvestments which are classified as
available for sale are measured at far value, with gamns or losses
recogrised in equity When on available for sale investment s
disposed of or imparred, the gain or loss previously recogrused m
equity 1s taken to the profit and loss account. Where there s no
octive market in the mvestments and the fair value cannot be
measured religbly, the nvestrents are held at cost.

Loans and recevables

Trade recenvables, loans and other recevables that have fixed or
deterrmincble payrments and that are not quoted o an actve
rmarket are dassified as toans and recevables. Such assets are
megasured gt fair value on matial recognition and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
nterest rate method unless there is objective evdence that an
asset 1s impaired, when it 1s witten down to its recoverable
amount ond the rrecoverable amount rs recogrused os an

expense
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Notes to the company finanaal statements

1 Accounting policies (continued)

d) Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Financial lichilibies

Finanaal babilies are dassiied as ether

- finanaiol labilshes at far value through profit or loss, or
« other finanaal rabilties,

Financial habilities ot far wvalue through profit or loss

A finanaial bobility 1s dassified at far value through profit or loss
if t 15 so designated or if it 1s classified as ‘held for trading’
Denvatve finanaidl habilities that are not designated and
effectve as hedging instruments are required to be dassified as
‘held for trading’ by FRS26 However, the group’s Treasury Polcy,
described in the Financal review on page 35, 1s that the group
does not hold or issue dervative finanaial instruments for
trading Financial kabidies at farr value through profit or loss are
stated at far value, with arty gains or losses ansing on
remeasurermnent bemng recogrised in the profit and loss account.
Far votue 1s deterrruned using the methodotogy descrnbed m
note 32 in the group financial statements

Other financral ligbilities

Other financial kabilitses, including bomowangs, are mitially
recogrused ot fair value less transaction costs. After initiol
recogrition, other finoncal liabilibes are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

{ii) Hedge accounting

The company uses dervative finanoiat instruments such as
cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest
rate swaps to hedge ds nsks assoaated with foreign curency
and interest rate fluctuations. Such denvative nstruments are
recogrused and measured in accordance with the accounting
polictes described above

At the inception of the hedge relationship the company
docurmnents

» the relabonship between the hedging mstrument and the
hedged rtemn,

= ts sk management objectives and strategy for undertaking
hedge transactions, and

+ whether the hedging instrument 1s hughly effective n
offsetting changes in fair volues or cash flows (as appropnate)
of the hedged itemn.

The company contmues to test and document the effectiveness
of the hedge on an ongoing basis.

Hedge accounting s discortinued when the hedging
mstrurnent expires, is sold, termmunated or exeraised, or no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

Where a loan or borrowing 15 in o fair value hedging retationship
it 1s rereasured for changes in farr vatue of the hedged nsk at
the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recognised in
the profit and loss account.

When hedge accounting is discontinued the far value
adjustrment to the carmying amount of the hedged tem ansing
from the hedged nsk s amortised to the profit and loss account
from that date
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Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging mstrument that s
determined to be an effective hedge 1s recogrised directly in
equity and the meffective parbion in the profit and toss account.
The gains or losses deferred in equity i this way are recycled
through the profit and loss account in the same pentod In which
the hedged underlying transaction or firm commitment 1
recogrused m the profit and loss eccount.

When hedge accounting 1s discontinued any cumudative
gam or loss on the hedging nstrurment recogrised n equity
15 kept in equity until the forecast transaction occurs, or
transferred to the profit and loss account if the forecast
transaction s no longer expected to occur

Hedges of net imvestmments in foreign operations

Where forward currency contracts and foreign currency
borrowings are used to hedge net investments in foreign
aurrency denorminated operations, to the extent that they
are designated and effective as net Investment hedges,
they are motched in equity against changes in value of the
related assets. Any ineffectiveness is taken to the profit and
loss account.

(iv) Embedded dervatives

Dervatves embedded in other finanaal instruments or other
host contracts are treated as separate dervatives when their
nsks and charactenstics are nat dosely reloted to those of the
host contract and the host contract is not carned at far vatue,
with gains and losses reported in the profit and loss account.
e) Investments

Investments in subsiciary undertokings are held at

hestoncat cost.

After invtial recogrition at cost (bemng the for value of the
consideration paid), mvestments which are dlossified os held
for trading or available for sale are measured at far value,

with gains or losses recognised in profit and loss or equity
respectively When an avaitable for sale nvestment s disposed
of or mparred, the gain or loss previously recognised n
reserves 15 taken to the profit and loss account.

f) Share based payments

The company operates a nurnber of equity settled share based
compensation ptans for emnployees The far value of the
employee services recerved In exchange for the grant is
recogrused as an expense over the vesting penod of the grant.

The far value of ernployee services 1s deterrmined by reference
to the farr value of the awuards granted colculated using a
priang model, exduding the smpact of any nor-market
conditions. The number of owards expected to vest takes into
account non-market vesting conditons including, where
approprate, continuing employment by the group The charge
15 adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest as a result of faling
to meet a non-market based condition.

g) Cosh flow statement

The company has taken edvantage of the exemption under
Finanaal Reporting Statement 1 ‘Cash flow statements” and
not produced a cash flow statement.
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Notes to the company financial statements

1 Accounting policies (continued)
h) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation s fully prowided for in respect of imimg
differences between the treatment of certain tems for taxation
and occounting purposes only to the extent that the company
has an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a nght to pay
less tax in the future Deferred tax assets are only recogrysed to
the extent that taxable profits are expected to anse inthe
future Matenal deferred taxation balances ansing are
discounted by applying an appropnate nsk free discount rate

132

i) Pensions

The company partiaipates in the group's defined benefit and
defined contnbution pension schermes, details of which are

set out in note 27 to the group finanaal statements.

However, the cornpany is currently unable to identify ts share
of assets and labilities relatmg to the defined benefit schernes.
The pension costs charged in the profit and loss account are
the contnbutions payable to the scheme in respect of the
accounting penod in respect of the defined benefit and defined
contnbution schemes

2 Tangible fixed assets
Lond and Plant and
bufidings  egupment Totat
£m £m £m
Cost
Asat 1 April 2011 07 06 13
Additions - 02 02
As at 31 March 2012 07 08 15
Deprecation
Asat 1 Apnl 2011 07 (04 11)
Charge for the year - ©2) (02)
As at 31 March 2012 ©7) (06} (13)
Net book value
As at 31 March 2012 - 02 02
As at 31 March 2011 - 02 02
3 Investments
Subsidary undertakings
Shores Loans Total
£m fm £m
Asat 1 Apnl 2011 3,2925 2576 35501
Addhonsfloans advanced 148 812 960
Provisions - (81} {81)
As at 31 March 2012 3,307 3 3307 3,6380

Details of principal subsidianes of the company are gven in note 40 of the group financial statements.

4 Debtors
2012 2011
£m Em
Amounts owed by group undertakings 344 54
Deferred tax 79 92
Other debtors i 03 02
Prepayments and accrued income 17 14

443 162
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Notes to the company finanaal statements

5 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2012

2011

£m £m
Bark overdrafts i ) (310 %9)
Other loans (22 8) -
Borrowings {538) 49
Dervative finonaal instruments 04 -
Trode creditors ) . 04 02
Armounts due to group undertakings {(1201) (8083)
Other creditors (59 (86)
Taxation and social secunty - ) - (]
Accrued expenses (04) (45)
{1810) {827 2)
6 Creditors. amounts falling due ofter more than one year
2012 2011
fm fm
Borrowings - other loans (note 7) (590) (81 8)
Amounts due to group undertakings - (52 8)
Dervative financial instruments (379) (331)
{96 9) (167 7)
7 Borrowings
2012 2011
£m £m
Borrowings due within one year 538 49
Borrowings due after more than one year
Between one and two years ] - 229
Between two and five years 590 589
After mare than five years - -
Total borrowings due after one year 590 818
1128 867
Borrowings analysed by interest rate after taking account of nterest rate swaps entered into by the company were
Nor-nterest
beanng Floating Fixed
tabiliies rate rate Total
2012 £m £m £m £m
Bark loans and overdrofts ~ - 310 - 310
Other loons - 818 - 818
Other finanaal babiles 04 - - 04
] ] ] 04 1128 - 1132
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched against specific debt nstrurments - (2250) 2250 -
04 (112 2) 2250 1132
Weighted average interest rate _ i i _632% B
Weghted average penod for which interest s fixed (years) 35
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7 Borrowtngs {continued)
Non-nterest
beanng Floating Fixed

babilrtes rate rate Total
2011 £m £m £m frm
Bank loans and overdrafts - 49 - 49
Other loans - 818 - 818
Other financiol labilities - - - -
- 867 - 867
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched against specific debt instruments - {(2250) 2250 -
- (138 3) 2250 867

Weighted average interest rate
Weighted average penod for which interest s fixed {years)

632%
45

The cornpany’s borrowings are denorrinated in sterting, after taking account of cross currency swaps the compaony has entered into
There 1s no significant difference between the book value and the far value of the company’s borrowings. Far values are based on
the expected future cash flows discounted using zero coupon forward interest rates related to the expected tming of payments

A new five year £500 miltron Revolving Credit Facility was agreed in October 2011 for Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water

Lirmited Ths replaced the existing £500 rrufion Revotving Credit Facility Severn Trent Pic has access to £200 rmill:on of ths faclity
At the balance sheet date the company hod commutted undrawn borrowing faciliies expinng as foltows.

2012

2011

fm £m
Within 1 year - 417
1-2 years - 4583
2-5 years 2000 -
After more than 5 years - -
2000 5000
8 Share capital
2012 2011
fm f£m
Totdl sssued and fully pad share capital
237,608,111 ordinary shares of 3717/,5p (2011 237,142,534) 2326 2322
Changes in share capital were as follows
Number f£m
Ordinary shares of 97'7/,4p
At 1 April 2011 237,142,534 2322
Shares ssued under the group’s Employee Sharesave Scheme 442,593 04
Shares issued under the group’s Share Option Scherne 22,984 -
At 31 March 2012 237,608,111 2326
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Notes to the company financial statements

9 Reconaliation of movements in shareholders’ equity

share  Hedging redeggto.l;\ Retamed
Share capital prefmum reserve reserve eamings Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2010 2316 759 (75) 1561 22600 27161
Cash flow hedges
- transfers to net profit - - 20 - - 20
Share options ond LTIPs
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 06 41 - - - 47
- awards granted by subsidianes - - - - 44 44
Net profit for the year - - - - 2645 2645
Dwvidends - - - - (169 4) {169 4)
At1Apnl 2011 2322 800 {55) 1561 2,3595 2,8223
Cash flow hedges
- transfers to net profit - - 18 - - 18
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares issued 04 38 - - - 42
- awards granted by subsidianes - - - - 41 41
Net profit for the year - - - - 9933 9933
Dmdends - - - - {1590) {159 0)
At 31 March 2012 2326 838 37 1561 31979 36667
The capital redemption reserve arose on the repurchase of B shares This s not distnbutable As permitted by Section 408 of the
Comparies Act 2006, no profit or loss account i1s presented for the company
In previous years £1,221 2 midlion of the company’s retained profit arose as a result of group restructuring exercises, and 1s not
considered likely to be distributable
10 Employee costs and auditors’ remuneration
2012 2011
fm fm
Wages and salanes 14 13
Social secunty costs 02 02
Pension costs 17 06
Total employee costs 33 21

For detods of directors’ remnuneration see the Directors’ rermuneration report on pages 64 to 68.

Fees payable to Delotte LLP and therr associates for nan-cudtt services to the company are not required to be disclosed because the
consolidated finanaal statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis

11 Employee numbers
Average number of employees of the company (induding executive directors) dunng this year was 12 (2011 12)
All were bosed in the United Kingdom
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12 Employee share schemes
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For details of employee share schemes and options granted over the shares of the company, see note 33 of the group financiol
staternents Detads of the LTIP condittonal awards and share options granted by the company to sts employees are set out betow

The company has charged £0 1 million (2011 £0 1 million) to the profit and loss account in respect of share based payrents.
At 31 March 2012, there were no options (2011 no options) exerctsable under any of the share based remuneration schemes

a) Long Term Incentive Plan
Changes n the number of awards outstarding dunng the year
Nurnber of
awards
Outstanding at 1 Apni 2010 8,379
Granted duning the year 4,427
Lopsed dunng the year -
Qutstanding at 1 April 2011 12,801
Granted dunng the year 3,702
Lapsed dunng the year (3,566)
Outstanding at 31 March 2012 12,937
Awards outstanding at 31 March were
Number of awards
Normal date
Date of gront of vesting 2012 2011
July 2008 2011 - 3,566
July 2009 2012 4813 4,813
July 2010 2013 4,422 4,422
July 2011 2014 3,702 -
12,937 12,801
b) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Changes in the number of options ocutstanding dunng the year

Wenghted

Nurnber of overage
share oplions  exercse price

Outstanding at 1 April 2010 4,556 867p
Exercsed dunng the year (161) 1172
Outstanding ot 1 April 2011 4,395 856p
Granted dunng the year 916 1,177p
Forfeited dunng the year {445) 862p
Transferred dunng the year 1,301 996p
Exerased dunng the year (314)  1,221p
Outstanding at 31 March 2012 5,853 918p
Options outstanding at 31 March were

Number of share options
Date of grant Normal dote of vesting  Opbion prce 2012 2011
Jorwary 2009 2012 0r 2014 862p 3,723 3,946
January 2010 2013 0r 2015 806p 898 449
January 2011 2014 0r 2016 1137 316 -
Jaruary 2012 20150r 2017 1,177p 916 -

5,853 4,395
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12 Employee share schemes {(continued)

¢) Share Matching Plan g
Changes in the nurnber of owards outstanding during the year
Nurnber of
awards E
Outstanding at 1 April 2010 -
Granted dunng the year ) 457 g
Qutstonding at 1 April 2011 ) o L o 457 —_—
Granted dunng the yeor 360
Outstanding at 31 March 2012 817 é
Awards outstanding at 31 March were -~
Number of awards é‘
Dote of gront Normal date of vesting 2012 2011 S
May 2010 ] June 2013 457 457 E
May 2011 May 2014 360 -
817 457 §
13 Pensions &

The company partrapates n two defined benefit pension schemes (being the Severn Trent Penston Scheme and the Sevem Trent
Water Muror tmage Pension Scherne). In addition, the company operates an unfunded ariangernent for certain employees whase
earnings are above the pension cap

Further details regarding the operotion of these schemes are given in note 27 of the group finanaal statements

The company 15 currently unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilibes from the group’s defined benefit
pension schemes, ond hence t continues to account for the cost of contnbutions as if the scheme wos a defined contribution
pension scheme

The pension charge for the year was £1 7 milion (2011 £0 6 million)

14 Related party transactions
The company has token advantage of the exemption under FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ and not disclosed details of
transactions with other undertakings within the Severn Trent group of companies.

15 Contingent liobilities
a) Bonds and guarantees

The company has entered into bonds and guarantees in the nomal course of business No biabilities are expected to anse in respect
of either the bonds or guarantees.

b} Bank offset armangements

The banking arrangements of the company operate on a pooled basts with certain of its subsidiary undertakings. Under these
arrangements participating companies guarantee each others' overdrawn balances to the extent of therr credit balances, which
can be offset agamst balances of partsapating comparues

16 Post balance sheet events

Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a fmal dividend of 42 06 pence per shore and a special dvidend

of 63 00 pence per share

17 Dividends

For details of the dmdends paid in the years ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011 see note 14 in the group finanaal
statements
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Five year sumnmary
2012 2011 2010 2009 008

Continuing operabons £m £m £m fm £m
Turnover 1,7706  1,7113  1,7039 16422 15524
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional terns 504 2 5191 5571 4699 4695
Net excephional itemns {(509) (214) 497 {189) 68 8)
Net interest payable before losses on finanaal mstruments and
exceptional finance costs (2290 (2306) (2188}  (1964) {177 4)
Losses on finanaol nstruments 677 (142) 457 (870) (310
Results of associates and joint ventures 01 01 01 - 01
Profit on orcdinary actrvities before taxation 1567 2530 3344 1676 1924
Current taxation on profit on ordinary actvities (605} (321) {40 7) (521) (56 2}
Deferred taxahon 782 536 {“422) (1715) T4 &
Profit on ordnary actvities after taxation 1744 2745 2515 560) 2106
Discontinued - - - - 08
Profit for the penod 1744 2745 2525 (56 0) 2114
Net assets emplayed
Fixed assets 67436 66353 65161 56,1699 58929
Other net labilibes excluding net debt, retirement benefit obligation
prowvisions and deferred tax (3413) (320 4) (3172) {287 2) {217 3)
Dervatve financial instruments? (2618) {50 5) {1253) {(1539) (26 1)
Retrernent benefit obligation (345 8) {2921) (3549) (2330) (165 6)
Provisions for labiltres and charges and deferred tax (845 5) (9574) (1,0103) (988 0) {8855)
Net ossets held for sole - - - 42 -

4,949 2 49749 4,708 4 45120 4,598 4
Financed by
Called up share caprtat 2326 2322 2316 2310 2197
Reserves 7409 B676 7091 7151 9713
Total shareholders' funds 9735 10998 9407 9461 1,2010
Non-controlimg interests 79 63 63 60 42
Net debt? 39678 38688 37614 35599 33932

4,949 2 49749 4,708 4 45120 4,598 4
Statistics
Earrungs per share (continuing) - pence 725 1152 1056 (24 6) 89.3
Adprsted earnings per share - pence 889 105.6 1228 927 978
Dndends per share (excluding special dmdend) - pence 701 651 723 673 656
Drvdend cover (before exceptional tems and defemred tax) 13 16 17 14 15
Geanng ) 802% 778% 799% 789% 74 0%
Ordinary share pnce at 31 March - pence 15440 14460 11950 9500 14190
Average number of employees - - -
- Severn Trent Water § 5162 5237 5686 5624 5,569
- Other ) 2,889 3,045 3,102 3,144 2,814

1 Excludes wstruments hediging forewgn curmency debt
1 Indudes instruments hedging foresgn currency debt

Geanng has been calaulated as net debt dnaded ty the sum of equity and net debt.
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Delivering against our KPIs

201011

201112 201112
quartile

Bass KP1 performonce Ato glonce
MAT 1 Lost time madents per 100,000 hrs worked* 037 030 Upper -
QR 2Employee motvation %?2 T4% 75% Medion o
MAT 3 Woter quolity (test fature rate} ppm 210 225 Median 9
MAT  4SIM- Qualtatve - 396 Medan e
MAT 5 SIM - Quantitative - 205 Upper @
MAT 6 Unplanned interruptions > 6 hrs per 1,000 properbies? 2385 1112 Lower @
NPR 7 Properties at risk of low pressure per 1,000 properties3 007 006 Upper @
MAT  8First tme job resolution %* 97 5% 93 8% Upper Q@
QR 9Non-performance against Regulatory Obligations %* 4% 6% Upper K-
ACT 10 Capex (net) %> 7 40% 431% n/a _nia
MAT 11 Caprtal process quality - 972 na no
ACT 12 Debtor days® 338 358 Median @
ACT 130pex-£fm3¢ 519 548 n/a n/a
ACT 14 Efficent biling factor (per 1,000 properties connected) - 3,306 nfa _n/a
MAT 15 Pollution inadents (cat 1,2 & 3)7 378 458 Median Q@
! MAT 16 Sewer flooding ncidents - other causes per 1,000 properties? 8 0154 0141 Median -
ACT 17 Sewage Treatment Works - breach of consents %’ 169% 2 54% Lower ] Q
' ACT 18 Supply availability % 944%  965% Lower (-]
MAT 19 Net Energy Use - GWh* 706 679 Upper o
MLE 20Lleakage Ml/d3 > 497 464 Upper 0
Key 1 Actudl performance across all KPIs 4 & 5 SIM {Sersce Incentive
O Improved quartite employees and agency staff Mechorism) Consists of 2 equadlly
© Mantained quartle 2 Performance bosed onannual survey  Wesghted measures. Quantitative looks
of ol employees. at the nurmber of complamts, unwanted
© Declined quartite 3 As contacts and engaged/cbandoned calls.
reported in the Ofwat Annudl Qualitatve looks at the end to end
Return Performance figures are
custormer service by cornpleting 200
Notes provisional ot thrs stage as the Ofwat CuStomers Surveys 4 tmes o year
Benchmoarks updated in September Annual Return wil be submitted to Customers rate us based on a score of 1
Excludes PDoS Ofwat on 15 June 2012 (very dssatisfied) to 5 (very satssfied)
MAT = Moving annua total 4 Actudl performance based partillyor - The 7 SiM measures replace customer
QR = Quarterly review wholly on ntemal data written complaints per 1,000 properties

NPR = Number of properties on register
MLE = Maximum lkelhood estimate
ACT = Year end actual

5 Benchmark data s unavailcble until
Septermber 2012

6 Actual performance based on cudited
UK GAAP fincncidl statements for the
year ended 31 March 2012

7 Measure for calendar year to
31 December 2011

8 Indudes mnar escape of sewage
Prior year restated

and first tme call resolution for billing
KPI 11 Caprtal process quality This covers
the captal work undertaken by the

One Supply Chain There 1s no external
benchmark available for this measure
The KPl s based on an index of four areas
{people, process, custormer and finance)
ncorporatng o number of metncs such
as hedlth and safety, programme
management, customer service, and
finanaial performance

KP1 14 Effiient billing factor ('000
properties connected) Ofwat have
introduced o Billing Incentive which s
designed to ensure that comparves are
appropnatety rewarded for the efficency
of their billing in terms of mantaming
and growng their chargeable customer
base Itlooks at the overage number of
billable properties connected to water
senices.
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Information for shareholders

Corporate website

Shareholders are encouraged to visit our website
www severntrent.com which provides.

company news and mforrmation,

links to our operattonal businesses’ websites,

detats of our governance arrangements,

details of our strategy;

details of the group’s busmess models and business plan, and
the company’s approach te operating responsibly

There s also a dedicated Investors sectton on the website which
contams up to date information for shareholders including

+ comprehensive share pnce informatior,

+ finanaal results,

= ahstory of dwdend payrment dates and armounts, and

+ access to current and histonical shareholder documents such
as the annual report and accounts

Electronic communications

By registenng to receive shareholder documentation from
Severn Trent Plc electrorically shareholders can benefit from
being able to

+ view the annual report and accounts on the doy

itis published,
+ recewve an email alert when shareholder documents
are avallable;
cast theirr AGM vote electronically; ond
manage ther shareholding quickly and securely online,
through Shareview

Etectroruc shareholder communications also enable the
company to reduce its rmpact on the environment and benefit
from savings assocated with reduced printing and maiting costs.

For further information and to regrster for electroruc shareholder
commurucations visit www.shareview co uk

Severn Trent shareholder helpline

The company’s regsstrar is Equinit Lirruted. Equirity’s mam
responsibilites include mantairing the shareholder register
and making dwdend payments

If you have any quenes relating to your Sevem Trent Pic
shareholding you should contact Equinits

Regrstrar contact detas

Online: https./help.shareview co uk from here, you will be
able to securely emnail Equinits with your query
Telephone 0871 384 2967+

Overseas enquiries: +44 121 415 7044

Text phone 0871 384 2255*

By post. Equintty, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lanang,
West Sussex, BN9SG 6DA.
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Dividend payments
Bank mandates

Dndends can be paid automatically into your bank or building
socrety account.
The benefits of doing ths are you will

» recesve deared funds in your bank account on the payment
date;

= avoud postal delays, and

= remove the nsk of your cheques getting lost in the post.

To take advantage of thus service ar for further details contact

Equimiti or visit www .shareview co uk

Dividend reinvestment plan

The plan gves shareholders the option of using theyr dvdend
payrments to buy more Severn Trent Plc shares instead of
recening cash If you would like to particpate in the plan, please
request o dvidend reinvestment plan rmandate from Equiniti
Finonaal Senices Limited

Telephone 0871 384 2268*
Telephone number from outside the UK. +44 121 4157173

Buying and selling shares in the UK

If you wish to buy or sell certficated Severn Trent Pic shares, you
will need to use a stockbroker or hugh street bank whech trades
on the London Stock Exchange There are also many telephone
and online services available to you 1If you are selling, you will
need to present your share certificate ct the time of sate

Details of low cost dealing services may be obtaned from
www.shareview co uk or 0845 603 7037

Share pnce information

Shareholders can find share pnce information on our website
and in most notional newspapers. For a real-time buying or
selling pace, you should contact a stockbroker

shareholder security

Share fraud includes scanns where investors are called out of
the blue and cffered shares that often turn out to be worthless
or nor-existent, or an mflated prce for shares they own. These
calls come from fraudsters cperating in ‘boiler rooms’ that are
mostly based abroad

If you are offered unsolicited nvestment advice, discounted
shares, a prermuum pnce for shares you own, or free company or
research reports, you should take these steps before handing
over any money

+ Get the name of the person and omarysation contacting you

+ Check the Finanaal Services Authonty (FSA) Regrster at
www fsa gov uk/fsaregister to ensure they are authonsed

* Use the details on the FSA Register to contact the firm.

+ Call the FSA Consumer Helpline on 0845 606 1234 if there
are no contact details on the Regsster or you are told they are
out of date

« Searchthe FSA bist of unouthonsed firms and indviduals to
avod doing business with

+ Remember, if t sounds toe good to be true, it probably Is.

*  Calls to these numbers ore charged ot 8 pence per mmute from o BT londine Other prosaders’ costs may vary Lines are open from 8.300m to 5.30pm Monday to Fnday
** Lines are open Monday - Fnday, 8 00am to & 30pm for deating, and until 6 00pm for enqueanes.
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Information for shareholders

If you use an unauthonsed firm to buy or sell shares or
other mvestments, you will not have occess to the Financial
Ombudsman Service or Financial Senaces Compensation
Scheme (FSCS) if things go wrong.

If you are approached about a share scam you should
infarm: the FSA using the shere fraud reporting form at
www fsa gov uk/scams, where you can find out about the
lotest nvestment scams You can also call the Consurner
Helpline on 0845 606 1234

You should contact Action Froud on 0300 123 20401f you
have already paid money to share fraudsters.

Unsolicited mail

The company 15 legally obliged to make its share register
avaitable to the general public Consequently some
shareholders may recenve unsoliated matt If you wish to limit
the amount of unsolicted mail you receve please contact.
The Mailing Preference Sennce (MPS), Freepost 29 LON20771,
London W1E OZT

Alternatively, reguster online at www mpsonline org.uk or call
the MPS Registration ine on 0845 703 4599

Finanoal calendar
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Amencan Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

Sevem Trent has o sponsored Level 1 Amencan Depostary
Receipt (ADR) program, for which The Bank of New York Mellon
acts as Depositary

The Level 1 ADR program trades on OTCQX whuch is the
prermier tier of the US over-the-counter (OTC) market under
the symbol STRNY (it s not Isted on a US stock exchange)
Each ADR represents 1 Sevem Trent ordinary share

If you have any enquines regarding Severn Trent ADRs please
contact The Bank of New York Mellon

By post:

The Bank of New York Mellon
PO Box 358516

Pitsburgh

PA 15252 - 8516

UsA

By telephone
if caling from within the USA. (888) 269 2377 (toll-free)
If calling from outside the USA. +1 201 630 6825

By emad shrrelatons@bnymellon com
Website www bnymedlen com/shareowner
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Preiminary resutts announcement 30 May 2012
Ex dmdend date - final and special dvdend 20 June 2012
Record date to be eligible for the final and special dwdend 22 June 2012

AGM 18 July 2012

Intenrm managernent statement - Q1 year ending 31 March 2013 18 July 2012
Firal and specal dvidend payment date 27 July 2012
Intenm results announcement - yeor ending 31 March 2013 27 Novernber 2012
Ex dvdend date - intenm dvidend 5 Decemnber 2012
Record date to be eligible for the mntenm dvidend 7 Decermnber 2012
Intenm dwidend payment date 11 January 2013

All future dates are mdicative and may be subject to change
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Severn Trent Plc
Registered office:
Severn Trent Centre
2 St John's Street
Coventry
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Tel. 02477 715000
www.severntrent.com

Registered nurmber- 2366619
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